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Overview of the Company
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Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited (the “Company”) was
formed through the restructuring of Harbin Electric Corporation
(formerly known as Harbin Power Plant Equipment Group
Corporation), which is the oldest large-scale power plant equipment
manufacturer in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and
its three affiliates: Harbin Electrical Machinery Works, Harbin
Boiler Works and Harbin Turbine Works (“the three major power
factories”). These three major power factories were established
in the 1950s. The Company was established in Harbin, PRC on
6 October, 1994. The dealings in the shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE") commenced
on 16 December, 1994.

As at 31 December, 2010, the total share capital of the Company
comprised of 1,376,806,000 shares, of which 675,571,000 shares

were circulated on the HKSE as H shares.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the largest
manufacturer of power plant equipment in the PRC. The Group's

principal activities include:

e Thermal power main equipments: boilers, steam turbines and
steam turbine generators with single unit capacity up to 1,000
MW, heavy-duty gas turbine and combined cycle units, the
largest manufacturing base for clean coal combustion equipment
in the PRC, CFB, PFBC, etc.

e Hydro power main equipments: hydro power generators unites
with single unit capacity up to 800 MW class

e Nuclear power main equipments: nuclear island and conventional

island equipments for nuclear power plants

e Other products: ancillary equipment for power stations,
industrial boilers, industrial steam turbines, control devices, AC/
DC motors, valves for power stations, pressure vessels and axial

compressor, etc.

e Turn-key construction of power station projects
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Overview of the Company (continued)
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e Contract supply of complete sets of thermal and hydro power

equipment

e |mport and export of equipment for power stations

e FEngineering technology R&D of complete set of power
equipment

e System R&D of complete set of power equipment

e R&D of power equipment and its ancillary equipment

e Technology transfer, technical consultation and services

e Environmental protection engineering services, etc.

The Group possesses a comprehensive range of advanced
production and research facilities. Its capabilities in research and
development, production and manufacturing and power station
construction are among the best in the power plant equipment

manufacturing industry in the PRC.

The Group is located in Harbin, PRC, which is known as the “City of

the Power”.
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Overview of the Company (continued)

AEEEREEEY . CORPORATE STRUCTURE AND MAIN BUSINESS LINE

BRREEREE AR
(MEEE AR
Harbin Electric Corporation (“HE")

IR R RARER
Holders of H Shares

50.93% 49.07%

REEDIREROGERAT(TELQTF])

Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited (the “Company”)

90.94% 70.90% 89.63% 100% 60% 100% 100% 100% 100%

RERE RRE BB RRBEN BRERE REESE BRRE BRELE REEE
RERAR FERERE R EREAR TiRER REBER (%28) BREREN BRRESI B BERRS
BEfEAR EEAR EfERH BEfEAR TEHERL EREE BHRER KRERLAR EXER

([SRERR) Gt 2 ([E#RA]) (i) BARAT BRAT EffDal HE Harbin BfEDA
Harbin Boiler Harbin Turbine  Harbin Electrical ~ Harbin Power Harbin Power Harbin Power Harbin Electric Power Plant HE Modemn
Company Company Machinery Engineering Equipment Plant Equipment Machinery Valve Company  Manufacturing
Limited Limited Company Company National Corporation AC-DC Motor Limited Service Industry
(“Boiler ("Turbine Limited Limited Engineering (QHD) Heavy Limited Duty Company
Company”) Company") ("Electrical (“Engineering Research Equipment Company Limited
Machinery Company”) Centre Co., Ltd Co., Ltd

Company")
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Financial Highlights
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Financial Highlights (continued)

REERF (5 BERABEHRIIANT : The summary of results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years are as follows:

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE

Unit Year ended 31 December,
iy 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

EERE AR¥For 28,815,543 28,629,522 29,903,544 27,648,584 29,098,016
Turnover RMB’000
R A% Al A AREFT 1,409,921 984,512 1,573,247 2,115,820 1,643,573
Profit before taxation RMB’000
AABIRDFEE A AREF T 1,024,498 606,206 1,041,837 1,627,979 1,024,581

FE(R = A RMB’000
Profit attributable to

equity shareholders of

the Company
BERE AR¥For 50,086,217 52,876,381 48,966,625 42,090,490 37,444,548
Total assets RMB’000
AafssE AREFT 39,053,023 42,659,119 39,398,700 33,678,080 31,665,150
Total liabilities RMB’'000
IR AE#®TFor 1,395,411 1,578,236 1,431,845 1,199,417 947,931
Non-controlling interests RMB’000
RATRDIEFE A AE®For 9,637,783 8,639,026 8,136,080 7,212,993 4,831,467

eI R RMB’000
Equity attributable to

equity shareholders of

the Company
FROEEE AT 7.00 6.27 5.91 5.24 3.79
Net assets per share RMB
FRRAR AT 0.744 0.44 0.757 1.123 0.804

Earnings per share RMB



MEEE @)

Financial Highlights (continued)

EEER PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
RRABEEERITEER AR RECEER The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
RIETFEMBAR » LARIHESTERTRE - corporate management services to its subsidiaries, together with

sales of various kinds of power equipment.

HZ2010F12A318 L EE EHZ2009F 12 A31HILFE

Year ended 31 December, 2010 Year ended 31 December, 2009
REEEMDELXBREERBERM L BRAE = R
Turnover and contribution to operating Turnover Contribution to Turnover Contribution to
profit by major product categories operating profit operating profit

AREFT AR F T AR#F T ARBTFT

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NEEHRE 17,984,152 2,534,295 19,220,791 2,672,874
Main thermal power equipment
IKE K 2,362,495 596,378 1,893,429 437,991
Main hydro power equipment
B TRRARTS 5,060,211 170,478 4,299,673 (60,962)
Engineering services for power stations
BT R IR R 919,028 307,563 1,251,301 316,106
Ancillary equipment for power stations
R E BN E A EE S B AR 2,489,657 541,043 1,964,328 399,498
AC/DC motors and other products
and services

28,815,543 4,149,757 28,629,522 3,665,507
H At ZE U A 563,012 213,690
Profit from other activities
AP E2EMER (3,302,848) (2,894,685)
Expenses not allocated to major products
B A3 1,409,921 984,512

Profit before taxation
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear shareholders,

| am pleased to present the Company's annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2010 to all shareholders on behalf of the board
of directors of Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited and wish
to take this opportunity to express my sincerest appreciation to
the Group’s shareholders on behalf the board of directors and all

employees.

In 2010, the global economy recovered slowly and was full of
uncertainties, but China’s economy maintained relatively rapid
growth with its GDP growth rate reaching 10.30%. Power
consumption continued to grow. Although the market demands for
traditional thermal and hydro power saw some decline, demands
for new energy products such as nuclear power, wind power and
solar power took a leap. Consistently strong demands across the
globe have offered a broad space for the development of power
plant equipment manufacturers. Meanwhile, fast development of
our peers and the increasingly high product standards have added

to the competitions among companies and their risks.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

BMREMFER - 2010F AN & B A& & RIER
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FHREAF o
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MEm ~ AR - BIS TaaBRENNE B
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We are pleased to note that the Group enhanced both of its
operation scale and profitability during 2010, generating sales
income of RMB28,816 million and net profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB1,025 million. Newly signed
contracts amounted to RMB42,398 million, with contracts of
nuclear power products valuing RMB10,965 million to hit a new
high in the Company's records. Contracts of exported products
reached RMB18,421 million, staying at the historical highs for two

consecutive years.

The Group speeded up its product restructuring in 2010. It entered
into an agreement with General Electric Company in relation to
the cooperation in the development of the wind power operation,
sounding the horn for the Group's entering the wind power sector.
In addition, the Broad of Directors approved to invest Harbin
Electrical Machinery (Kunming) Co., Ltd. (BEEE#EE(EH) B
E1E2A7A]), which will enhance our development and production
capabilities of the whole series of wind power products. Thirdly,
the construction of a nuclear power manufacturing base is close to
completion and has been put into operation by stages. The Group is
committed to the development of new products and technologies,
and has obtain almost a hundred patents and provincial awards for

scientific achievements.

Looking into the future, shifting the way of development is the
main theme for energy development in China during the “twelfth
five-year” period. The energy sector will see deep restructuring
and soaring demands for new energy products. Market demands
are becoming more diversified and oriented to high and new
technologies. As the global economy stabilizes and continues to
recover, there will be huge potential for international demands
which presents substantial opportunities for power plant equipment

manufacturers.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

KBEOFHREMFEIE - BRI+ —h I HFRE
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% RORBHMESR - SAHRITERKY 58
RELEETEE Bl T -H |BRERKA
BAEEHBEMSHEM -

&% 0 RAFZNRHASUBRREBE—FHTA
EENYFEEE  RARTEHIEEESENE
BRETHEHTELRER -

R . BRE —T——F=A+/\H

China has been through 60 years of rains and storms and has
accumulated sufficient preparations during its rapid growth in the
“eleventh five-year” period. In view of this, the foundation for the
Group to develop new energy has been laid and the blueprint has
been framed. At the beginning of the “twelfth five-year” period,
| deeply understand the expectations from all of our shareholders
and staff for the Group’s development in which | am fully confident.
Together with all employees, | am ready for the opportunities and
challenges ahead, in which we will accelerate the transformation of
economic development model and deepen the structure adjustment.
We will vigorously develop our markets and new industries,
enhance our management standards and keep improving the quality
of economic operation. All of our efforts will be contributed to the
double growth rate of our revenue and profit during the “twelfth

five-year"” period.

At last, | would like to thank our shareholders’ support and
encouragement for the Group in the past year and express my
gratitude to our directors and all employees for the efforts and

dedication.

Chairman

Gong Jing-kun

Harbin, the PRC, 18 March 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(B¥2BWBRERFEEINGBARE)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)
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20104 @ HHRCESIVIVER= R + 1 EAEELIT
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This section must be read in conjunction with the financial
statements and notes to the financial statements as set out in other
sections of this annual report.

MACRO ECONOMY AND INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT

The world economy as a whole moved towards recovery in 2010,
with emerging economies growing faster than advanced economies,
though Europe's deteriorating sovereign debt crisis fueled the
fluctuations of the global financial market, adding to the uncertainty
of worldwide economic recovery. In China, the government's
stimulus package in response to the global financial crisis proved
successful, with the national economy maintaining steady and rapid
development at an impressive 10.30% GDP growth, laying a solid
foundation for the smooth implementation of the country’s “12th
Five-year Plan”.

In 2010, China saw a continued rapid growth in both power
generation and power consumption and an acceleration of the
structural adjustment of its power structure, with the market
demand for thermal power slightly declined, the demand for new
energy products such as nuclear power and wind power increased,
and the demand from the international market remaining strong.
Meanwhile, domestic peers have developed rapidly and market
competition is becoming increasingly fierce. These factors, along
with the uncertainty of the economic outlook and the rapidly
heightened expectation from the market of technological innovation
capacity, combine to increase enterprises’ operational risk. In
a word, power equipment manufacturing enterprises face rare
opportunities of development as well as more daunting challenges.

NEW CONTRACTS

In respond to the declining demand for conventional power
equipment in the domestic market and heightened competition
in the international market in 2010, the Group made an all-out
effort to develop both the domestic and international markets and
scored RMB42.398 billion worth new contracts, including 17.691
billion worth thermal power equipment or 41.73% of the total
contracts; RMB1.437 billion worth hydropower equipment or 3.39%;
RMB8.840 billion worth electric power engineering equipment
(repetitions deducted) or 20.85%; RMB10.965 billion worth nuclear
power equipment or 25.86%; and RMB3.465 billion worth other
products or 8.17%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

(B¥2BWBRERFEEINGBARE)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

ZEEmM A BEREHAELT S o £BEE
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MA KGR EEE T E -
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26,070MW - b K EREIEIN17.51% » BT
SR SER 20,827 . 3MW » K A R B R AR F
R 3 BT 17,940MW - Eb £ F B HA R %
13.72% : K EHAE TR S,616.6MW * th 2
FRIAATFE31.93% o

The amount of new contracts of nuclear power equipment marked a
historical new high. The Group secured contracts of T&G for AP1000
nuclear power projects in Xianning, Sanmen and Haiyang. With a
market share of up to 72%, the Group's AP1000 conventional island

steam turbine unit holds a leading position in the domestic market.

The Group maintains its strong competitiveness in the conventional
thermal power equipment market. During the year, it secured
orders for more than sixty boilers, steam turbines and steam turbine

generators.

The Group has consolidated its traditional advantageous position
in the market of conventional hydropower equipment. In spite
of the decrease in the number of hydropower projects and the
increasing competition, the Group still obtained a good number of
contracts, including contracts of two 600MW francis water turbines
(Guanyinyan) and two 300MW francis water turbines (Yantan

Hydropower Station).

The Group secured RMB18.421 billion worth new contracts from the
international power equipment market, renewing historical records
for successively two years. It signed contracts for 10 units/sets of
B600MW thermal power equipment, six 60MW hydropower units
(Kajbar, Sudan) and three 21.15MW hydropower units (Feilu, Mali).
Moreover, the Group has signed a supply contract for 16 sets of
660MW super critical thermal power units, with the contract price
totaling approximately RMB10.101 billion (effective successively

since January 2011).

PRODUCTION AND SERVICES

The total output of the power equipments for 2010 reached
21,556.6 MW, representing a decrease of 17.43% compared with
the previous year, among which the total capacity of utility boilers
amounted to 26,070MW, increasing 17.51% over the previous
year; the total capacity of steam turbines for power plant recorded
20,827.3MW, roughly the same with the previous year; the total
capacity of turbine generators was 17,940MW, a decrease of
13.72% from the previous year; the total capacity of hydro power
turbo-generator units totaled 3,616.6MW, a decrease of 31.93%

from the previous year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

(B¥2BWBRERFEEINGBARE)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)
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As the delivery schedule was centralized and the capacity of the
newly-established enterprises was not high enough, we saw
various difficulties during the implementation phase. In view of this,
we took a range of effective measures to ensure the deliveries
of key projects, including: strengthening the foundation of project
management; enhancing supervision of project implementation;
improving on-site service and communication; reinforcing the
dynamic management on projects; consolidating internal resources;
improving manufacturing technologies; and intensifying risk

assessment, which earned the Group reputations from customers.

R&D AND TECHNOLOGY INTRODUCTION

In 2010, the Group increased its inputs in science and technology,
significantly boosting its sustainable development and capacity in

self-innovation.

The capacity in self-innovation was improved. During the year,
233 R&D projects were completed and 20 awards from various
fields were acquired, among which the "“Study of Innovation on
and Localization Practice for Hydro Generators in Three Gorges”
and “The Development and Application of New Last Stage Blade
with High Damper Structure” won the special prize and the first
prize at provincial and municipal levels, respectively. In addition,
we completed the development of various new products with
independent intellectual property, such as the 600MW super critical

boiler and obtained patents in 75 products.

Technology introduction and absorption was progressing steadily.
The Company was absorbing manufacturing technology of AP1000
nuclear half-speed power turbine units of Mitsubishi Corporation
and the hydrogen, sealing oil and cooling water system relating
technology of nuclear power conventional islands; obtained a
number of achievements in the study of key technologies in respect
of the localization of the 1000MW ultra supercritical unit; completed
the acceptance of technology introduction and absorption of the

1000 MW class nuclear power auxiliary equipment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

(B¥2BWBRERFEEINGBARE)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)
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it 1)
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ANATIRREMEEFES3, 7788 T ' bF
#13E5099,8758 T : BIREEFEAT.00T * Lt
F 413 HN0.737T °

Energy conservation and emission reduction was in progress. The
Group actively encouraged the utilization of energy-saving and
environment-friendly products, increased inputs in pollution control
while boosted a series of technological upgrading projects. In 2010,
the energy consumption and pollutant emission in certain aspects
were lower than the previous year.

REFORM AND MANAGEMENT

The Company strives to push forward the internally controlled
auditing project. During the year 2010, the internal project teams,
cooperated with the external experts appointed after extensive
research, carried out a comprehensive review on the related
systems and successfully complied an internal control manual of
tailor-made internal control procedures for the subsidiaries. This
has laid down a solid foundation for further implementation of risk
control.

The Company has established a collaboration system, providing
improved channels for internal communication and information
sharing and enhancing working efficiency.

The Company has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers as consultant
and started pilot projects of risk management within the Group. A
risk management training for all employees has been carried out
and the initial risk identification is currently in the progress. This
will effectively strengthen the Group’s risk prevention and control
capabilities amid the complex internal and external environment.

The Company continues to enhance cost management. The
Company strengthened its management of manufacturing cost
from all production processes by regulating the procedures and
behaviours and increasing auditing efforts. The measures have
achieved encouraging results.

PROFIT

In the year of 2010, net profit of the Group attributable to the
shareholders of the Company was RMB1,024.50 million, an increase
of 69.00% compared to the last year; earnings per share was
RMBO0.74, an increase of RMB0.30 compared to the corresponding
period of last year; net asset as at the end of the period attributable
to the shareholders of the Company was RMB9,637.78 million, an
increase of RMB998.75 million compared to the beginning of the
year; net asset per share was RMB7.00, an increase of RMBO0.73
compared to the beginning of the year.
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During the period, the increase of profit was mainly attributable to

increased gross profit.

DIVIDEND

A dividend of RMBO0.14 per share (appropriate tax included) for the
year of 2010 (2009: RMBO0.068 per share) was proposed by the

board of directors, which was the highest in recent years.

TURNOVER

In 2010, the Group recorded a turnover of principal business
activities of RMB28,815.54 million, an increase of 0.65% compared
to the last year. In particular, turnover of the thermal power main
equipment business was RMB17,984.15 million, representing a
decrease of 6.43% over the last year and accounted for 62.41%
of the turnover of the principal business activities. Turnover
of hydropower main equipment was RMB2,362.50 million, an
increase of 24.77% over the last year, representing 8.20% of the
turnover of the principal business activities. Turnover of power
plant engineering services was RMB5,060.21 million, an increase
of 17.69% compared to the last year, representing 17.56% of the
turnover of the principal business activities. Turnover of power
plant accessories and parts was RMB919.03 million, a decrease
of 26.565% over the last year, representing 3.19% of the turnover
of the principal business activities. Turnover of AC/DC motors and
other products and services was RMB2,489.66 million, an increase
of 26.74% over the last year, representing 8.64% of the turnover of

the principal business activities.

During 2010, the Group recorded a turnover of export of
RMB5,299.49 million, representing an increase of RMB973.83
million over the last year and accounted for 18.39% of the turnover
of the principal business activities. The export was mainly to areas

such as Asia and Africa.

COST

During 2010, the cost of the principal business activities of
the Group was RMB24,665.79 million, a decrease of 1.19% as
compared to the last year. The decrease was mainly attributable to

the Group's effort in cost control paid off.
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GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

In 2010, the gross profit from the principal business activities of
the Group was RMB4,149.76 million, an increase of 13.21% as
compared to the last year. The gross profit margin was 14.40%,
an increase of 1.60 percentage points over the last year. Among
them the gross profit from thermal power main equipment was
RMB2,534.29 million, a decrease of RMB38.58 million compared
to the last year. The gross profit margin for thermal power main
equipment was 14.09%, an increase of 0.70 percentage points
compared to the corresponding period last year. The gross profit
from hydropower main equipment was RMB596.38 million, an
increase of RMB158.39 million compared to the corresponding
period last year. The gross profit margin for hydropower main
equipment was 25.24%, an increase of 2.11 percentage points
compared to the corresponding period last year. The gross profit
from power plant engineering services was RMB170.48 million,
an increase of RMB231.44 million compared to the corresponding
period last year. The gross profit margin for power plant engineering
services was 3.37%, an increase of 4.79 percentage points over
the corresponding period last year. The gross profit from power
plant accessories and parts was RMB307.56 million, a decrease of
RMB8.55 million compared to the corresponding period last year.
The gross profit margin for power plant accessories and parts was
33.47%, an increase of 8.21 percentage points over the last year.
The gross profit from the AC/DC motors and other products and
services was RMB541.04million, an increase of RMB141.54 million
compared to the corresponding period last year. The gross profit
margin for the AC/DC motors and other products and services was

21.73%, an increase of 1.39 percentage points over the last year.

EXPENSES DURING THE PERIOD

The Group’s expenses for operation activities during the year of
2010 amounted to RMB484.00 million, an increase of RMB95.41

million or 24.55% compared to the corresponding period last year.

Expenses for administration activities during the year of 2010
amounted to RMB2,686.53 million, an increase of RMB360.82

million or 15.51% compared to the corresponding period last year.
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The increase in expenses was mainly due to the increase in staff
costs, sales services expenses, depreciation expenses and R&D

expenses,.

INTEREST EXPENSE

In 2010, the Group has incurred financial expenses of RMB132.32
million, a decrease of RMB48.06 million compared to the

corresponding period last year.

FUNDING AND BORROWINGS

The Group has three major resources for operation and development
funding, namely shareholder’'s capital, trade receivable from
customers and bank borrowings. The Group arranges borrowings
for each specific project. Except for some special situations, loans
will be raised individually by the Group’s subsidiaries. However, the
advance approval from the parent company for capital investment
borrowings is required. As the number of orders and the trade
amount received in advance of the Group increased significantly
during the past two years, the Group had abundant working capital
and has thus repaid substantially all of the loans for working capital.
As at 31 December 2010, the total sum of the Group's borrowings
was RMB2,056.91 million (31 December 2009: RMB3,995.68
million). The Group's bank borrowings were loans from various
commercial banks and the State's policy banks with interest
rates stipulated by the state. Among the Group's borrowings, the
amount due within one year was RMB507.00 million, a decrease
of RMB781.58 million compared to the beginning of the year.
The amount of the Group’s borrowings due after one year was
RMB1,549.91 million, a decrease of RMB1,157.19 million compared
to the beginning of the year.

DEPOSITS AND CASH FLOW

As at 31 December, 2010, deposits and cash of the Group
amounted to RMB12,515.77 million, a decrease of RMB1,649.96
million over the beginning of the year. During the period, net
cash inflow from operating activities amounted to RMB854.33
million. Net cash inflow from investment activities amounted to
RMB1,906.30 million and net cash outflow from financing activities
was RMB1,946.99 million.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND CHANGES THEREOF

As at 31 December, 2010, total assets of the Group amounted
to RMB50,086.22 million, a decrease of RMB2,790.16 million
(or 5.28%) compared to the beginning of the year, among which
current assets were RMB44,250.08 million, representing 88.35% of
the total assets, and non-current assets were RMB5,836.14 million,

representing 11.65% of the total assets.

LIABILITIES

As of 31 December, 2010, the Group’s total liabilities amounted
to RMB39,053.02 million, a decrease of RMB3,606.10 million
compared to the beginning of the year, among which total current
liabilities were RMB28,867.64 million, representing 73.92% of the
total liabilities, and total non-current liabilities were RMB10,185.38
million, representing 26.08% of the total liabilities. As at 31
December, 2010, the assets to liabilities ratio of the Group was
77.97%.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

As of 31 December, 2010, the total equity attributable to the
shareholders of the Company amounted to RMB9,637.78 million,
an increase of RMB998.75 million compared to the beginning of the
year; the net asset per share was RMB7.00. During the period, the

net asset return rate of the Group was 11.21%.

GEARING RATIO

As of 31 December, 2010, gearing ratio of the Group (non-current
liabilities over total shareholders’ equity) was 1.06:1 as compared to

that of 1.35:1 at the beginning of the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE OF ASSET

As of 31 December, 2010, the Group pledged its assets in an
amount of RMB249.29 million to secure loans for liquidity.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND MAJOR INVESTMENTS

In the year 2010, the Group has a total capital expenditure of
RMB932 million invested in infrastructure constructions and

technological upgrades.
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Except for some facilities in Qinhuangdao, the improvement
project for domestic nuclear production at conventional islands has
been completed. The main equipments of the manufacturing and
construction project for nuclear island are put into use. The cross
construction of the newly built stock under the self-reliance and
improvement project of the main equipments for nuclear island is
finished. The civil engineering works of the construction project
of manufacturing base for main pump generators have been
prepared to use and the major equipments have been delivered.
The manufacturing technology upgrade project for nuclear power
reactor-cooling agent pump units is largely completed, and the
bidding work for equipments is almost done. The new factory of the
technological upgrade project for 1000MW nuclear power auxiliary

equipment has been put into operation.

Meanwhile, the technological upgrade and construction project for
power plant valve have been completed and put into use. The valve
company has finished its relocation. The main body of the factories
and offices of the technological upgrade project for the newly built
hydro power model laboratory have been topped-out. The first stage
of the technological upgrade project of large-scale coal engineering

has completed on schedule and put into use.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES AND
RELATED HEDGES

The Group has certain amount of deposits that are denominated in
foreign currencies. As at 31 December, 2010, the amount of the
Group's deposits in foreign currencies amounted to RMB365.37
million. The export business and foreign currencies settled
businesses expose the Group to exchange risk.

USE OF FUND-RAISING PROCEEDS

In the year 2010, the Group has utilized a total of RMB145
million of its fund-raising proceeds mainly for the Workshop Base
Construction Project in relation to the heavy-duty gas turbine, the
construction of the main equipment for nuclear islands and nuclear

power main pump generators, etc.

As of 31 December, 2010, the Group has utilized a total of
RMB2,630 million of its H share listing proceeds without any
remaining balance.
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STAFF AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December, 2010, the Group had a workforce of 18,485
employees and the total remuneration amounted to RMB1,326
million. In order to enhance knowledge, skills and capabilities as
well as promote the overall caliber of its staff, the Company has
put additional efforts in staff training and adopted various training
approaches, such as the internal commmunication and on-the-job
training, providing learning and improving opportunities to each of
them. Through these efforts, the knowledge, skills and qualification
of the staff have been greatly improved, and the Group also
established an effective system to identify, train and use its people

in the right way.

PROSPECT

Looking into 2011, whilst the global economy recovery will
continue, the economic prospect is heading for a grim situation
with the recovery proceeding at a sluggish pace within the
developed economies and considerable uncertainties remaining
with the global economic environment. Domestically, long-term
uptrend of China’'s economy remained substantially intact, with
GDP growth goal standing at 8% for the year 2011. It is expected
that the total power generating capacity in 2011 will surpass 1.04
billion KW with an estimated new power generating capacity of
about 90 million KW. With the increasingly stable macro economic
environment, comprehensive adjustment in energy structure as
well as the progress of the national Twelfth Five-Year Plan and
strategic development plan of seven emerging industries, the
construction of power plants will be more focused on the areas
of effective, energy-saving, environmental and renewable energy.
Thus significant increase of demand is expected for new energy
markets such as nuclear, hydropower, wind and solar power. In
addition, the Twelfth Five-Year Plan period is expected to see a
significant development of hydroelectric power, with an expected
power generating capacity in excess of 100 million KW. Meanwhile,
demand from international markets remains robust in view of the
rapid development in emerging economies. The Group is facing
valuable development opportunities as well as considerable
challenges. Under the leadership of the Board, we are determined
to strive for a new era of stable and rapid growth so as to achieve

outstanding returns for our shareholders.
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The Group will focus on accomplishing the following tasks in 2011:

1.

Sticking to the priority of raising the quality of economic

operation

All the tasks of the Company shall stick to the priority of raising
the quality of economic operation. Through various means
such as perfecting the assessment system, strengthening the
training efforts and deepening the understanding of the quality
of economic operation for all staff, the Group will secure the
improvement of the quality of economic operation with its
excellent qualities of work, products, services and management.
The Group will strive for a significant improvement in various
economic indicators such as consolidated gross profit margin,

trade debtors and inventories in 2011 as compared to 2010.

Sticking to the focus of market development efforts

For the year 2011, the Group's operation targets are to have a
market share of no less than one third of the conventional hydro
and thermal power generator market in China and have new
breakthroughs in the market development of nuclear power, gas
turbines and environmental friendly products, as well as million
kilowatt ultra super critical thermal power generator. In order to
achieve these results, the Group will strengthen the building of
the marketing team and the overall planning of marketing. The
group will advocate for all staff marketing and establish the idea
that market goes first among the staff, taking practical measures
to ensure that all works of the Group will serve the purpose
of market development. The Group will continue to adopt
the Going Out policy and international development strategy,
consolidating traditional markets such as Vietnam, India and
Pakistan, as well as actively exploring emerging markets such as
South America, Middle East and Eastern Europe. The Group will
devote more efforts into market development for new products,
further consolidate the Group's expansion in the third-generation
nuclear power market and strengthen the researches into
market changes and market risks, which will create favorable

market conditions for the development of the Group.
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3. Striving for breakthroughs in three areas

Achieve new breakthrough in the manufacturing of nuclear
power products The Group will accelerate the model researches
of nuclear power technology development system and the
building of a talented team. The Group will enrich the nuclear
power talent team and raise its design and development abilities
of nuclear power products and the management level of nuclear

power projects.

The Group will further strengthen the construction of nuclear
culture, increase the awareness of nuclear safety, create a
favorable nuclear atmosphere and ensure the smooth and

effective execution of the nuclear quality assurance system.

The Group will further perfect the construction of nuclear power
bases and boost the production scale and manufacturing ability

of nuclear power products.

The Group will ensure that the preparations for projects under
construction and projects to be built go as planned, spurring the

nuclear power businesses into a fast development track.

Achieve new breakthrough in the development of new industry.
To break the bottleneck of development and achieve another
leap in development, the key is to act in response to the
changing market demand, and accelerate the development
of new industry. For 2011, the Company shall accelerate the
construction of Zhenjiang Wind Power Plant, by combination
of market expansion and base construction; the Company shall
achieve breakthrough in the R&D of desalination and solar
power generation products; for contracted projects such as tidal
current power generation and water pump, the Company shall
ensure timely delivery by accelerating the pace of R&D, so as
to gain satisfactory results and push forward the process of
industrialization.
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The Company shall provide technical support to the development
of new industry, by ways of accelerating the construction
of R&D system, leveraging on the advantage of internal
technical resources, strengthening the tie and cooperation with
outside research institutions, and forming an open technical
development system by committing more investment to the
R&D capability.

Achieve new breakthrough in the innovation of
management. The Company shall implement the internal
control manual on a full scale, upon completion of the drawing
up of the complementary system of the manual. The Company
shall strengthen the Group's risk resistance by completing the

pilot program of comprehensive risk management.

The Company shall continue to seek innovation in the R&D
system and improve the management system, so as to meet the

new demand of market diversification and high-tech application.

The Company shall continue to facilitate the development of
information-based applications, by ways of improving the office
network and information platform of the Group, as well as

improving work efficiency and information processing capability.

The Company shall continue to seek income enhancement
and expenditure reduction, as well as energy conservation and
emission reduction.

The Company shall strengthen the system of basic
management, consolidate the foundation of development, and
continue to implement cost-control measures. Meanwhile, the
Company shall accelerate the construction of human resources
capability, by organizing more training programs for employees

to enhance the overall capability of all employees.

Harbin, the PRC, 18 March 2011
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Gong Jing-kun, born in July 1958, senior engineer with
a master's degree, now chairman of HE and chairman of the
Company. Mr. Gong graduated from Shenyang Institute of
Machinery and Electronics in 1982. Later on, he studied in
Shanghai Fudan University, majoring in economic management
and was conferred a master degree. Mr. Gong joined HE in 1982.
He has been vice director of production division, vice manager of
production department, manager of hydropower workshop in former
Harbin Electric Machinery Works of the Group, and general manager
assistant and deputy general manager of the Electric Machinery
Company of the Group. Mr. Gong was appointed as chairman
of Archeng Relay Group Company and Archeng Relay Company
Limited in 1999. In August 2000, he was appointed as vice chairman
and general manager of HE and in September 2000, Mr. Gong was
appointed as vice chairman of the Company. In May 2006, he was
appointed as chairman of HE and on 29 September, chairman of the

Company.

Mr. Zou Lei, born in June 1966, senior economist with a doctor'’s
degree, now director and general manager of HE and executive
director of the Company. Mr. Zou graduated from Jiamusi
Technical College in July 1988, majoring in mechanical design
and manufacture, and was conferred a bachelor degree. Then he
obtained a doctor degree from Harbin Institute of Technology.
Mr. Zou joined HE in August 1988 and was the dispatcher, Party
office secretary, league deputy secretary, secretary in dispatching
room of production division in former Harbin Boiler Works, Party
branch secretary of pipe first branch factory, factory director of
heavy vessel workshop, factory director of Pingshan branch factory,
production director, deputy general manager, Chairman of the
Board, General manager and Party committee deputy secretary in
Harbin Boiler Company Limited. In December 2008, Mr. Zou was
elected as standing committee member of the Party Committee,
director and general manager. He has been executive director of the

Company from 11th February 2009.
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Mr. Duan Hong-yi, born in February 1963, is a senior economist
and a master of business administration. He now serves as an
executive director of the Company and deputy general manager
of HE. Majoring in mechanics, Mr. Duan graduated from Harbin
Electrical Machinery College in 1982 and joined HE in the same
year. Mr. Duan has been a comprehensive planner and vice
manager of the planning department of former Boiler Works of
the Group. In 1994, he participated in the reorganization of HE to
be a shareholding enterprise and the issuance and listing of the
Company’s shares. Since 1995, He has been a vice director and
the director of the planning and accounting department and a vice
chief accountant of the Company, a supervisor and a deputy general
manager of the Turbine Company of the Group, and a vice chairman
of Harbin Power Technology & Trade Incorporation of the Group. He
was appointed as a deputy general manager of HE in August 2000

and an executive director of the Company in September 2000.

Mr. Wu Wei-zhang, born in July 1962, is a researcher & senior
engineer with a doctor's degree. He now serves as an executive
director and the general manager of the Company. Majoring in
Hydraulics and River Dynamics, Mr. Wu graduated from Qinghua
University with a master’'s degree in 1988 and joined HE in the
same year. Mr. Wu has been a deputy director and deputy head of
the turbine department of Electrical Machinery Institute, a deputy
manager of hydropower workshop, a vice chief engineer and a
vice manager of the product design department of the Electric
Machinery Company of the Group. Mr. Wu was appointed as the
deputy general manager and the chairman and general manager
of the Electric Machinery Company of the Group in 1999 and in
October 2000, respectively. He was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in September 2000. Mr. Wu obtained
a doctor’'s degree at Qinghua University in 2002. He also holds
lots of social posts, including the director general of the large
electrical equipment branch of China Electrical Equipment Industrial
Association, a directorate member of the water turbine special
committee of China Power Project (FE®) /) T42), a directorate
member and director general of China Water Turbine Standardized
Technology Committee (FEBIKER#IZELEMEE®) as well as
a special-term professor of Harbin Institute of Technology and
Huazhong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Wu has been
serving as the general manager of the Company since February
2010.
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Mr. Shang Zhong-fu, born in March 1961, is a research & senior
engineer and a master of business administration. He now serves as
an executive director and deputy general manager of the Company.
Majoring in steam turbine, Mr. Shang graduated from Harbin
Institute of Technology in 1982 and joined HE in the same year. He
has been an assistant section head and deputy head of the Design
Research Institute, vice chief economist and vice chief engineer
of former Turbine Works of the Group. He was appointed as a
deputy general manager and the chairman and general manager of
the Turbine Company of the Group in October 1998 and November
1999, respectively. In September 2000, he was appointed as an
executive director of the Company and in February 2002, as a
deputy general manager of the Company.

Independent Directors

Mr. Sun Chang-ji, born in August 1942, researcher & senior
engineer, is an independent director of the Company and special
advisor for China Machinery Industry Federation, and deputy head
of the Preparatory Team for State Nuclear Power Technology
Corporation. Mr. Sun graduated from Tsinghua University in
September 1966, and started his career in 1968. He worked
in Sichuan Oriental Turbine Factory, serving as Section Head,
Workshop Director, Deputy Factory Manager and Factory Manager.
In January 1991, he was appointed as Deputy Director-general of
the production department of the Ministry of Machinery Industry
of the PRC, and later he became Vice Minister of the Ministry of
Machinery Industry of the PRC in April 1993. In April 1998, he
became First Deputy Director-general of the State Administration
of Machinery Industry of the PRC (deputy ministerial level). He
became Deputy Party Secretary and Vice President (deputy
ministerial level) of Bank of China in January 1999, and served
concurrently as President of China Orient Asset Management
Corporation for the period from September 1999 to August 2001.
He became Vice Chairman of Bank of China in November 2000,
Vice Chairman of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited in September
2001 and Secretary of Commission for Discipline Inspection of
Bank of China in June 2003 concurrently. From August 2004, he
has been appointed as Vice Chairman of Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Limited and Vice Chairman of China Machinery Industry Federation
concurrently. He was elected as a member of the 10th CPPCC
National Committee in January 2003, and deputy head of the
Preparatory Team for State Nuclear Power Technology Corporation
in October 2004 concurrently. Since December 2009, he has been
an independent director of the Company.



EE -EENSAEBAE @)

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (continued)

BERAAEE  —AE-FEtALE - REAREZ
B SSRTEMEE  REARFRBYES P
BEm T RESSRRIBRA  PRBEHSESR
RERD - BEAE—NROAFEENSREIERX
BEEEX RFLAL2NIE - BERRHE
MEFTEED WM ITEMRLZE K - B
TEHAFSEHA AR  PRBEEE  BRIFE
MEAKE - —TE—F= ARERERBREKR
NEXEFeTRF(PEMBIENIEE -+
BT EEERR  BERABREQE)FR
%o —TRRF_ACTHERMTEBASNT
gek FhHEE TESEHSEETRER
% —_EEXRFNAEERRRBILES -

ERELZLT  —AWEERARE - REARE
- SRKEMEE  REARRBYESE A
M (EE)ERAABESR  PELKEER
HEEHEE  THEMERAZEEERE - FXL
T NARRNFEERTRYBERBHEOCRPR
BRARB)MREE - AF/N\AL2NIHE - BE
AEEAZERER Bk PEEZRRITIEE
DiTEITTR  BERIERL - —AN=FEPEE
RIPITAEENTITR  BEER  AEERE
Bgek -  —NMNMNFETEEZEEEERAR
WTZBRX(EERE8  ERZESTHEZRE - —
ETMFRETFREEEEERARNERENAE
Be%E  mmax(RE)ERQREESER
ROEBBRBELARBESER  PELXERRHE
FHEE  SREMEHAEZESRE - —TTN
FAAERRRBLESE -

Mr. Jia Cheng-bing, born in July 1942, senior engineer with a
bachelor's degree, is an independent director of the Company,
special advisor for China Machinery Industry Federation, and
president of China Foundry Association. He graduated from Hefei
University of Technology in Foundry in 1965, and started his
career in July of the same year. He served as chief and deputy
chief at Ministry of Machinery Electronics Industry and Ministry of
Machine Building Industry, director of Personnel and Labor Division,
head of office and Party Commissioner at Ministry of Machine
Building Industry. From March 2001, he served as chairman of the
Supervisory Committee for various large State Council organizations
(China National Materials Industry Group, China State Shipbuilding
Corporation, The State Development and Investment Corp.). In
February 2006, he was appointed as deputy managing directors
and special advisor of China Machinery Industry Federation
and president of China Foundry Association. He has been an

independent director of the Company since September 2006.

Ms. Li He-jun, born in June 1944, senior economist with a
bachelor's degree, is an independent director of the Company, vice
chairperson of the Board of Southwest Aluminum (Group) Co. Ltd,
executive director of China Association of Women Entrepreneurs
and committee member of the Financial Advisory Committee.
Ms. Li graduated from Central Institute of Finance and Economics
(currently known as Central University of Finance and Economics)
in Finance and Accounting in 1966, and started her career in August
of the same year. She has served as chief and deputy chief of the
Planning Commission of Henan Province, Vice President and Deputy
Party Secretary of China Construction Bank Henan Branch. In 1993,
she became President and Party Secretary of China Construction
Bank Henan Branch and director of Henan Provincial Investment
Association. In 1999, she became chief commissioner of both
the Execute Commission and the Audit Commission for China
Cinda Asset Management Corporation. Since 2004, she has been
appointed as commissioner of the Expert Advisory Commission of
China Cinda Asset Management Corporation, vice chairperson of
the Board of Southwest Aluminum (Group) Co. Ltd, vice chairperson
of the Board of Shanxi Hancheng Coal Company, executive director
of China Association of Women Entrepreneurs and commissioner of
Finance Inquiry Commission. She has been an independent director
of the Company since September 2006.
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Mr. Yu Bo, born in October 1960, is a professor with a doctor
degree, tutor for doctoral candidates, independent director of
the Company, dean of School of Management Harbin Institute
of Technology (SMHIT). Mr. Yu graduated from industrial electric
automation, Harbin Institute of Technology in 1981, and began his
career from 1982. He was a teacher, lecturer, associate professor,
professor of School of Management Harbin Institute of Technology;
he became director of Management Department of SMHIT in 2000,
director of MBA School of SMHIT in 2002, and dean assistant of
SMHIT, director of MBA School in 2003, dean of SMHIT since 2008.
Mr. Yu is also a deputy director of Energy System Engineering
Committee of China Energy Research Society, a member of National
MBA Education Committee, a member of Military Technology
Administration of China Ordnance Society, a councilman of Chinese
Society of Technology Economics, a member of Space Technology
Committee of Beijing Society of Astronautics, a councilman of
Aerospace Research Society, a councilman of Heilongjiang Provincial
Budgetary Council, an industrial expert of Heilongjiang Science and
Technology Consultation. He was appointed as independent director

of the Company since December 2009.

Mr. Liu Deng-qing, born in November 1970, doctor for
management of Tsinghua University, independent director of
the Company, a CPV, CREA, and CMRA (Certified Mining Rights
Appraiser) of China. He is one of first the Top Ten Youth Appraisers;
a partner, vice president and chief appraiser of China Enterprise
Appraisal Company. He is a member of the Tenth China Youth
Federation; a councilman of China Appraisal society; fellow member
of China Appraisal society; a member of State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council,
(“SASAC"), and Project Appraisal Expert Group of the Ministry of
Finance; a member of the tenth and eleventh Issuance Verification
Committee of the China Securities Regulatory Commission; a
member of Appraisal Standard Committee of China Appraisal
society; a member of Enterprise Valuation Committee, and
Intangible Asset Appraisal Committee, and Continuation Education
Committee of CPV; a member of Appraisal Committee of CPA
Beijing, and Publicity Committee; a member of Editorial Committee
of CPA Beijing. He was appointed as independent director of the

Company since December 2009.
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SUPERVISORS
Supervisors representing shareholders

Mr. Wang Zhi-sen, born in 1950, senior engineer with bachelor’s
degree, is secretary of Discipline Committee and chairman of the
Supervisory Committee of the Company, and a member of the
Standing Committee of Communist Party and secretary of Discipline
Committee of HE. Mr. Wang studied electric power engineering at
Qinghua University and graduated in December 1975. He started
his career in the same year and was appointed as deputy director
of Enterprise Cadre Administration Office of Department of Cadre
and deputy director of the general office of Personnel and Labor
Department under the Ministry of Machine-Building Industry. He
was appointed as director of Information Department of China
Electrical Engineering News in 1989, head and secretary of Party
Committee of Instrument and Meter Technology Institute under
Ministry of Machinery and Electronics Industry in 1992, deputy
director of general office and director of the director office of
Ministry of Internal Trade and secretary of Party Committee in
January 1995, secretary of Party Committee and vice general
manager of China National Agricultural Machinery Corporation
in July 1995, head of office of State Commission for Economic
Restructuring and head of the secretary administration division of
the Economic Restructuring Office of the State Council in 1996,
secretary of Party Committee and secretary of Discipline Committee
of Huaxing Products Corporation in 1998, director, secretary of Party
Committee and secretary of Discipline Committee of China Huaxing
Group in 1999, secretary of Party Committee and deputy general
manager of China Huaxing Group in 2001. In June 2007, he was
appointed as a member of the Standing Committee of Communist
Party and secretary of Discipline Committee of Harbin Power
Plant Equipment Group Corporation (currently known as Harbin
Electric Corporation), and a member of the Standing Committee
of Communist Party and secretary of Discipline Committee of the
Company. He has been the chairman of the Supervisory Committee
of the Company since March 2008.
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Mr. Chen Guang, born in August 1964, senior engineer with a
Master’'s degree, is a supervisor representing shareholders of
the Company and director of the Corporate Management and
Development Department of the Boiler Company of the Group.
Mr. Chen graduated from Xi‘an Jiaotong University in 1986 and
joined HE in the same year. He was appointed as a designer of the
Design Department of the Boiler Company of the Group, secretary
of factory office, deputy manager of the spare parts company,
deputy secretary and chairman of Labor Union of No. 2 Pipe
Workshop, secretary and head of Drum Workshop, head, director
of Security Department and secretary of No. 1 Pipe Workshop.
He was appointed as the director and secretary of the Corporate
Management and Development Department of the Boiler Company
since August 2009. He has been a supervisor representing
shareholders since December 2009.

Supervisors representing staff and workers

Ms. Lu Chun-lian, born in March 1959, senior engineer with
bachelor's degree, is a supervisor representing staff and workers of
the Company and deputy chief engineer of the Electric Machinery
Company and deputy director of the Electric Machinery Institute of
the Group. Ms. Lu studied Insulation Material in Harbin Institute of
Electrical Engineering and graduated in 1982. She joined the group
in the same year and was appointed as an engineer and deputy
director of Insulation Material Research Office under Electrical
Machinery Research Institute ,head and director of technology
department of coil factory in the Electric Machinery Company.
She has been the head of coil workshop in the Electric Machinery
Company since 2002, supervisor representing staff and workers of
the Company since September 2003, deputy chief engineer of the
Electric Machinery Company since March 2008, and deputy director
of the Electric Machinery Institute under the Electric Machinery
Company since April 2009.

Mr. Gao Xu-guang, born in June 1971, senior engineer with
bachelor's degree, is a supervisor representing staff and workers
of the Company and head of Organization Department of the Party
Committee of Harbin Turbine Company Limited. Mr. Gao studied
Electrochemistry in Harbin Institute of Electrical Engineering
and graduated with a bachelor's degree. He starts his career in
July 1994. He was appointed as deputy director of the general
manager’s office, secretary of the Board and director of Corporate
Development Center of Harbin Turbine Company Limited. He has
been a supervisor representing staff and workers since 2003 and
head of Organization Department of the Party Committee of the
Turbine Company since October 2009.
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Independent Supervisor

Mr. Xu Er-ming, born in December 1949, professor and Ph.D.
supervisor with a Doctor’'s Degree, is an independent supervisor
of the Company and Deputy Dean of School of Graduate Studies
of the Renmin University of China. Mr. Xu graduated from the
Department of Industrial Economics of Renmin University of China
in 1978 and stayed at the university after his graduation, where
he worked as tutor, lecturer, associate professor and professor.
He was appointed as the director of office for Canada-China
Management Education Program of the Renmin University of
China in 1991, and later the deputy director of the Department of
Industrial Economics, the deputy director of the Center for Business
Administration Education and the deputy director of Institute
of Foreign Economic Management of the Renmin University of
China at the same time. He was appointed as the Deputy Dean
of Business Administration of the Renmin University of China in
1996 and the Dean in 1997. He has been appointed as the Deputy
Dean of School of Graduate Studies of the Renmin University of
China since June 2006. He is now Deputy Secretary-General of the
Tenth Session of the Academic Committee, and a member of the
Third Session of the University Affairs Committee of the Renmin
University of China, a member of the Sixth Session of the Business
Administration Academic Appraisal Group of the Academic Degree
Committee of the State Council, Vice Chairman of the Chinese
Enterprise Management Research Association, and Chairman of
Beijing Contemporary Enterprise Research Association, independent
non-executive director of China Telecom Corporation Limited. He is
entitled to the State Council's special government allowances. He
has also been appointed as Associate Convener of the Fifth Session
of the Business Administration Academic Appraisal Group of the
Academic Degree Committee of the State Council, a member of
the Advisory Committee of National MBA Education, and a director
of the Advisory Committee for University Business Administration
Education lead by Ministry of Education. Professor Xu is a visiting
professor at over 10 universities in China including Zhejiang
University, and has been teaching at New York State University at
Buffalo, the University of Scranton, the University of Technology,
Sydney, Australia, the Kyushu University, Japan and Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He has been an independent supervisor of

the Company since December, 2009.

010z Moday jenuuy paywi] Auedwo) juswdinb3 Jemod uigieH H



B30l (o785 M H 3 I (EEE S H

EE -EENSAEBAE @)

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (continued)

EREEAE

REBEELE  —NA—FNAALLE ITHEER
T8 SRTEMBE REAQFEERL
B REA-NNUFEERRBEETES0
REMAREERE - BEAEERBEREIED
IR - MEZRAEWEREENEEH
%o REE—NNOF2NREEREBRSRAR
ARRBETHREN T - —ANEF+— AR
BREAKEREAFBLERRIERNEE - 5778
RERERECEEERER  FEARRERS
Bi% - —ANNFHREREEERRRARFRE
ZEER  ABHRBE AN FRERERE
B —MAEE s B A R R A T 25
BRONBERLRBEER  BEFERK - _TTEF
T ARERRRIRIBKIEE -

E2ELE  —NWANFLALLE  ITHEER
T8 SRSEBE REAQFEERL
B RAEEXENMRELIERETXEE
¥ BELEM  ZRENGBETEAZMBA
EE BBEIBEM —AN—FNASMIE-
LEAEERRENERTEEERYE - 85K
Rk BE - BESHORVBRER - —TT—
FOAERREREREREERABIALE -
“RERFNARERR RGBSR -

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhang Hai-quan, born in September 1961, is a senior engineer
and master of business administration. He now serves as the
deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated
from Harbin Institute of Electrical Engineering in 1984 and joined
HE in the same year. He has been an engineer of the enginery
repairing workshop, the secretary and an assistant of the director
of the Communist Party Committee Office of former Boiler Works
of the Group. In 1994, Mr. Zhang participated in the reorganization
of HE to be a shareholding enterprise and the issuance and listing
of the Company's shares. Since November 1994, he has been
appointed as the deputy director of the general manager office,
the deputy director of the planning department and director of
the enterprise management department, and the director of the
auditing and law department of the Boiler Company of HE. In
1998, he was transferred to be a member of the HE's and the
Company’s Standing Communist Party Committee and director of
the organization department. In 1999, Mr. Zhang was appointed as
the secretary of the Communist Party Committee and vice chairman
of Archeng Relay Group Company and Archeng Relay Company
Limited of the Group. He has been served as the deputy general

manager of the Company since October 2000.

Mr. Liu Zhi-quan, born in July 1968, is a senior accountant and
master of business administration. He now serves as the deputy
general manager of the Company. Mr. Liu graduated from Harbin
Institute of Technology, majoring in industrial accounting with a
bachelor's degree. He subsequently obtained his MBA qualification
from the same university. He started his career in September 1991.
He has been an assistant of the director, the deputy director and
the director of finance department, and the deputy chief accountant
and director of finance department of the Boiler Company of the
Group. He was appointed as the deputy general manager of the
Boiler Company in April 2001. Mr. Liu has been served as deputy
general manager of the Company since September 2006.



EE -EENSAEBAE @)

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (continued)

BEEKE  —NOLhF R ALE  BL260
MEBRSHTIEMBE  REARF AR
B BEE-NE=F+AZNIE " —ANZ
FEXNERMEIRASR  BBEL B - EX
SERBERERKRRERE  WERERER
RAPRBRERZER - BER  WRERERER
BEEAREERREERK  WRABRERER
BEAERRBIEGHED  RREREREREER
AlEALE  KRERERERETARES
KR —TTLE+ _AREARFAER
IR o

B EE  —AARTFLALE  HAREZE -
SR TIZAMEAE - AR D AR - fitE
—HNNFENARERRBEMM TS - &
L2 RFMAREEE - it B ERH
BEIREELOARBNIETIZA - HEEEH
HABERE  TRFRE  —hAmFE-AE
ZAREIRERE  —AWNNE+ - ARERERE
B TIRAREFEARKEHERRILE  BE
HESHHARREMTRRRAKEERKLE
FEE AP RIS - ARIBIATIIER - AKIERIEE
B —ANNFE+ - AERRAEERIREAR
BEAREHEIALRE ST =40 AFEAK
B —EHFAARESRREZER —F
—ZFRARERRARIBLRE -

Mr. Han Jian-wei, born in June 1955, is a researcher & senior
engineer with a bachelor's degree. He now serves as the deputy
general manager of the Company. Mr. Han started his career in
October 1973. He graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology
in 1982 with a bachelor's degree. He has been a designer of the
design division, an installation worker and the deputy director of the
user service division and the head and director of the production
division of Harbin Boiler Company Limited of the Group. He has also
served as the vice chief economist, the deputy general manager,
the chairman and the general manager of Harbin Boiler Company
Limited. He has been served as the deputy general manager of the
Company since December 2007.

Mr. Qu Zhe, born in July 1962, is a senior engineer with a
master's degree. He now serves as the deputy general manager
of the Company. Mr. Qu graduated from Harbin Shipbuilding
Engineering Institute with a master’'s degree in August 1988 and
joined HE in the same year. He has been an assistant engineer,
business representative in Pakistan and engineer of Harbin Power
Station Equipment Import And Export Company, and served as
the deputy general manager of the company sine February 1994.
Since November 1994, he was appointed as the deputy manager
of operation and development department of Harbin Power
Engineering Company Limited, deputy general manager and deputy
manager of operation and development department of cycle power
plant project in UCH, Pakistan, deputy chief engineer, assistant
to general manager of the company. He serves as the executive
deputy general manager of Harbin Power Engineering Company
Limited in November 1999, general manager of the Company
in April 2003,and chairman and Party Secretary in September
2007. Mr. Qu has been served as deputy general manager of the
Company since June 2010.

010z Moday jenuuy paywi] Auedwo) juswdinb3 Jemod uigieH H



B30l (o785 M H 3 I (EEE S E

EE -EENSAEBAE @)

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (continued)

AFHE

BEEE  —NAtF=Ad4E ITHEEREL
B BIHERE  REARBARAMERRL
FEEE - BEE-NELRFR2NIE AN
FEXNRIEEVEMERR  AFMARESR
C BRASEREERBRANEE THEIIFE
ERE T - TRECBMIABRIRE - AFM
NEREE - BERIFHME - BAKEMNESE
B _EE=—FAARERRRPAETE " —
ZTRFZARRIEETSGNERTIML WAL
RIERBIWE -

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ma Sui, born in March 1957, is an associate professor and a
master of business administration. He now serves as the company
secretary of the Company and the director of office. Mr. Ma started
his career in 1976. He graduated from Northeast Heavy Machinery
Institute in 1982 and joined HE in the same year. He used to work
on staff training and corporate planning at the Group’s former
electrical machinery plant. He has been the vice chancellor of our
Staff College, the deputy director of office, the director of the
corporate planning department and the deputy chief economist of
the Company. He has been served as the director of office since
May 2003, and assumed two additional posts as the director of the
secretariat of the Board and the company secretary since March

and April 2006, respectively.
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The Directors are pleased to submit 2010 annual report and audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2010.

PRINCIPLE ACTIVITIES

The Company and its principal subsidiaries are mainly engaged in
manufacturing and sales of various kinds of power equipments and
power station engineering services, details of which are set out in
Note 10 to the financial statements.

All the activities of the Group are based in the PRC, where 81.61%
of the Group’s turnover is derived from.

The export sales of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2010 amounted to RMB5,299.49 million, representing 18.39% of
the Group's total turnover for the year. The Group's export markets
mainly include Asian and African countries.

SUBSIDIARIES

The Company has ten principal subsidiaries. Harbin Electrical
Machinery Co., Ltd is mainly in the field of manufacture and sales
of hydro generator units and steam turbine generator units. Harbin
Boiler Co., Ltd is mainly in the field of manufacture and sales of
boilers for power stations. Harbin Turbine Co., Ltd is mainly in
the field of manufacture and sales of steam turbine for power
stations. Harbin Power Engineering Co., Ltd is mainly in the field
of the turnkey construction of power station projects and complete
set of power station equipment. Harbin Power Plant Equipment
Corporation (QHD) Heavy Equipment Co., Ltd is mainly in the field
of manufacture and assembly of equipments such as large scale
thermal power, nuclear power and gas turbine. Harbin Electric
Machinery AC-DC Motor Limited Duty Company is mainly in the
field of manufacture and sales of medium-to-heavy-duty AC/DC
motors and nuclear power main pump motors. HE Harbin Power
Plant Valve Company Limited is mainly in the field of manufacture
and sales of valves for power stations. Harbin Power Equipment
National Engineering Research Center Co. Ltd (MERIB3EXE
BX TRMZEFOERAF]) is mainly in the field of research and
development of power equipment engineerisation technology.
Harbin Power Technology & Trade Inc. is mainly in the field of
trading. HEC Modern Production and Services Corporation is mainly
in the field of service businesses like power station maintenance,
reconstruction, and supply of equipment.
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As at 31 December 2010, details of the Company’'s principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 43 to the financial statements of the

annual report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND DISTRIBUTION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 56 of the annual report.

The Directors propose the distribution of profit after taxation and

non-controlling interests for 2010 as follows:

1. To transfer RMB27.22 million to the statutory surplus reserve.

2. The Directors propose a dividend of RMBO0.14 (including
applicable tax) per share for 2010 for shareholders who
registered on shareholder’ list on 13 April 2011; payment of
dividends totally amounted to RMB192.75 million. Shareholders
of H share will be paid in Hong Kong dollar; the exchange rate
used is based on average closing rate of the People’s Bank of
China during the five days preceding the date of 18 March 2011,
which is RMB1 for HK$1.1861. The dividend for every H share
will be HK$0.1661 (including applicable tax).

3. The Register of members of the Company will be closed from
13 April 2011 to 12 May 2011 (both days inclusive). Final
dividends for 2010 will be distributed to shareholders whose
names appear in the Register of members of the Company on
13 April 2011 before 15 July 2011. In order to qualify for the
final dividend for 2010, all completed transfers documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s Registrar, namely, Hong Kong Registrars
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong no later than
4:30 p.m., 12 April 2011.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of Directors and Supervisors are set out in the Section

“Director, Supervisors and Senior Managers” of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2010, none of the Directors, Supervisors and
senior management of the Company had any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures (as
the case may be) of the Company and/or of any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was
required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest and short
position which any such Director, Supervisor or senior management
is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
or which was required to be entered in the Register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which was required
to be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listing Companies

as contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

There are service contracts between every Director, Supervisor and
the Company, each with a term of three years effective from 11
December 2009. Besides this, there are no existing or proposed
service contracts between every Director, Supervisor and any

member company of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors or Supervisors of the Company has any
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in the contracts of
significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries is a
party during the year.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and Supervisors of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2010 are set out in Note

8 to the financial statements of the annual report.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID PERSONNEL

The details on the five highest paid personnel are set out in Note 8

to the financial statements of the annual report.

RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the retirement and benefit scheme are set out in Note 31

to the financial statements of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 12 to the financial statements of the

annual report.

RESERVES

The Company's reserves available for distribution are RMB582.47
million until 31 December 2010. Movements in the reserves of the
Company during the year are set out in Note 33(a) to the financial

statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financial highlights of the Group for the last five years are set
out in the Section “Financial Highlights” of the annual report.
BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group are set out
in Note 30 to the financial statements of the annual report.
PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold

or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or PRC Law, which would require the
Company to issue new shares to the existing shareholders

according to their respective proportions of shareholding.

MAJOR LITIGATION

There is no major litigation of the Group for the year.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The material contracts of the Group for the year are detailed in the
Sections “Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Disclosure

of Significant Events” of the annual report.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

1. The aggregate amount of purchases during the period
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers represented
14.62% of the Group's total purchases. Among which the
largest supplier is Yangzhou Chengde Steel Tube Co. Ltd,
representing 3.21%.

2. 21.18% of the total turnover of the Group during the period was
attributable to the Group's five largest customers. Amongst
which India’s ESSAR Group and Coast & Energy Co. were the

largest customers, accounting for 8.92% of the total turnover.

3. None of the Directors, Supervisors, their associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)

has any interest in above mentioned suppliers or customers.

PROCEEDS FROM THE H SHARES ISSUE

The use of listing proceeds of the Company for the period is
detailed in the Section “Management Discussion and Analysis” of

the annual report.
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ENTRUSTED DEPOSITS AND OVERDUE TIME DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2010, the Company had no entrusted deposits
in commercial banks or non-bank financial institutions and had no
due deposits that had not been withdrawn.

TAX POLICIES

According to the provisions of Administrative Measures with
regard to the Recognition of High and New Technology Enterprises
( (EFRITEERTEENML) ) jointly issued by the Ministry of
Science and Technology, the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration for Taxation of the PRC on 14 April 2008 and the
Administrative Guidance with Regard to the Recognition of High
and New Technology Enterprises ( (@i 2R T EE T (5
3[) ) jointly issued by the Ministry of Science and Technology, the
Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on 8
July 2008, the Company and 8 major subsidiaries of the Company
including Harbin Electric Machinery Co., Ltd, Harbin Boiler Co.,
Ltd, Harbin Turbine Co., Ltd, Harbin Electric Machinery AC-DC
Motor Co., Ltd and HE Harbin Power Plant Valve Co., Ltd were
re-recognised as High and New technology enterprises, which
entitles the Group to a 15% preferential income tax rate and this is
significant to its long-term development.

In accordance with regulations of the State Administration of
Taxation, the rate for tax rebate of the Group’s new export products
contracts is 13% since 15 October 2003.

Pursuant to the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on Value-
added Tax ( (FRZEAREMBUIGETEITHG) ) promulgated by the
Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on 18
December 2008, with effect from 1 January 2009, the Company and
its principal subsidiaries will be included in the general framework
of the value-added tax system reform and will start implementing
the new Implementing Rules of the Provisional Regulations of the
PRC on Value-added Tax ( (R ARKMBIEEETIRGIE G
B ), which allows the Company to deduct the value-added tax
incurred for the purchase of equipment. Other incentive policies
promulgated by various divisions of the state to implement the
Opinions of Central Committee of the Communist Party of China
and the State Council on the Revitalization Strategies for Historical
Industrial Bases of the Northeast Regions ( {FR LR « EHE AR
EiRIbinEEE T EEMREEMKNETER) ) (Zhong Fa (2003)
No.11) and support such revitalization will remain effective.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For details of the connected transactions, see Note 39 to the

financial statements of the annual report.

CONFIRMATION ON CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Independent Directors of the Company have reviewed the
connected transactions (as defined in the Listing Rules) referred to

in Note 39 to the financial statements and confirmed that:

1. Such transactions have been entered into by the Company in

the ordinary and usual course of its business;

2. Such transactions have been entered into either () on normal
commercial terms (which expression will be applied by
reference to transactions of a similar nature and to be made by
similar entities within PRC) or (ll) (where there is no available

comparison) on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the

shareholders of the Company are concerned; and

3. Such transactions have been entered into either (I) in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements governing such
transactions or (Il) (where there is no such agreement) on terms

no less favorable than terms available to third parties.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has already received annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director on his/her independence
confirming that his/her independence was in compliance with all
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
he/she is an independent person.

SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE

As of 31 December 2010, the share capital structure of the
Company comprised of 1,376,806,000 shares, of which 701,235,000
shares were held by the promoter (representing 50.93% of the
entire share capital) and 675,571,000 shares were held by overseas

H shares holders (representing 49.07% of the entire share capital).
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NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS

hold the most shares were as follows:

As at 31 December 2010, the top ten registered shareholders who

RE FRES
BRRERE Number of Percentage of B
Name of Shareholders Shares Shares Held Note
1. BREESREE QA 701,235,000 50.93% Bl A A AR
Harbin Electric Corporation State-owned
shares
2. HKSCC Nominees Limited 673,186,598 48.89% H f%
H shares
3. YIP CHOK CUIU 360,000 0.02% H iz
H shares
4. LAM MAN LAl 250,000 0.02% H %
H shares
5. LU NIM KWOK ALBERT 250,000 0.02% H %
H shares
6. CHEUNG YUM TIN 200,000 0.02% H f%
H shares
7. CHAN KAM SUEN 100,000 0.01% H iz
H shares
8. HO CHI KUN 100,000 0.01% H %
H shares
9. YIP KWAI WA 50,000 0.00% H %
H shares
10. MOK WING YI 50,000 0.00% H [%
H shares
11.YIH SIU LAl HAR 50,000 0.00% H iz

H shares
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INTEREST'S IN THE SHARE CAPITAL ANALYSIS OF
HOLDERS OF H SHARES (ACCORDING TO SHAREHOLDERS
LIST AT 31 DECEMBER, 2010)

e #1T

AE FRE HIR B 2t

Number of Number of Percentage to

el Scope shareholders share held Issued H shares

1-1000 1-1000 4 402 0.00%

1,001 - 5,000 1,001 — 5,000 55 144,000 0.02%

5,001 — 10,000 5,001 — 10,000 30 246,000 0.04%

10,001 — 100,000 10,001 — 100,000 32 934,000 0.14%

100,001 — A E 100,001 above B 674,246,598 99.80%

&t Total 126 675,571,000 100%
3l MODEL CODE

KRAEEER FEMBEFEHANIEEST The Company, having made specific enquiry, confirms that all

CEMR AN 8+ 1R E CREFRIDZ IRE -

EEEATERTH

RRARE2010F E M EEHE BT E BB
CEMRRBNHER KD ZEE R FE AR SFAY ©

G

AAREFEIRAZEMAEEEESTER
BRAR  BEREMABREEE(FE)&5t
EEBAER DA

AEEE®
EFER
ERE

Nl - MEE —2——&=A+/\H

members of the Board complied with the Model Code set out in

Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules throughout the period.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied throughout the year of 2010 with all
code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of the Stock

Exchange.

AUDITORS

The current PRC auditor of the Company is Crowe Horwath China
CPAs Co., Ltd, and the Hong Kong auditor is Crowe Horwath (HK)
CPA Limited.

By order of the Board
Gong Jing-kun

Chairman

Harbin, the PRC, 18 March 2011
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R ORTE  WABRREERBZAR X
RANRBERUARBEARNE - RRME
TEERERNTTR °

To all shareholders:

For the year ended 31 December, 2010 (the year), all members
of the Supervisory Committee (“the Supervisory Committee”)
of Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited (“the Company”)
carefully fulfilled their Supervisory Committee functions in the best
interests of the Company and minority shareholders as a whole
in accordance with the regulations of the PRC Company Law, the
Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the
Articles of Association of the Company. The Supervisory Committee
has carried out an all-around supervision on areas including assets
allocation, operation management, financial conditions and senior
management’'s work performance of the Company. In addition, the
Supervisory Committee participated actively in significant events of
the Company, such as the Company's production and management
etc. and gave a lot of positive opinions and suggestions, which
pushed forward the Company's work to smoothly develop.

For the Company’'s work during the year, the Supervisory
Committee presents the following independent opinions:

1. During the year, the Company strictly complied with the
nation’s laws and regulations, operated in accordance with the
procedures regulating listing companies, and duly executed
various resolutions passed at the shareholders’ meeting despite
the complex and ever-changing external situation. With the
priority of "adjusting structure, promoting transformation,
enhancing management and improving rating” and based on the
philosophy of scientific development, the Company confronted
every difficulty bravely. As a result, the Company has achieved
satisfying results from all works of the Company during the
year, contributing largely to the perfect finish of “11th five-year”
period and the good start of “12th five-year” period, running
business strong and excellent and laying a solid foundation for
the smooth and faster development.

2. The Supervisory Committee is aware that the directors,
managers and other senior management have actively carried
out their duties in the best interests of the shareholders. They
have carried out carefully the resolutions and decisions from the
shareholder’'s meetings and the Board of Directors. In addition,
they did not act against the nation’'s laws and rules and the
Articles of Association of the Company or damage the interests
of the Company, the shareholders and the employees.
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3.,

4.

The Supervisory Committee has reviewed the Company's
financial system and conditions and concludes that the
Company’s financial system has an integrated structure and
the financial works have been operated orderly according to
the internal control system and risk management. The annual
financial report and the dividend payment scheme proposed
by the Board of Directors for approval in the Annual General
Meeting, have objectively and comprehensively reflected the
financial position and operating results of the Company. The
dividend payment scheme has taken into account both the
interests of the shareholders and the Company's long-term
development. Both statutory surplus reserve fund provided
in the year have observed the provisions of the laws and

regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee has reviewed the Report of the
Directors and concludes that the report gives an objective and
true picture of the works performed by the Company during the

year.

The Supervisory Committee sincerely appreciates the trust

and support from every employee of the Company and the

shareholders. With positively exploring new supervisory approaches

and methods, the Supervisory Committee will consolidate resources

for supervisory and ensure the establishing and effective operation

of internal control and risk management system, so as to further

promote the standardized operation, laying a solid foundation for the

smooth implementation of the Company’s production and operation

EEESHm
FE
FEHK

R - B@E - —T——F=H+/\H

targets in 2011.
By order of the Supervisory Committee
Wang Zhi-sen

Chairman

Harbin, the PRC, 18 March, 2011
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The Company has improved and perfected the Company’s corporate
governing structure and standardized the Company's operation
through strictly complying with the Company Law of the People's
Republic of China, the Securities Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the relevant provisions of China Securities Regulatory
Commission.

During the year 2010, the Company fully complied with the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as set out in the Appendix XIV of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

ORGANIZATION CHART

E VN
Shareholders'
General Meeting

A A

E52g Exg
Board of Directors Supervisory Committee

General Manager

At A s R s s s A A

REIH STETED 35 BEEH BHEED v =g HA 8T =3 B
Planning Planning Marketing Quality  Technologies FHNES WER Projects Employees pg| i Supervisory
Department and Department  Department  Department General Secretarial ~ Department Department  Corporate  Department
Accounting Manager Bureau Culture
Department Office of the Department
Board of

Directors
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SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS’ GENERAL
MEETING

The Company protects shareholder’s interests, treats all
shareholders equally, and initiates participation of shareholders in
corporate governance and management. Shareholders as the owner
of the Company enjoy rights as laws and regulations provided and
shoulder commensurate obligations. The shareholders enjoy rights
to information and rights to decision-making for the Company's
important matters. The General Meeting of Shareholders is the
organ of authority of the Company, and it exercises its functions

and power according to laws.

The Harbin Electric Corporation, a state-owned company registered
in the People’'s Republic of China, is the controlling shareholder of
the Company.

In 2010, the Company held an Annual General Meeting and an

Extraordinary General Meeting.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The major duties of the Board of Directors are to exercise the
discretion in management decision of the Company according to the
authorization by the Shareholders’ General Meeting with respect to
the development strategies, management structure, investment and
financing, planning and financial control, which are set out in details

in the Articles of Association.

1. Composition

The Board of Directors is the sixth Board of Directors of the
Company since its establishment, which is composed of ten
Directors, five of which are independent Directors. The Company
held an Extraordinary General Meeting on 11 December 2009,
during which members of the sixth Board of Directors of the
Company were elected. The newly elected Directors serve a

term of three years from 11 December 2009.
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Positions of the Chairperson of the Board of Directors
and the General Manager are held by different individuals;
their responsibility and duty are distinct and separate. The
Chairperson of the Board of Directors presides over meetings
of the Board of Directors and reviews on the implementation
of resolutions passed by the Board of Directors. The General
Manager is responsible for management and coordination of the
operation of the Company, implementation of the resolutions
passed by the Board of Directors and making decisions on a
daily basis.

Biographies of the members of the Board of Directors are
included in the Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

section of this Annual Report.

Independent Directors

This session of the Company’s Board of Directors has five
Independent Directors. All the Independent Directors are
familiar with the powers and responsibilities of the directors and
independent directors of a listed company. During the reporting
period, all the Independent Directors attended the meetings
of the Board of Directors with the attitude of prudent and
responsible; they fully utilized their experiences and specialties,
contributed greatly towards the improvement and perfection of
the corporate governance mechanism and the important decision
making processes; they also provided pertinent, objective
advices with regard to important decisions and connected
transactions of the Company, further standardized the decision
making process of the Board of Directors and making this
process more scientific, therefore protecting the interests of the

Company and the shareholders as a whole.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the

Independent Directors about his/her independence.
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3. Meetings of the Board of Directors

During the year, five Board of Directors’ meetings were held
to discuss the overall strategies, investment plans, operation
and financial performance of the Company. The Independent
Directors have no dissenting opinions regarding any of the
Company's resolutions. Attendances of the meetings are as

follows:

2010FEEFHEEEFSZBLT Attendances of the meetings of the Board of Directors
during the year of 2010
E2mEZSRIH FEHRERE &R
EEHME Attendance Attendance in Attendance
Name of Director Required (No.) Person (No.) Ratio
BBt E Mr. Gong Jing-kun 5 5 100%
MZEE Mr. Zou Lei 5 3 60%
BOE S E Mr. Duan Hong-yi 5 3 60%
RESRE Mr. Wu Wei-zhang 5 5 100%
ke Mr. Shang Zhong-fu 5 4 80%
REELE Mr. Sun Chang-ji 5 5 100%
BERREE Mr. Jia Cheng-bing 5 5 100%
FRARL Ms. Li He-jun 5 4 80%
Tk E Mr. Yu Bo 5 4 80%
21BE R E Mr. Liu Deng-ging 5 4 30%

MEEERBBRANERRESATESS
VREFTEEE  BEREEHERTNHERE
B ERFER - UREREERBEEZRE - R
BEFINREFSAEBATALEREER -
FERFNREEST « ARRIEENEETEEME
EeARREBITIFERBEEEYSERBAER
% BUEANSEERBARRE -

The relevant information and current development of the statutory,
supervisory and other continuous responsibilities of the Company's
Board of Directors can be obtained by all Directors through the
Secretary of the Company in a timely fashion, so as all Directors
understand his/her duties, and the procedures of the Board of
Directors are properly implemented and applicable laws and
regulations are correctly complied. The Directors and the Board of
Directors’ special committees have the right to appoint independent
professional organizations for their service according to the
requirement of their duties; the reasonable costs incurred in those

occasions are born by the Company.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies set out in Appendix
X of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as a model code for Directors of
the Company. Specific enquiries have been made of all Directors,
who have confirmed their compliance with the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies during the
reporting period.

SPECIAL COMMITTEES UNDER THE BOARD

The Company has established four special committees, namely the
audit committee, the remuneration committee, the nominations
committee and the strategy development committee, whose
members are all Directors.

The Audit Committee of the sixth session of the Board of Directors
includes: Li He-jun, Liu Deng-ging and Duan Hong-yi. Two third of
the members of the audit committee are independent Directors and
Independent Director Li He-jun is the chairperson of the committee,
as in accordance with the stipulation of the Listing Rules, Article
3.21. During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings and
had reviewed the Group's annual and semi-annual results reports
and financial reports.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Company's Supervisory Committee consists of five supervisors,
of which two supervisors are representing staff and workers.

1. The Supervisory Committee Meeting in the period under
review

The Supervisory Committee held two meetings in the period
under review, the main contents of which are as follows:

(1) The meeting of the Sixth Section of the Supervisory
Committee was held on 9 April, 2010, which passed the
Company’s Report of the Supervisory Committee, Audited
Financial Reports and the summary of Annual Report for the
year 2009.

(2

The meeting of the Sixth Section of Supervisory Committee
was held on 6 August, 2010, which passed the resolutions
on the Company’s Interim Unaudited Financial Reports and
Interim Reports for the first half of 2010.
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2. EESHAF0105FEEREEENBELER 2. Independent Opinions of the Supervisory Committee to the
Related Matters of the Company in the Year 2010

(1) KR AL E SR (1) The Company’s Operating Validity
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According to related laws and regulations, the Supervisory
Committee has supervised and examined the convening
procedures of the General Meeting and the Board of
Directors Meeting 2010, resolution matters, the Board
of Directors’ implementation of the General Meeting
resolutions, the enforcement of the Company’s management
rules and the efficiency of the Company's operating and
managing, and the Supervisory Committee deemed that
the Company has operated strictly according with the
related provisions of the PRC Company Law, the Listing
Rules, the Articles of Association of the Company and other
regulations; that the Company operates under scientific and
proper decision making procedure; and that the Company
further perfected its internal management and built favorable

inner control system in 2010.

(2) Reviewing the Financial Situations of the Company

The Supervisory Committee carefully reviewed the
Company's Financial Balancing Report 2010, Profit
Distribution Scheme and the Audited Financial Reports 2010
(audited and submitted by Growe Horwath CPAS Co., Ltd),
which the Board of Directors arranged to submit to the
General Meeting. The Supervisory Committee deemed that
the Company's audited Financial Reports 2010 was true
and credible, which objectively presented the Company's
financial situations and business results. The Supervisory
Committee approved the Company’'s audited Financial
Reports submitted by accounting offices both at home and
abroad.

010z Moday jenuuy paywi] Auedwo) juswdinb3 Jemod uigieH H



HedroL0z (o7 B ¢ M O [EB B S H

NEE

B E )

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

(3) BRRAEGHRZBITIER

EFENRIIE T EERRENREAY
o ERGUREADRENTRE
FTEE  RAESRLBRANGHE
KERHE -

3. EEEETEERERR
ERSRREZNAAEREAARIES -
SEABETEE  RRARREE ®E
ABROERITRIS - RERBROERERM
RAEIBENTE » AREBRBERNRRF A
1T e

PR B 2 0 Py BB B 4%

EEQRRBEY REFARRINEIZEH R - B
i%V§§g RABAEBKLERT BT - 87
FAFERUARAI 2 HBEEERE  KENA
zipes %U/ﬁ@n’%fﬂ EEE - DABRARIEIME
BRENEAE - &80 W M1 2S5 &l
BRI - IR - BEEE |t E  RE
2 RES(EENIZEHERRE)NELK - K
AEIR20084 10 A 31 A 1A & ie A 26425 fll 51 28
HE - WESTEKBSMESAMAEE R
HEART o

(3) The Implementation of the General Meeting Resolutions

The members of the Supervisory Committee participated in
the Board of Directors Meeting and the General Meeting.
The Supervisory Committee supervised the implementation
of the General Meeting resolutions and deemed that the
Board of Directors could carefully carry out the General

Meeting decisions.

3. The Implementation of Supervisory Duties by the

Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee supervised the Directors and senior
managers of the Company in accordance with the related laws
and the Articles of Association of the Company, and deemed
that the Directors and senior managers of the Company carried
out their duties lawfully, without any act against the related laws
and regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company

or the interests of the Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board of Directors is responsible to establish and maintain the
internal control system of the Company, and to establish the Audit
Committee. The Company has established the audit department
internally, which monitors and supervises the disclosure of financial
information by the Company regularly or where necessary, as
well as operation and internal control activities, so as to ensure
the transparency of information disclosure externally, operation
efficiency and effectiveness in corporate control mechanisms.
According to the requirement of the basic specification of
corporation internal control of the Ministry of Finance, the China
Securities Regulatory Commission, the China National Audit Office,
the China Banking Regulatory Commission and China Insurance
Regulatory Commission, the Company had implementation of the
internal control assessment project from 31 October, 2008, and
employed PricewaterhouseCoopers to provide consulting service

about this project.



ARIERBHE @
Corporate Governance Report (continued)

G

2010512 R 14B A RAIBHAENEEEEE L
REE SHEBERRBFEASEE  RTEEME
B = EGAMERAERARIERSRRI20106
ERANFEGA - BEEEEE(HS)E5HAD
EEFTER R AIEARBI2010F EIHIMZEET -

RAT20105F FE 8 E AR 2 @K D FIR
B(hE g EANDMKE BB IHRELERDRS] -
YR EBEARA R EE S EHAAER
REMEEZBENEEEE(FE) tEh =T
BERAREZ °

FEREEET

ARARTE R ERRBEMEEREEREER
TE - BRERR\MERER ARERERLET
RAMERIRERTE - MAGEERERH 2
FOEE - ER - xE - RE - REARXFANE
B - SRR EERBEEETIED - REEM
THREARESMERRERS - BERFTETDH
KREE BER2EREERE  WEBRHRE:S

€% BUOXEHASEHERY  AREFMEA
RANRHFHANERAR - ARBERREM

RIZIBIBARINEFEERBNBRER  EZRW
B BIBETRERY - THEAARIAE
B REAAREEKF

AUDITORS

The Seventh meeting for the sixth section of the Board of Directors
was held on 14 December 2010. During the meeting, it was decided
that Crowe Horwath China CPAs Co., Ltd would be appointed as
the domestic auditor and Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited would
be appointed as the foreign auditor for the year 2010 pursuant to

the authority of the Shareholders’ General Meeting.

The financial statements included in the annual report of the
Company for the year 2010 were prepared according to PRC
Accounting Rules and Regulations and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, and were audited by Crowe Horwath China
CPAs Co., Ltd, the PRC auditor, and Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA
Limited, the Hong Kong auditor.

Information Publication and Supervision

The Company continuously improves information publication
management and enhances the investor communication
management. The Company discloses information on an open,
fair, true, accurate, complete and timely ground and strictly in
accordance with the related disclosure requirements of relative
laws and regulations, the Articles of Association of the Company
and Listing Rules, and improves the Company's transparency. In
order to improve investor relations, the Company issues its Interim
Report and Annual Reports timely, provides quality services to
investing visitors and participates in investor forums, and illustrates
to the investors the Company's latest development and vision
through telephone meetings and performance presentations. The
Board secretaries department of the Company is responsible for
the information publication and investor relations. The Company will
perform its duties, continuously enhance its governance structure
and improve its management strictly in accordance with related
laws and regulations of securities supervisory organizations at home

and abroad.
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Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Member Crowe Horwath International

BB SR BB335RAE 342
34/F The Lee Gardens,
33 Hysan Avenue,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HARBIN POWER EQUIPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
(A joint stock company established in the People’s Republic of China

with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Harbin
Power Equipment Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 190,
which comprise the consolidated and Company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2010 and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards

or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 31 December 2010, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 18 March 2011

Lau Kwok Hung
Practising Certificate No.: P04169
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-T-2F+-A=+-ALFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
FisE ARBT ARBT T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ON Revenue 4 28,815,543 28,629,522
D Cost of sales (24,665,786) (24,964,015)
EF Gross profit 4,149,757 3,665,507
H AU A KR A Other revenue and net income 5 948,150 568,962
EEEA Distribution expenses (483,997) (388,589)
EHREA Administrative expenses (2,686,530) (2,325,715)
HahERT Other operating expenses (410,931) (390,036)
B ST Finance costs 6(a) (132,321) (180,381)
il NG Share of results of associates 17 25,793 34,764
R 25 A& A Profit before taxation 6 1,409,921 984,512
A Income tax 7(a) (272,027) (226,871)
REERZF RS WS sast Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 1,137,894 757,641
EfREF Attributable to:
PAVNGI I SES TN Equity shareholders of the Company 1,024,498 606,206
FEFERR 2 Non-controlling interests 113,396 151,435
1,137,894 757,641
BREF Earnings per share
—EAR NS - Basic and diluted 9 RMB74.4cents RMB44.0cents
668 = 1908 MM =B A It S FS5 3R = M — 2P The notes on pages 66 to 190 form part of these financial
2 BFEERNEMNNENTFARBRNFTEAZ statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
B BB BT EES3(b) © the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in

note 33(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-Z-TF+-A=t+—~
At 31 December 2010

2010 2009
BiaE ARBT R AREEFTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
RBEE Non-current assets
wEME Investment properties 1M 4,991 248,724
ME - ME &E&iE Property, plant and equipment 12 4,815,171 4,261,254
Taf A E R Prepaid lease payments 13 367,348 342,018
A Intangible assets 14 90,321 98,881
EEFIITEE E Deferred tax assets 15 193,878 133,932
REEE R A 2 Interests in associates 17 328,490 179,079
FFHEERE Available-for-sale investments 18 35,941 27,074
5,836,140 5,290,962
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 20 12,562,801 14,230,160
FEURBR ZX Trade receivables 21 11,122,830 12,168,981
FEWE & Bills receivable 21 980,496 600,844
HAunpEUEk © e RFEFRIE Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments 21 4,506,705 4,852,058
BT E R Prepaid lease payments 13 12,058 10,176
EiEA RIEWR Amounts due from customers for
contract work 22 894,923 947,326
FEUG B Z B B A RIFE Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 23 112,920 76,908
PTESRT A Derivative financial instruments 19 104,276 -
RS EBH Trading securities 24 1,188,000 =
ZIRHIBITER Restricted bank deposits - 7,006
BIRIRIRITIFR Pledged bank deposits 25 249,294 526,229
RITIEK Bank deposits 26 1,090,000 3,653,595
ReRRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 26 11,425,774 10,612,136
44,250,077 47,585,419
nBAE Current liabilities
EEARENR Amounts due to customers for contract
work 22 1,274,290 509,964
FETERFR Trade payables 27 11,746,026 10,166,545
Hi e M ETE R Other payables and accrued charges 27 2,799,289 3,173,130
Bilire Deposits received 28 11,681,047 15,216,864
FE{ST R 22 B B A RIFIE Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 23 24,418 51,757
RIERR A BIFIB Advance from holding company 29 20,478 20,478
BR—FANERZER Borrowings — due within one year 30 507,005 1,288,579
EREiE Tax payables 32 815,084 592,313
28,867,637 31,019,630
MBEEFE Net current assets 15,382,440 16,565,789
HBRRBEEENAEE Total assets less current liabilities 21,218,580 21,856,751

0L0Z Moday jenuuy paliwi] Auedwo) yuswdinbl Jemod uigieH
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

RZZE—ZTF+=-A=+—H
At 31 December 2010

2010 2009
B s ARBT R AREEFTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FkRBEME Non-current liabilities
B iz e Deposits received 28 7,592,559 8,118,370
e UNGIE S| Advance from holding company 29 1,042,918 814,020
BR—FRERZER Borrowings — due after one year 30 1,549,909 2,707,099
10,185,386 11,639,489
EEFEE NET ASSETS 11,033,194 10,217,262
BAE & CAPITAL AND RESERVES 33
R AR Share capital 1,376,806 1,376,806
] Reserves 8,260,977 7,262,220
KAEIRRGD B AELERE Equity attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company 9,637,783 8,639,026
FEFERR M 2R Non-controlling interests 1,395,411 1,578,236
ERZEE TOTAL EQUITY 11,033,194 10,217,262
BEER_ZT——F=A+/\BHEREET Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18
2o March 2011.
REE EHRE
Wu Wei-zhang Shang Zhong-fu
EF EE
Director Director
F66 8= 1908 MM B UL S B 5 Rz M —3F The notes on pages 66 to 190 form part of these financial

N

p2Nd statements.
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RZZE—ZTF+=-A=+—H
At 31 December 2010

Statement of Financial Position

2010 2009
Pt 5 ARBT T ARETTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
FEREEE Non-current assets
ME - BB &E&E Property, plant and equipment 12 1,097,817 1,039,374
B A E R Prepaid lease payments 13 37,569 38,024
FEEFIE & B Deferred tax assets 15 10,696 =
RSB AR 2 S Interests in subsidiaries 16 2,657,269 2,413,428
RN i Interests in associates 17 161,559 85,105
FHEMRE Available-for-sale investments 18 21,246 17,879
3,986,156 3,593,810
MENEE Current assets
R Inventories 20 902,070 594,751
FEURBR ZX Trade receivables 21 340,183 433,762
B EE Bills receivable 21 6,350 1,500
HnpEUEk « e RFERIE Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments 21 93,654 392,216
TEfT A E R Prepaid lease payments 13 854 1,252
AN NGB Amounts due from subsidiaries 16 1,661,205 2,347,455
R EBE Trading securities 24 1,188,000 =
ReRRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 26 967,925 979,068
5,160,241 4,750,004
mEEE Current liabilities
e BRX Trade payables 27 123,521 312,345
Hith e R e E A Other payables and accrued charges 27 173,923 232,609
Blkize Deposits received 28 1,758,845 2,239,895
U GIEPNGIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 16 1,564,418 310,674
FER & Tax payables 32 15,820 17,521
3,636,527 3,113,044
hEBEEFEE Net current assets 1,523,714 1,636,960
HBRRBEEENAEE Total assets less current liabilities 5,509,870 5,230,770
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Statement of Financial Position (continued)

RZZE—ZTF+=-A=+—H
At 31 December 2010

2010 2009
BiaE AR¥T R AREEFTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FRBEME Non-current liabilities

RGN BIFRIE Advance from holding company 29 392,960 292,460
BR—FREBZER Borrowings — due after one year 30 33,784 33,784
426,744 326,244
EEEE NET ASSETS 5,083,126 4,904,526

BAREE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 33
il Share capital 1,376,806 1,376,806
s Reserves 3,706,320 3,627,720
EREE TOTAL EQUITY 5,083,126 4,904,526

EEEgRN T ——F=A T N\BHERKRETR
?é o

REE
Wu Wei-zhang
EF

Director

66 E =190 B A GEREAK UL SR 5 3R K A0 — &6

5 o

N

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18
March 2011.

BAPE
Shang Zhong-fu
BF

Director

The notes on pages 66 to 190 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

BE_Z-FTFt_A=1+—HLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

ARARGEE AR 2B
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
EERE
BrilE  QEE FERER
A RABE  Statutory Statutory  EfbEE  REEA Non- s
Share Share capital  surplus Other  Retained @3t controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETr ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETE
RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
RIFENE-F-HzEH Balance at 1 January 2009 1376806 1,980,295 709850 557,183 6,539 3505407 8,136,080 1,431,845 9567925
REEEHRGAR S Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - 606206 606206 151435 757,641
ARTHERERNRE Dividends distributed to non-controlling
interests - - - - - - - (5,044) (5,044)
REE ER Transfer between reserves = = - 1253 - [12531) - - -
& (MrsEa3(b) Dividends (note 33(bl) = = = = - (103,260)  (103,260) - (103.260)
R-BEAET-A=T-BR  Balance at 31 December 2009 and
“E-FF-A-ArER 1 January 2010 1376806 1980295 709850 569,714 6,539 3995822 8,639,026 1,578,236 10,217,262
rEERiRG A Yats Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - 1,024498 1,024,498 1133%6  1,137,8%
PRTHEERERNRE Dividends distributed to non-controlling
interests - - - - - - - (1317 (11,317)
REHER Transfer between reserves = = -0 - - - -
HEMEAR(H3E6) Disposal of subsidaries (note 36) - - - - - - - B3 B3
WERHBARNEIMER Acquisition of additional interest
(Miz3s) in the subsidiaries (note 35) - - - - 67882 - 67882 (281562)  (213,680)
Fr&(Hizkas(b)) Dividends (note 33(b)) - = - - - (93623 (936%3) - (93623
RZE-ZEF-A=+-Hz&H Balance at 31 December 2010 1376806 1980295 709850 596,936 74421 4899475 9,637,783 1395411 11,033,194

F66E =190 A EBA U FHBHRN—B

N

S o

The notes on pages 66 to 190 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity (continued)

BE—

—EET_A=t—HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2010

REFERBE  BREENZDEIRFOT :

(1) WEEE

(2) REVEEBRATESD

B) REEREHATEE R

(4) IREFEBBZAE ©

RBHPERXBDERMEARER - ARFREM
BREEARBI0% MR B EN (RET B S
ERETE) BAREERBRABEEEA -

EERBRAES SRR ERN—BD - BHEKRE
EZRRRFMERZ50%E - AITNEBRER ° 1R
BHEARNE  ZERKRABESA ANBERBAT
BB BRAEREBLYE  SGRBERN G
BRER - BERARBZEERBATECERAE
KB - ZEAARBRERNZ BT ELOREME
A"25% °

ERFREANRREEREEAR(RELKELR
ADAAEEER TRREXBFEENAA
BE  BERRBKIZEEETTREESERA
WEAEARBRHEERE 2 HHZEBELR

H At i AR IR B R AL RE MY /&8 & RIS ME =
EEZWBITE -

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the profit after taxation

is applied in the following order:

(1)  making up of losses;

(2) allocation to statutory surplus reserve;

(3) allocation to discretionary surplus reserve; and

(4) payment of dividends in respect of ordinary shares.

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the relevant Articles
of Association, the Company and its subsidiaries are required to
appropriate amounts equal to 10% of their profit after taxation as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting standards to

each statutory surplus reserve.

The application of the share premium account is governed by PRC

Company Law.

Statutory surplus reserve is part of shareholders’ equity and when
its balance reaches an amount equal to 50% of the Company’s
registered capital, further appropriation needs not be made.
According to the PRC Company Law, statutory surplus reserve
may be used to make up past losses, to increase production and
business operations or to increase capital by means of conversion.
However when funds from statutory surplus reserve are converted
to capital, the funds remaining in such reserve shall amount to not

less than 25% of the registered capital.

The statutory capital reserve represents the surplus arising from the
difference between the fair value of the net assets of the principal
business undertakings transferred from Harbin Electric Corporation
("HE") to the Group and the nominal value of the State shares

issued to HE by the Company when the Company was formed.

Other reserve represents the discount on acquisition arising from
the acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries from non-

controlling shareholders.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity (continued)

BE-_T—TF+_A=+—BIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

B L (3) K (4)78 B FEEFE 2 2 Bk Pl 4R R
BHEENEARFTREMBERRNEEE RN R
HREFZET - WARBBERASHE

EHABAEEREREREERBRATES R A
AR REMB ARG TREIRERS -

BB EESR—NANEFENREHRE BT HE
2N AR TRRZ S EABBEPESTE
AIFfst E 2 @B EE B ARG LRI E
2R MAENREEAE N-T—TF+=
A=+—8 A2ETARGEARMDIEE A2
HeBABBEES ARG ERMERE ZREBE
FIAR#582,468,000/t (ZEZNF : AR
431,090,0007T) ° f0 EXX Pt - SEE BB ATES
RETIER T IRARE TAREER o

AR A RREEEGRE B BEE T ARRA B
WA AREE272,223,000 L (ZEBEENE - AR
#125,310,0007T) Ay 7 (K1 7E33(a)) ©

The amount of appropriation in respect of items (3) and (4) above
for any year shall be recommended by the directors in accordance
with the operational conditions and development requirements of
the Company and its subsidiaries and shall be submitted to the

shareholders in general meeting for approval.

No dividends shall be paid by the Company and its subsidiaries
before they have made up their losses and made allocations to the

statutory surplus reserve.

Pursuant to a document issued by the Ministry of Finance in August
1995 in respect of profit appropriations, the amount available for
distribution to shareholders is the lesser of the amount determined
in accordance with the PRC accounting standards and the amount
determined in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. At 31 December 2010, the aggregate
amount of reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders
of the Company was RMB582,468,000 (2009: RMB431,090,000)
representing the retained profits of the Company prepared under
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. As also
mentioned above, the balance of statutory surplus reserve can also

be distributed to shareholders in certain situations.

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a profit of RMB272,223,000 (2009:
RMB125,310,000) which has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the Company (note 33(a)).

0L0Z Moday jenuuy paliwi] Auedwo) yuswdinbl Jemod uigieH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE-T-TFI_A=+—AILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
BitzE AR®TR ARETFT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
BEXBRERE Cash flows from operating activities
BR B AT A Profit before taxation 1,409,921 984,512
S Adjustments for:
RS Allowance for doubtful debts 6(c) 558,117 548,874
FERELERE Allowance for inventories 6lc) 120,899 30,776
BN+ E TS Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 13 12,058 10,707
BB EER Amortisation of intangible assets 14 12,993 22,023
BREBA Dividend income 5 (20) (1,298)
ME  BELRETE Depreciation for property, plant and equipment 12 455,844 374,589
REVMENE Depreciation for investment properties 11 181 16,060
b Finance costs 6(a) 132,321 180,381
HEWE « BE kS BEFRE Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 5 (5,877) (7,805)
HEREYF e Gain on disposal of investment properties 5 (550) (510)
HERBA RIS Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 36 (150,349) =
HERMN B E T Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments 5 - (8,437)
TEERGEH2ITESRTA Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments
DREEKE not qualifying as hedges 5 (104,276) =
EVEEREESE Impairment loss recognised in respect of intangible
assets 14 3,945 -
FEHA Interest income 5 (278,138) (266,543)
ME  BERRESH Property, plant and equipment written off 6(c) 5,937 2,300
HETESRTIAEE Realised loss on disposal of derivative financial
instruments 6(c) - 1,659
RHUBEDABELZYERE Fair value losses on trading securities 5 7,000 -
W BB LR ERERER R Reversal of impairment loss of property, plant and
equipment 5 (1,110) (1,714)
iy NG Share of results of associates (25,793) (34,764)
2,153,103 1,850,810
’“Eﬁﬁﬁiﬂ Movements in working capital
SR/ () Decrease/(increass) in inventories 1,191,006 (1,319,718)
JT&‘H&EE,TA,@ /(3 h0) Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 473,560 (362,899
EALESACYI (Increase) in bills receivable (379,652) (239,520)
HivEUG - ke REBAFERD Decrease in other receivables, deposits and
prepayments 323,151 1,684,279
BiEE RERER Decrease in amounts due from customers for contract
work 52,403 98,653
FENE A DB IER A/ (3E40) Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from associates 1,646 (7)
FEN R Z B A Bl ZE (12 n) (Increase) in amounts due from fellow subsidiaries (36,012) (10,555)
BESREMTUEM (L) Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to customers for
contract work 764,326 (247,092)
JE SRR FIE N Increase in trade payables 1,807,694 2,451,435
HinENZRESERORL) /2 (Decreasel/increase in other payables and accrued
charges (188,978) 1,117,494
B eEA0: 1) (Decrease) in deposits received (3,995,963) (380,863)
FENRZKBATZECRD) /& (Decreaselfincrease in amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries (27,339) 1,688
WiER S B Purchases of trading securities (1,195,000) -
e BB S E b A A B 12 A Increase in value added tax and other taxes payable 132,362 299,850
REERMEE RS Cash generated from operations 1,076,307 4,943 555
B EER PRC income taxes paid (221,982) (310,094)
REXBELHETE Net cash generated from operating activities 854,325 4,633,461
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

BE-_T—TF+_A=+—BIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
BitzE AR®TR ARETFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
REXBCHERE Cash flows from investing activities
HERBEARERFHETA Net cash inflow from disposal of interests in
associates 1,065 -
HEMBLARZFRERA Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries 36 54,456 =
RITETORD /() Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits 2,463,595 (473,674)
MEHA Interest received 278,138 266,543
HENE - BEREERER Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment 12,462 21,521
HERBEMERER Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 1,774 7,109
HEBN LA ERFRER Proceeds from disposal of prepaid lease payments - 11,197
R A=YNET )N Dividend received from associates 8,513 6,228
BFHEEHRERE Dividend received from available-for-sale investments 20 1,298
BERETEZRD /(Em) Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits 276,935 (41,974)
WS E R Purchases of available-for-sale investments (8,867) =
BEVE  BEKRE Purchases of property, plant and equipment (1,012,146) (847,308)
B LA ERE AN Additions to prepaid lease payments (39,270) (5,513)
BEEWEE Purchases of intangible assets (8,378) (6,681)
XRHFITFERRD Decrease in restricted bank deposits 7,006 7,562
HEFTESBT A2 Payment on disposal of derivative instrument - (4,792)
RS AREE Capital injected to an associate (135,000) =
RELBEL /(A 2BE 38 Net cash generated from/(used in) investing
activities 1,906,303 (1,058,484)
MEXRVHERE Cash flows from financing activities
HIBBITER New bank loans raised 579,063 343,986
AR ERR Other loans raised 292,972 99,354
IR B A B Z FEIMER Purchases of additional interests in subsidiaries (213,680) -
REERR A R FRIBIE AN Advance from holding company 228,898 514,308
EBERBIER Repayment of bank loans (2,376,999) (829,927)
BHAFIE Interest paid (145,602) (180,381)
EBEEMER Repayment of other loans (206,702) (23,050)
ERARARRGOFEARE Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the Company (93,623) (103,260)
B IR RS HOR & Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (11,317) (5,044)
MEXR (TR 2B 3E Net cash (used in) financing activities (1,946,990) (184,014)
HeRBSSENEMTEE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 813,638 3,390,963
ENRERASEZEN Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year 10,612,136 7,221,676
NEEXZHTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes - (503)
EREERBEELEEN Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 11,425,774 10,612,136
EXRBERBSEE/BNZAN Analysis of cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year
Be RBTFT G Cash and bank balances 8,091,814 9,286,037
RITHR Bank deposits 3,333,960 1,326,099
26 11,425,774 10,612,136

E66HE
)

190 H A MY FERB AR L B R S ¥R A0 — 8D

statements.

The notes on pages 66 to 190 form part of these financial
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_T—TF+_A=+—BIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was established as a joint stock company in the
People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC"”) and its H shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its parent
and ultimate parent company is Harbin Electric Corporation
("HE"), a state-owned enterprise established in the PRC.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate

information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), rounded to the nearest thousand unless
otherwise indicated. RMB is the Company’s functional and

presentation currency.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries are
mainly engaged in manufacturing and sales of various kinds of
power equipment and provision of power station engineering
services. The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries and

associates are set out in notes 43 and 17, respectively.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by

the Group is set out below.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2010 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the

Group’s interests in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out

below:

- financial instruments classified as available-for-sale
or as trading securities (see note 2(g)), and

- derivative financial instruments (see note 2(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent

from other sources. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty

are discussed in note 41.

Business combinations

Business combinations on or after 1 January 2010

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are

generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their

acquisition-date fair values, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities arising from
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a
business combination and the potential tax effects
of temporary differences and carry forwards of an
acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or arise as
a result of acquisition are recognised and measured

in accordance with HKAS 12, “Income Tax";
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations on or after 1 January 2010

(continued)

o liabilities or assets relating to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in

accordance with HKAS 19, “Employee Benefits”;

° liabilities or equity instruments relating to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions
of the Group are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2, “Share-based Payment" at the acquisition

date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”

are measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if

any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or

loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations on or after 1 January 2010

(continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity's net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value or
another measurement basis required by another Standard.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within entity separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company.

Business combinations prior to 1 January 2010

Acquisition of businesses was accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition was
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs
directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that met the relevant conditions for recognition

were generally recognised at their fair value at the

acquisition date.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations prior to 1 January 2010

(continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
cost of the acquisition over the Group's interest in the
recognised amounts of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after assessment,
the Group's interest in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceeded the cost of the acquisition, the excess

was recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The minority interest in the acquiree was initially
measured at the minority interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree. Minority interests
are presented in the consolidated statement of financial

position within entity.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential
voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into

account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions

are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but

only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests (previously known as “minority
interests”) represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those interests
which would result in the Group as a whole having a
contractual obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at their
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(g))
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
investments in associates (see note 2(e)).
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

In the Company’'s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(m)), unless the investment
is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal

group that is classified as held for sale).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control,

over its management, including participation in

the financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee's
identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if
any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post-
acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee's
net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment (see notes 2(m)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees, any impairment
losses and the Group's share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investee’'s other comprehensive

income are recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Associates (continued)

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group's long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former investee at the date when significant
influence is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate.

Goodwill

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(m)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in

the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g)

Investments in equity securities

The Group's and the Company’s policies for investments
in equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries

and associates, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless fair
value can be more reliably estimated using valuation
techniques whose variables include only data from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction
costs, except where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,

depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of
each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does
not include any dividends or interest earned on these
investments as these are recognised in accordance with

the policies set out in note 2(w)(vi) and 2(w)(vii).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the
statement of financial position at cost less impairment
loss (see note 2(m)). Dividend income from these
investments is recognised in profit or loss in accordance

with the policy set out in note 2(w)(vi).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the

Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they

expire.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

(i)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period, the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting , in which case recognition of any resultant
gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being
hedged.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(l)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use
and property that is being constructed or developed for

future use as investment property.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at
cost less subsequent accumulated deprecation and
any accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(m)).
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over the estimated useful lives of
20 years using the straight-line method. The accounting
policy for rental income from leasing of investment

properties is set out in note 2(w)(iv).

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the

period in which the property is derecognised.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment

I[tems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(m)):

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion
of production overheads and borrowing costs (see note
2(y)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in

profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over

their estimated useful lives as follows:

3.23%-6.47%
6.47%—-13.86%
10.78%-19.40%
16.17%-19.40%

Buildings
Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life

of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

(k)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress comprises direct costs of
construction during the period of construction and
installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to the relevant
class of property, plant and equipment when substantially
all of the activities necessary to prepare the assets for
their intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided in respect of construction in progress until it is

completed and substantially ready for its intended use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(i) Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets, comprising patents, with finite
useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (see note 2(m)). Amortisation
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
that are acquired separately are carried at cost less

accumulated impairment losses.

Patents with finite useful lives are amortised on a

straight-line basis over 5 to 15 years.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

(ii)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as

an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the

following have been demonstrated:

— the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for

use or sale;

— the intention to complete the intangible asset

and use or sell it;

—  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

- how the intangible asset will generate probable

future economic benefits;

—  the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and

to use or sell the intangible asset; and

—  the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its

development.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Research and development expenditure
(continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible assets is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible assets are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (see note 2(m)), on the same
basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets that are acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from goodwill
and are initially recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (see note 2(m)), on the same
basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognition.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

n

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series

of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group

determines that the arrangement conveys a right to

use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of

time in return for a payment or a series of payments.

Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of

the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of

whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating

leases, with the following exceptions:

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the

accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease term except where the property is

classified as an investment property (see note 2(i)) or

is held for development for sale (see note 2(n)(ii)).
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2. EEEEFBERGE) 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) EERE (m) Impairment of assets
(i) PRZFFRERAMERHE (i) Impairment of investments in equity securities
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and other receivables

Investments in equity securities (other than
investments in subsidiaries: see note 2(m)(ii)) and
other current and non-current receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified
as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one

or more of the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; and

—  significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below

its cost.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities

and other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in associates recognised
using the equity method (see note 2(e)), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment as a
whole with its carrying amount in accordance
with note 2(m)(ii). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with note
2(m)(ii).

- For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost are

not reversed.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities

and other receivables (continued)

— For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’'s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried at amortised cost
share similar risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have

been determined had no impairment loss been

recognised in prior years.
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EEGHHEGE) 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) EERE(E) (m) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) RZEFFREREMENBE (i) Impairment of investments in equity securities
(5&) and other receivables (continued)
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(ii)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade receivables
and bills receivable included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade receivables and bills
receivable directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

- prepaid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held under an operating lease;

- intangible assets;

- investments in subsidiaries (except for those
classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for
sale); and

- goodwill.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use
and intangible assets that have indefinite useful
lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual

fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if

determinable.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not

reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’'s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are

recognised.

(n) Inventories

(i) Manufacturing of power equipments

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost

formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of

conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in

the ordinary course of business less the estimated

costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Inventories (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Manufacturing of power equipments (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal

Occurs.

Property under development

Properties under development are investments
in freehold land, leasehold land and buildings on
which construction work and development have
not been completed. Properties under development
comprise prepayments for leasehold land and
land use rights that are measured at amortised
cost less accumulated impairment losses, and a
component in respect of the building that is stated
at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Cost comprises construction costs and amounts
capitalised in respect of amortisation of leasehold
land prepayments and borrowing costs incurred
in the acquisition of qualifying assets during the
construction. On completion, the properties are
reclassified to investment properties, property, plant
and equipment or completed properties held for sale
at the then carrying amount. The prepayments for
leasehold land and land use rights in relation to the
property, plant and equipment are reclassified to
leasehold land and land use rights and are accounted
for as operating leases. Any difference between the
fair value of the investment property and its carrying
amount at the date of reclassification is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Inventories (continued)
(iii) Completed property held for resale

Completed properties held for sale are initially
measured at the carrying amount of the property at
the date of reclassification from properties under
development. Subsequently, the prepaid leasehold
land component is measured at amortised cost
less accumulated impairment losses; the building
component is carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less
selling expenses.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an
asset or a group of assets, where the customer is able to
specify the major structural elements of the design. The
accounting policy for contract revenue is set out in note
2(w)(iii).
can be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised

When the outcome of a construction contract

as an expense by reference to the state of completion
of the contract at the end of the reporting period. When
it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense immediately. When the outcome of a
construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of
costs incurred plus recognised profit less recognised
losses and progress billings, and are presented in the
statement of financial position as the “Gross amount due
from customers for contract work” (as an asset) or the
“Gross amount due to customers for contract work” (as
a liability), as applicable. Progress billings not yet paid by
the customer are included under “Trade receivables”.
Amounts received before the related work is performed

are presented as “Deposits received”.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(q)

(r)

(s)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note
2(m)), except where the receivables are interest-free
loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial.
In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 2(v)(i), trade and other payables
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated

statement of cash flows.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions

to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment of
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plan

The employees of the Group which operates in
PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local government. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the

central pension scheme.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,

and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax

losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and

are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which

the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or
in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable

that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will

be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution

of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the

related dividends is recognised.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following

additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(v)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt

instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred
income within other payables. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group's policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of

any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 2(v)(iii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in other payables in respect of that guarantee

i.e. the amount initially recognised, less accumulated

amortisation.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(ii) Contingent liabilities assumed in business
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(iii)

combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at
the date of acquisition are initially recognised at
fair value, provided the fair value can be reliably
measured. After their initial recognition at fair
value, such contingent liabilities are recognised at
the higher of the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation where appropriate, and
the amount that would be determined in accordance
with note 2(v)(iii). Contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination that cannot be reliably fair
valued or were not present obligations at the date
of acquisition are disclosed in accordance with note
2(v)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or
the Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic

benefits is remote.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue

and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue

is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(ii)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
at the customers’ premises which is taken to be
the point in time when the customer has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade

discounts.

Sale of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties held for
sale is recognised in profit or loss when all of the

following criteria are met:

—  the significant risks and reward of ownership of

the properties are transferred to purchasers;

- neither continuing managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership
nor effective control over the properties are

retained,

- the amount of revenue can be measured

reliably;
— it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the

Group ; and

—  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect

of the transaction can be measured reliably.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Revenue (continued)

(ii) Sale of properties (continued)

Revenue from sale of properties excludes business
tax and is after deduction of any trade discount.
Deposits and instalments received from purchasers
on properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the consolidated

statement of financial position under other payables

and accrued charges.

(iii) Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction contract can be

estimated reliably:

- revenue from a fixed price contract is
recognised using the percentage of completion
method, measured by reference to the
percentage of contract costs incurred to date to

estimated total contract costs for the contract;

and

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only

to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is

probable will be recoverable.

(iv) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent

rentals are recognised as income in the accounting

period in which they are earned.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Revenue (continued)

(v) Service income

Service income is recognised when services are

provided.

(vi) Dividends

—  FLEMREZRBEWARK
SR ER FRIA 2 #E 7| B 37 By T
71,
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(vii) FIEHA
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PREERR

- Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to

receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the

investment goes ex-dividend.

(vii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

(viii) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognised in profit

or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of

reduced depreciation expense.

0L0Z Moday jenuuy paliwi] Auedwo) yuswdinbl Jemod uigieH




EOHE Y S (B

BEoLoC

2.

B 7% 3R 3% B & F (s

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T—TF+_A=+—BIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

EREHBR(E)

(x)

(y)

SNE]RE

FANINERZRXZAMEXE
B MINEEEZEREERARA
BRBERREXRHRE - EABER
BRFRER -

AIMNEIBE KA E 2 FEREE
RABRERRS B ZEXTHRE o I
BHEEAAABEINTZIFEEER
ENEE  ARZAAEBEEERH
ZEREITIE o

EENDEN

NEZRERE  HERRELARBEE
(HREEDRKSBREREBSE AR
EREHHE) B ERKA - BE
AMERZBEZBBAKA > B tEK
AR EEE SR RFEX -

BRABREENAR— DB
ARZEERXESL  BRRAEL
REBEER AN ERENKIHEMBEA
MWEBTIFETHRRARESRE - ©
EEEREERABEREHFEEMR
WA AR AR 4 T IE k5T
B ERAESEERFLEEARML -

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

(y)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit

or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the

dates the fair value was determined.

Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in

the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare

the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are

interrupted or complete.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(z)

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)  the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group
or exercise significant influence over the Group in
making financial and operating policy decisions, or
has joint control over the Group;

(i)  the Group and the party are subject to common

control;

(i) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint

venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under
the control, joint control or significant influence of
such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control

or significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is
for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the

entity.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(aa) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business and

geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share

a majority of these criteria.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued two revised HKFRSs, a number of
amendments to HKFRSs and two new Interpretations that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. Of these, the following developments are

relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

HKFRS 3 (revised 2008), “Business combinations”

° Amendments to HKAS 27, “Consolidated and separate
financial statements”

e Amendment to HKAS 39, “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement — eligible hedged items”

° Improvement to HKFRSs (2009)

o Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (“HK Int 5”), “ Presentation
of financial statements — Classification by the borrower

of a term loan that contains a repayment on demand

clause"
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period
(see note 42), except for HKAS 24 (Revised), “Related Party
Disclosure" as follows:

The Group has early adopted paragraphs 25 to 27 of HKAS
24 (Revised) in respect of partial exemption from certain
disclosure requirements for government-related entities. A
government-related entity as defined in HKAS 24 (Revised) is
exempt from some of the detailed disclosure requirements
in relation to certain transactions and outstanding balances
(including commitments) between the entity and a government
that has control, joint control or significant influence over the
entity; and between the entity and another entity over which
the same government has control, joint control or significant
influence.

The amendment to HKAS 39 has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial statements as the amendment’s conclusions
were consistent with policies already adopted by the Group.
The other developments resulted in changes in accounting
policy but none of these changes in policy have a material
impact on the current or comparative periods, for the following
reasons:

° The impact of the majority of the revisions to HKFRS 3
and HKAS 27 have not yet had a material effect on the
Group's financial statements as these changes will first
be effective as and when the Group enters into a relevant
transaction (for example, a business combination or a
disposal of a subsidiary) and there is no requirement to
restate the amounts recorded in respect of previous such
transactions.

e  The impact of the amendments to HKFRS 3 (in respect of
recognition of acquiree’s deferred tax assets) and HKAS
27 (in respect of allocation of losses to non-controlling
interests (previously known as minority interests) in
excess of their equity interest) have had no material
impact as there is no requirement to restate amounts
recorded in previous periods and no such deferred tax

assets or losses arose in the current period.
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Further details of these changes in accounting policy are as

follows:

° As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 3 (revised 2008),
any business combination acquired on or after 1 January
2010 will be recognised in accordance with the new
requirements and detailed guidance contained in HKFRS
3 (revised 2008). These include the following changes in

accounting policies:

—  Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection
with a business combination, such as finder's fees,
legal fees, due diligence fees, and other professional
and consulting fees, will be expensed as incurred,
whereas previously they were accounted for
as part of the cost of the business combination
and therefore impacted the amount of goodwill

recognised.

- If the Group holds interests in the acquiree
immediately prior to obtaining control, these
interests will be treated as if disposed of and re-
acquired at fair value on the date of obtaining
control. Previously, the step-up approach would have
been applied, whereby goodwill was computed as if

accumulated at each stage of the acquisition.

- Contingent consideration will be measured at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes in
the measurement of that contingent consideration
unrelated to facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date will be recognised in profit
or loss, whereas previously these changes were
recognised as an adjustment to the cost of the

business combination and therefore impacted the

amount of goodwill recognised.
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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- If the acquiree has accumulated tax losses or other
temporary deductible differences and these fail to
meet the recognition criteria for deferred tax assets
at the date of acquisition, then any subsequent
recognition of these assets will be recognised
in profit or loss, rather than as an adjustment to

goodwill as was previously the policy.

- In addition to the Group's existing policy of
measuring the non-controlling interests (previously
known as the “minority interests”) in the acquiree
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets, in future
the Group may elect, on a transaction by transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interest at fair

value.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS
3 (revised 2008), these new accounting policies will be
applied prospectively to any business combinations in the
current or future periods. The new policy in respect of
recognition in the movement of deferred tax assets will
also be applied prospectively to accumulated tax losses
and other temporary deductible differences acquired in
previous business combinations. No adjustments have
been made to the carrying values of assets and liabilities

that arose from business combinations whose acquisition

dates preceded the application of this revised standard.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 27 (amended 2008),
the following changes in policies will be applied as from 1
January 2010:

If the Group acquires an additional interest in a
non-wholly owned subsidiary, the transaction
will be accounted for as a transaction with equity
shareholders (the non-controlling interests) in their
capacity as owners and therefore no goodwill will be
recognised as a result of such transactions. Similarly,
if the Group disposes of part of its interest in a
subsidiary but still retains control, this transaction
will also be accounted for as a transaction with
equity shareholders (the non-controlling interests)
in their capacity as owners and therefore no profit
or loss will be recognised as a result of such
transactions. Previously the Group treated such
transactions as step-up transactions and partial
disposals, respectively.

If the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
transaction will be accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that subsidiary, with any remaining
interest retained by the Group being recognised at
fair value as if reacquired. In addition, as a result of
the adoption of the amendment to HKFRS 5, if at
the end of the reporting period the Group has the
intention to dispose of a controlling interest in a
subsidiary, the entire interest in that subsidiary will
be classified as held for sale (assuming that the held
for sale criteria in HKFRS 5 are met) irrespective of
the extent to which the Group will retain an interest.
Previously such transactions were treated as partial
disposals.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in
HKAS 27, these new accounting policies will be
applied prospectively to transactions in current or
future periods and therefore previous periods have

not been restated.
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

° In order to be consistent with the above amendments to
HKFRS 3 and HKAS 27, and as a result of amendments
to HKAS 28 “Investments in associates”, the following

policies will be applied as from 1 January 2010:

- If the Group holds interests in the acquiree
immediately prior to obtaining significant influence,
these interests will be treated as if disposed
of and reacquired at fair value on the date of
obtaining significant influence. Previously, the step-
up approach would have been applied, whereby
goodwill was computed as if accumulated at each

stage of the acquisition.

- If the Group loses significant influence, the
transaction will be accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with any
remaining interest being recognised at fair value
as if reacquired. Previously such transactions were

treated as partial disposals.

Consistent with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 3 and
HKAS 27, these new accounting policies will be applied
prospectively to transactions in current or future periods

and therefore previous periods have not been restated.
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other changes in accounting policies which are relevant to the

Group’s financial statements are as follows:

e As a result of the amendments to HKAS 27, as from 1
January 2010 any losses incurred by a non-wholly owned
subsidiary will be allocated between the controlling and
non-controlling interests in proportion to their interests
in that entity, even if this results in a deficit balance
within consolidated equity being attributed to the non-
controlling interests. Previously, if the allocation of losses
to the non-controlling interests would have resulted in a
deficit balance, the losses were only allocated to the non-
controlling interests if the non-controlling interests were
under a binding obligation to make good the losses. In
accordance with the transitional provisions in HKAS 27,
this new accounting policy is being applied prospectively

and therefore previous periods have not been restated.

o As part of "“Improvements to HKFRSs" issued in 2009,
HKAS 17, "Leases" has been amended in relation to the
classification of leasehold land. Before the amendments
to HKAS 17, the Group was required to classify leasehold
land as operating leases and to present leasehold land
as prepaid lease payments in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The amendments to HKAS 17 have
removed such a requirement. The amendments require
that the classification of leasehold land should be based
on the general principles set out in HKAS 17, that is,
whether or not substantially all the risks and rewards

incidental to ownership of a leased asset have been

transferred to the lessee.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The application of the amendments to HKAS 17 has had
no impact on the amounts reported in current and prior
years as the Group has no leasehold land that qualifies for

finance lease classification in current and prior years.

Hong Kong Interpretation 5, “Presentation of financial
statements — Classification by the borrower of a term
loan that contains a repayment on demand clause” (“HK
Int 5”) clarifies that term loans that include a clause that
gives the lender the unconditional right to call the loans
at any time (“repayment on demand clause”) should be
classified by the borrower as current liabilities. The Group
has applied HK Int 5 for the first time in the current year.

HK Int 5 requires retrospective application.

In order to comply with the requirements set out in HK
Int 5, the Group has changed its accounting policy on
classification of term loans with a repayment on demand
clause. In the past, the classification of such term
loans were determined based on the agreed scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. Under
HK Int 5, term loans with a repayment on demand clause

are classified as current liabilities.

The application of HK Int 5 has had no impact on the
reported financial position or profit or loss for the current

and prior years as the Group did not have such kind of

term loans at the end of the reporting period.
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REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the

amounts received and receivable for goods sold and services

rendered by the Group to customers during the year, net of

taxes and sales returns, and an analysis of the Group's revenue

for the year as follows:

2010 2009

AR¥TR ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB'000

HEEm Sales of goods 21,116,828 20,741,812
EiEA R A Revenue from construction contracts 7,691,199 7,629,850
L EYMEMS AR Gross proceeds from sales of properties - 202,628
WEYER S RITA Gross rental income from investment properties - 40,801
RHERBWA Revenue from services rendered 7,516 14,431
28,815,543 28,629,522

HE_Z-—TF+-_A=+—HItFE  #
ERFRAEBETHRSBBAEEEE
EBRARI0% (BT NE  £) o

For the year ended 31 December 2010, there was no customer

with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's

revenue (2009: Nil).
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HE-T-2F+-A=+-ALFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Hablr A\ RS 5. OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME
2010 2009
ARBT T ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Hi A Other revenue
B U A Interest income 278,138 266,543
EUR R EBEFABRZ Total interest income on financial assets not
SREEZBFBUA at fair value through profit or loss 278,138 266,543
EWA Compensation income 60,617 _
LRSS RELA Dividend income from unlisted equity securities 20 1,298
BB AT ARG PRC government subsidy 334,518 252,253
HipZEBHA Other income 29,279 9,880
702,572 529,974
HitFlA (&8) Other net income/(loss)
HEWE  BEN&REFUWE Net gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 5,877 7,805
HEREME TR Net gain on disposal of investment properties 550 510
HETEN LR EFF RS Net gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments - 8,437
FERI S EF (ER) A Net (loss)/profit from sale of scrap materials
and others (9.584) 20,522
HERTE A al s (FfEF36) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) 150,349 -
TEEHREEZITE Fair value gains on derivative financial instruments
SMTEZAREEKE not qualifying as hedges 104,276 _
W -~ BB RS ERE Reversal of impairment loss of property, plant and
&5 18 ] equipment 1,110 1,714
R HUBE AR BEEEEIE Fair value losses on trading securities (7,000) =
245,578 38,988

948,150 568,962
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE-F-FFT-A=+—ALFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

6. BaBiEIEFI 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
M ADRE MR (GEA) AT &IE Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
2010 2009
ARBT T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
(a) Brfsxii (a) Finance costs
HRIT R EAAE RS Interest on bank and other borrowings:
S
—HRAFAEIER — wholly repayable within five years 126,912 144,131
—BRAFREIHER - not wholly repayable within five years 18,690 39,282
FEURARBETABRZ Total interest expenses on financial liabilities
SRIBEZ AR BT not at fair value through profit or loss 145,602 183,413
B REEIRAERE Less: interest expense capitalised into
ZH B H construction in progress (13,281) (3,032)
132,321 180,381
RNEEEAREHERK AT B — R EEE R Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the
B4 WABKRIERLTS% (Z TN ¢ general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a
4.86%)EEEEBIREEN capitalisation rate of 4.78% (2009: 4.86%) per annum to

expenditure on qualifying assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-FTFt_A=1+—HLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

6. PBaBiRIRA(E) 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)
2010 2009
ARBT T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(b) BIMZA (b) Staff costs
BIRA(BIEEZER Staff costs including directors’ and
EEE ) (FI5E8) supervisors' remuneration (note 8) 1,324,596 1,172,907
RIKEFET 2 Retirement benefit scheme contributions 256,978 229,713
8T Total staff costs 1,581,574 1,402,620
(c) HAEE (c) Other items
REREH Allowance for doubtful debts 558,117 548,874
FEREER Allowance for inventories 120,899 30,776
A B Amortisation of intangible assets 12,993 22,023
TEA b FA & SR Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 12,058 10,707
E:tE Auditors’ remuneration 2,520 2,500
FERKA Cost of inventories* 24,665,786 23,013,191
BT E Depreciation for investment properties 181 16,060
ME - BEMRETE Depreciation for property, plant and equipment 455,844 374,589
HEMTESRT AR Realised loss on disposal of derivative
financial instruments - 1,659
fE N, R85k Net foreign exchange loss 95,830 700
EmREEREEE Impairment loss recognised in respect of
intangible assets 3,945 -
M - WE KR Property, plant and equipment written off 5,937 2,300
MEFREER Research and development expenses 650,239 463,633
t HFEXRASEEBEINAK  TERE #  Cost of inventories includes RMB1,360,119,000 (2009:
HASX AL ARE1,360,119,0007T (= RMB1,234,581,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and
T NF : AR#1,234,581,0007T) - amortisation expenses, which amount is also included in the
ZEBEMHINALEXSHEZEERN 2 W respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in

S Hi7E6(b) B B i TR 2 S IH 4B 5E o note 6(b) for each of these types of expenses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-FTFt_A=1+—HLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

7. BEXEWRRZAEHIE 7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a) #REZEWEERZTIEE (a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income represents:

2010 2009
ARBT T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B EA 5 18 Current tax
TS HL PRC enterprise income tax
— RNEE RS — provision for the year 360,907 239,022
— ARTEE %52 — overprovision in respect of prior years (28,934) (12,056)
331,973 226,966
ELEBLIR Deferred tax
R RES RO Origination and reversal of temporary
(Ff3zE15) differences (note 15) (59,946) (95)
272,027 226,871
RZZFENF+—A=+—H ' ARRHER On 21 November 2008, the Company was named as one of the
ERRMEMEE - RER=ZTZTLF=A High and New Technical Enterprise (B#1Hfli1>%). According
TRBEM 2 PBEEEMRFRE  AQFH to the PRC Law on Enterprise Income Tax promulgated on 16
—EENF-—A—BRBZ=FANEX15% March 2007, the Company is entitled to a concessionary rate
RIBEHE o of enterprise income tax at 15% over 3 years, beginning on 1
January 2008.
ANEERRFELHB AR FEX15% 2 T K5 Except for certain subsidiaries which are subject to an
RS RASN « AR B R E M E A enterprise income tax rate of 15%, other subsidiaries located
AIZABLE FER BB AR R 25% (=T 1, in the PRC are subject to the PRC enterprise income tax at a

F : 26% ) B P BEFEFTEH o rate of 25% (2009: 25%) on its assessable profits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T-—THF+_A=1+—BIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

GEXEWBRZAEBIE(E)

(b)

(c)

REARERFEZHETHESHE
Az HERIE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit

at applicable tax rates:

2010 2009
AR¥T R ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R B BT A Profit before taxation 1,409,921 984,512
RERARRTE 2 A Tax at applicable tax rate 172,500 112,703
i NI ES = Eap iy Tax effect of share of results of associates
W2 (3,665) (5,215)
TERTFWA ST IENE Tax effect of non-taxable income (80,027) (30,718)
PAIHIF S B S R A R R 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 158,044 98,333
— XA E AR ERIEE S Effect of tax exemptions granted to
-4 a PRC subsidiary - (39,962)
AR EE [ ARFER T B 518 Utilisation of tax losses not previously
0% recognised (24,815) (3,744)
AERATRIBEREFHREOTE  Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 78,924 107,530
PABTEE Z=HR Over-provision in respect of prior years (28,934) (12,056)
ERHES Actual tax expense 272,027 226,871
REERBGERBE_EZENF+—A (¢) According to Circular Guoshuihan [2008] No. 897 “Notice

75 B 245 2 B % B4 [2008] 25 897 57K 8
R BEEREERRINMHBRIFEREZE
RERIRERERMRACEMREHE
FAREREE) - FEERMZEMEIN
HIRFEE R ERRIRE —TT/\Fk
LATR FERR B0 - FEIZ10% IR =X
HMRBEEMRER - Bt - RARR
=BT N\FRUABRFERER -
£10% KB R R INRBDZEFISH

on the issue about withholding Corporate Income Tax
on the dividends paid by Chinese resident enterprises
to overseas non-resident enterprises H-share holders”
issued by State Administration of Taxation on 6 November
2008, where a Chinese resident enterprise pays dividends
for the year of 2008 or any year thereafter to its H-share
holders which are overseas non-resident enterprises, it
shall withhold the enterprise income tax on the basis of
10% of the dividends. In accordance with this circular, the
Company would withhold the enterprise income tax with
tax rate of a 10% when it pays dividends for the year of

2008 or any year thereafter to its overseas non-resident

enterprise H-shares holders.

0L0z Moday |enuuy paywi] Auedwo) yuswdinb3 Jemod uigieH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T-2F+-A=+-ALFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

ESREEHM
REKERBERXZMARRAEZ LTR
AT EmRA]) REE R BHEDIFE 16115
BEZAFEEERESEHMMT

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ and supervisors' remuneration for the year,

disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

“Listing Rules"”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance, is as follows:

BIRER
I&H SHEIR
Hi®FE Contributions
Salaries to retirement
e and other benefits HE
Fees benefits schemes Total
AR%ET R AR%T R AR®T R ARET R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E-ZF 2010
HITES Executive directors
EMmELE Mr. Gong Jing-kun - - - -
PEAE Mr. Zou Lei - _ _ _
Bt®EL Mr. Duan Hong-yi - - - -
[Elakiapitaa Mr. Shang Zhong-fu - 467 16 483
REEEE Mr. Wu Wei-zhang - 561 16 577
- 1,028 32 1,060
BYFHTES Independent non-executive directors
REEXE Mr. Sun Changsji - - - -
FRALL Ms. Li He-jun - - _ _
ks Mr. Yu Bo - - - -
BERIREE Mr. Jia Cheng-bing - - - -
FEFERE Mr. Liu Deng-ging - - - -
£ Supervisors
B EE Mr. Chen Guang - 172 16 188
TEREE Mr. Wang Zhi-sen - - - -
=BT AE Mr. Gao Xu-guang - 148 16 164
EFELL Ms. Lu Chun-lian - 258 16 274
GoBREAE Mr. Xu-Er-ming - - - -
- 578 48 626
- 1,606 80 1,686




Bt 75 R R M R (a0

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T-2F+-A=+-ALFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

8. EEREEIMNE) 8. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION
(continued)
RIKEF
TEH FTEIfER

Hb®F%E  Contributions
Salaries to retirement

e and other benefits mE
Fees benefits schemes Total
ARBTIT ARBFIT ARBFIT ARBFIT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
—2BNE 2009
HITES Executive directors
EmEEE Mr. Gong Jing-kun - - _ _
PxEE Mr. Zou Lei - - _ _
BoftE Lt Mr. Duan Hong-yi - - _ -
ElakEpe Mr. Shang Zhong-fu - 464 14 478
REELE Mr. Wu Wei-zhang - 519 14 533
- 983 28 1,011
BAFHTES Independent non-executive directors
BEELE Mr. Sun Changsji _ . _ _
FEELL Ms. Li Hequn _ . _ _
kL Mr. Yu Bo - - _ _
B REAE Mr. Jia Cheng-bing _ . _ _
2B RE Mr. Liu Deng-ging _ . _ _
EE Supervisors
RS Mr. Chen Guang = 151 14 165
FEREE Mr. Wang Zhi-sen - - _ _
BB TE Mr. Gao Xu-guang = 129 14 143
EEERL Ms. Lu Chun-lian = 234 14 248
BBREA Mr. Xu-Er-ming - - - -
- 514 42 556

= 1,497 70 1,567
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BE_Z-FTFt_A=1+—HLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

EEREEHMNE)

AEE  BEEEXEENRLFABNRE
AHH - AEETEARRRIESHEET
N - ERREMASINBAREE 2 2285
SAFRRERA(E

T

5 P B4 {8 1| 2 5 3 BB 481,000,000
I °

bEEmHMALT  HP2R(ZFFThH
F BR)MRARFNESTRES @ KEMN
o EHRE o HER3R (T NF - &)
AR MAEREMT

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION

(continued)

During the year, no director or supervisor waived or agreed
to waive any emolument and no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the directors or supervisors of the Company
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

None of the directors had remuneration of more than
HK$1,000,000 for any of both years.

Of the 5 individuals with the highest emoluments, 2 (2009:
5) are also directors or supervisors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed above. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the remaining 3 (2009: Nil)

individuals are as follows:

2010 2009

ARET T AREEFTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

TEEHMEFE Salaries and other benefits 1,401 =
RIRTEFIET I GERN Contributions to retirement benefit schemes 48 =
1,449 -

AEEREHMNIE(ZBBAF - M)A
THHHBEIENT -

The emoluments of the 3 (2009: Nil) individuals with the

highest emoluments are within the following bands:

2010 2009

0787 021,000,000 7T

HK$Nil - HK$1,000,000 3 =
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10.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T-—THF+_A=1+—BIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

sikEF
(a) EXZREF

EAGRAEFDIRAFERR R E
BROFBAEAEBGERFOARE
1,024,498,0007L( =TT NF : AR
# 606,206,000 7T ) & B & 17 h0#E F
B %1 $21,376,806,000 8% (Z T Z 1,
& : 1,376,806,0008% )51 & -

(b) #EEBREF

HE_Z-ZTFS+_A=+—HKZ=
ZEAF A=+ —HIORES
B BECRTEEEEN T AR
BEERBNEEASRANER -

SERE

R BHRE o R IRFS ERPT Bl D E R E T -
REASBETIELERRE  WARAE
£ ERUERERDERFERBRFE—
Bz AR ENE2HO N REBRATHE
BRI S D RAEL 28 o AR B BT
EEDEEETAVBK A T EA AR E D E -

o AKNEXHRE — RENEIHRE

o KEEXHRE — HEKEZERE

o TUTRERYE — RHESUTEER

BR#%

o  EUWEHANE — RESUEHEMNEL
ERtE ERtE

. RERBRR — REIERERR

9.

10.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of approximately RMB1,024,498,000 (2009:
RMB606,206,000) and on the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 1,376,806,000 (2009: 1,376,806,000)
in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009, and
diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings
per share.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products and
services). In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the directors of the
Company, the Group's chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has presented the following five reportable
segments. No operating segments have been aggregated to
form the following reportable segments.

o Main thermal power

manufacturing of main thermal

equipment power equipment.
o Main hydro power — manufacturing of main hydro
equipment power equipment.
° Engineering services — provision of engineering
for power stations services for power stations.
° Ancillary equipment - manufacturing of ancillary
for power stations equipment for power stations.
° AC/DC motors and — manufacturing of AC/DC motor
others and others.

010z Moday jenuuy paywi] Auedwo) juswdinb3 Jemod uigieH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE—

10. HEPIRE(E)

(a)

IHEER - BEERAE

Eytuﬂé"*ﬁi’%ﬁ&"*ﬁfﬁ D EEE RN
C ARBESFRA N EEEREA
ENRZFE BERARE

g'{ oif

DMEEBREMBERY BREAER
MEEE  MERBERR 2R &
HEERE RHUHBF - TEER
TR BEREEERAMEEEE
ZERBRIN o HHABBEMEBIDH
ETEERESTBMESE ZENEK
o EETRIEREAM BN - B E
AREWZS  URBAD S EEEE
2B o

PEZEEEIBZBARFAXZTIZ2E
ARENMZHEERRAXIAZDHE
EELZ TR -

DEE R R ERBELELEN, (B
B) ] [EREEERTN,(BE) 1T
KEZ%%'/(JESTE)%%%EWS\E;‘HE
EBRER DR 2HE - EEHZ
NERE BERZBEME A RE
AR RE S RITHBURA » IR H A
EOEREEREZOM N HHEHEEZ
EBTN2ERMEE TIHFALZEMU
AIEBERREER -

WED A2 R IRR M T2 AR
Bz &t ERAR o

T—ZF+_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

10. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the Group's
directors monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the following

bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of interests
in associates, available-for-sale investments, trading
securities, derivative financial instruments, deferred tax
assets and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include trade payables, accruals and other payables,
accrued charges and deposits received attributable to
the manufacturing and sales activities of the individual
segments and borrowings managed directly by the

segments, with the exception of income tax payable.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or

amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is

"adjusted operating profit/(loss)”. To arrive at “adjusted

operating profit/(loss)”, the Group's profit/(loss) are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as share of results of associates,
directors’ and auditors’ remuneration and other head
office or corporate administration costs. Taxation charge is
not allocated to reporting segments. Inter-segment sales
are priced with reference to prices charged to external

parties for similar orders.

The accounting policies of the reporting segments are

the same as the Group's accounting policies described in

note 2.
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BE_Z-FTFt_A=1+—HLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

10. PEHE(E) 10. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a) APEE - EEREEB(E) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
RBE_ZE—ZTFT-_A=+—HBK Information regarding the Group's reportable segments
—EEAF+_A=1+—HIEHME as provided to the Group's directors for the purposes
FERAEEESREEEASEEA of resource allocation and assessment of segment
HEDL 2 ERAEEERD R RE performance for the years ended 31 December 2010 and
HEERBENT - 2009 is set out below.

—E-2F 2010
RETH KEEXH BT EIHEA
R B FR 5 RERE REREH
Main Main  Engineering Ancillary REf
thermal hydro services equipment AC/DC
power power for power for power motors wit
equipment equipment stations stations and others Total

ARBTL  ARBTR  ARWMTR  ARETR  AR®TR  AR®TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

REIMFEE 2 WA Revenue from external customers 17,984,152 2,362,495 5,060,211 919,028 2,489,657 28,815,543
D ERYA Inter-segment revenue 3,655,382 - - - - 3,655,382
AREDBRA Reportable segment revenue 21,639,534 2,362,495 5,060,211 919,028 2,489,657 32,470,925
ARED DA Reportable segment profit 2,534,295 596,378 170,478 307,563 541,043 4,149,757

ME - BERREHE  Depreciation for property, plant

and equipment 314,336 66,856 11,904 8,933 53,815 455,844
RENFRE Depreciation for investment

properties - - - - 181 181
B EESHE Amortisation of intangible assets 11,038 271 - 568 1,116 12,993
BN THASHEE  Amortisation of prepaid lease

payments 7,097 1,612 41 234 3,074 12,058
RIRER Allowance for doubtful debts 441,736 40,375 (1,079) 18,546 58,5639 558,117
BREERESSR Impairment loss of intangible

assets - - - - 3,945 3,945
ARENHEE Reportable segment assets 25,458,150 3,031,678 3,853,640 969,260 3,739,975 37,052,703

AEEIERE D Additions to non-current segment
BEEM assets during the year 638,313 80,816 31,797 12,808 309,341 1,073,075

THRESBEE Reportable segment liabilities 26,382,460 2,955,454 3,803,714 1,060,681 2,620,820 36,823,129
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BE_Z-FTFt_A=1+—HLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

10. PEIWE(E) 10. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(a) DEEE BEREB(E) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
—ETNEF 2009

KEXH KEEH BUTEE  EUHEA

*f B A5 RERE REME
Main Main Engineering Ancillary REM
thermal hydro services equipment AC/DC
power power for power for power motors @it
equipment equipment stations stations and others Total

ARBTT  ARBTT  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETT  AR%TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

BIMIEEZMA  Revenue from external customers 19,220,791 1,893,429 4,299,673 1,251,301 1,964,328 28,629,522
DERRA Inter-segment revenue 1,736,527 - - - - 1,736,527

Z|

BENBRA Reportable segment revenue 20,957,318 1,893,429 4,299,673 1,251,301 1,964,328 30,366,049

OE RV Reportable segment profit/
(&518) (loss) 2,572,874 437,991 (60,962) 316,106 399,498 3,665,507

¥ BERRETE Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment 271,128 43,687 10,329 13,135 36,310 374,589
REMENE Depreciation of investment

properties - - - - 16,060 16,060
BB R Amortisation of intangible assets 17,813 218 = 1,288 2,704 22,023
BRI HMETEE  Amortisation of prepaid lease

payments 8,490 1,296 40 385 496 10,707
REERE Allowances for doubtful debts 390,798 46,730 35,622 22,218 53,506 548,874
ARENHEE Reportable segment assets 28,354,652 2,438,448 4,576,856 1,498,732 3,133,281 40,001,969

AEEFRE D Additions to non-current segment
EELEM assets during the year 563,920 99,329 8,094 16,245 171,914 869,502

AREFBEE Reportable segment liabilities 29,811,273 2,692,148 3,036,218 1,675,755 1,728,146 38,943,640
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(b)

AHREDHUA - BEHRHEERER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T—TF+_A=+—BIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

10. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit

ZHER or loss, assets and liabilities
2010 2009
AR¥T R AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
PN Revenue
BRI ON Reportable segment revenue 32,470,925 30,366,049
1 iH D FPREUWA Elimination of inter-segment revenue (3,655,382) (1,736,527)
A EER Consolidated turnover 28,815,543 28,629,522
i Al Profit
A] ¥y 25 50 50 i Al Reportable segment profit 4,149,757 3,665,507
B Finance costs (132,321) (180,381)
A SNCIE Share of results of associates 25,793 34,764
REENHRAREEER Unallocated head office and corporate
expenses (2,633,308) (2,535,378)
LRABRT AR A Consolidated profit before taxation 1,409,921 984,512
BE Assets
AIRED I EE Reportable segment assets 37,052,703 40,001,969
i) /N P Interests in associates 328,490 179,079
BEFIIEE E Deferred tax assets 193,878 133,932
THEESRT A Derivative financial instruments 104,276 -
R 5 E7E Trading securities 1,188,000 =
FIHEHERE Available-for-sale investments 35,941 27,074
REED MBI N DEEE Unallocated head office and corporate assets 11,182,929 12,534,327
LA EE Consolidated total assets 50,086,217 52,876,381
=R Liabilities
AMmESEAE Reportable segment liabilities 36,823,129 38,943,540
EREEH Income tax payables 408,567 298,577
RepHETREERRE Unallocated head office and corporate liabilities 1,821,327 3,417,002
PR =F Consolidated total liabilities 39,053,023 42,659,119

0L0Z Moday jenuuy paliwi] Auedwo) yuswdinbl Jemod uigieH
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BE_Z-FTFt_A=1+—HLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

10. HEPIRE(E)
(c) HEER

TREIBERAEERBIEETF K
ARAEBEFRBEEMELRZE
£ o AERERF A RIZAEHR
BREMRERERS S - AEEZ
FRBEEBREME  BEER
REWE  ENLHHEERRELE
BRI ERNZEE 2 WIEA
B ARERBE QT 2SR RZ
B ARz EE PR o

10. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(c)

Geographical information

The following is an analysis of geographical location of
the Group’s revenue from external customers and the
Group’s non-current assets. The geographical location
of customers is based on the location at which the
services were provided or the goods delivered. The
Group's non-current assets, which include property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, prepaid lease
payments and intangible assets, and exclude financial
instruments and deferred tax assets. The geographical
location of the Group's non-current assets are based on
the physical location of the asset under consideration in
case of tangible assets and the location of the operation
to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible
assets. In the case of interests in associates, it is the

location of operations of such associates.

REMPEFZWA FERENEE
Revenue from external Non-current
customers assets
2010 2009 2010 2009

ARBTR ARETIT AR¥®TR ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

REEA (Frie) PRC (place of domicile)
=2NEhs =g Overseas

23,516,049 24,303,858 5,606,321 5,129,956
5,299,494 4,325,664 - =

28,815,543 28,629,522 5,606,321 5,129,956
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-FTFt_A=1+—HLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

11. BREYE 11. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REE The Group
AREFIT
RMB'000
2% Cost
R=ZZETNF—A—H At 1 January 2009 342,540
HeE Disposals (7,680)
R-_ZZNFE+_A=+—8H At 31 December 2009 334,860
R-ZZE—ZTF—HA—H At 1 January 2010 334,860
HeE Disposals (8,337)
BB EN B AR MBUEER Derecognised through disposal of subsidiaries
(Ffi5£36) (note 36) (320,808)
R-E—SH5+=-H=+—H At 31 December 2010 5,715
R EREEESE Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
RZETNF—HA—H At 1 January 2009 71,157
N E A Charge for the year 16,060
H & B B o] Written back on disposals (1,081)
RZBZNF+=A=+—H~ At 31 December 2009 86,136
RZZE—ZTF—HA—H At 1 January 2010 86,136
RF S AR Charge for the year 181
= i 3 (] Written back on disposals (1,113)
o B A R 1 (B 5E36) Written back on disposals of subsidiaries (note 36) (84,480)
R-E—=SF5+=-H=+—H At 31 December 2010 724
BREFE Net book value
R-—Z—ZF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2010 4,991
RZTENF+=_A=+—H At 31 December 2009 248,724
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T—TF+_A=+—BIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

1. BEWVEE)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

11. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
EEeRAEREMEZRAEEEN (a) The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
AEEHREE - investment properties approximate their fair value.
REYEZERMESWTOT - (b) The analysis of carrying amount of investment properties
is as follows:
2010 2009
AR®T T AREETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERERFE L Land in the PRC:
FREAFA %Y Medium-term leases 4,991 230,729
EERAE A Short-term leases - 17,995
4,991 248,724
DUREHEHE 2 REYHE (c) Investment properties leased out under operating
leases
REBUKEHERHEEME - & The Group leases out investment properties under
EHE—ROLRBE—ZERF  WH operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
TR RRERNEEZERE  BRE period of 1 to 5 years, with an option to renew the lease
BHIIAIEFEE ABEMNEER after that date at which time all terms are re-negotiated.
FERAEE - None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
REBRBET L EHERN K The Group's future minimum lease payments under non-
SEAMWHESHT cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:
2010 2009
ARBT T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
1A Within 1 year 115 45,130
1F A ESF AR After 1 year but within 5 years 207 149,913
5P E After 5 years - 270,400
322 465,443

REWHER

R-ZE—ZFTF+-_A=+—8 " &K
HEAR®A4227000T(ZEEFH
&£ AR#170,442,00070) 25 T
BEMEERPEAREEBITREZ
IR - FEEEKIFES0

(d) Pledge of investment properties

At 31 December 2010, certain investment properties
with a total carrying amount of RMB4,227,000 (2009:
RMB170,442,000) were pledged as collateral for the
Group’s bank borrowings, details of which are set out in
note 30.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T—TF+_A=+—BIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

INEE The Group
B £B
BERE k&
R Furniture, E®HIA KEIR
e Plant and fixtures and Motor Construction ast
Buildings machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETTT ARETT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BA Cost
RZZEENF—F—H At 1 January 2009 1,418,940 3,332,923 311,742 250,249 1,420,049 6,733,903
NE Additions 11,232 60,020 31,197 35,527 709,332 847,308
STk Transfer upon completion 377,232 634,204 13,648 12,346 (1,037,430) -
bk Write-off (3,423) (25,673) (9,250) (7,369) = (45,715)
HE Disposals (4,558) (16,530) (4,348) (8,700) - (34,136)
RZZZNF+-F=+—H At 31 December 2009 1,799,423 3,984,944 342,989 282,053 1,091,951 7,501,360
RZZ—ZF—F—H At 1 January 2010 1,799,423 3,984,944 342,989 282,053 1,091,951 7,501,360
NE Additions 34,022 58,130 53,831 18,930 860,514 1,025,427
STk B B Transfer upon completion 109,176 385,694 20,119 31,956 (546,945) =
FANENBEARMIVERR  Derecognised through
(Fi#E36) disposal of subsidiaries
(note 36) (2,996) (1,599) (2,596) (3,117) = (10,308)
HE Disposals (1,940) (51,277) (11,667) (12,554) = (77,438)
R-ZZE-FE+=-A=+—H At 31December 2010 1,937,685 4,375,892 402,676 317,268 1,405,520 8,439,041
2 MERBEFE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss
RZZENFE—F—H At 1 January 2009 598,632 2,010,153 157,751 160,062 4,468 2,931,066
RERRE Charge for the year 48,378 255,664 39,421 31,126 - 374,589
(B 18 B A Reversal of impairment loss (26) (1,651) 2) (35) - (1,714)
ki Write-off (2,458) (24,975) (9,014) (6,968) - (43,415)
HER# [ Written back on disposals (305) (8,868) (4,300) (6,947) = (20,420)
NZZEZAE+-FA=1+—H At31 December 2009 644,221 2,230,323 183,856 177,238 4,468 3,240,106
RZE-—TF—F—H At 1 January 2010 644,221 2,230,323 183,856 177,238 4,468 3,240,106
AEERE Charge for the year 67,456 311,565 42,129 34,694 - 455,844
(B8 [ ¢ Reversal of impairment loss - (1,108) (2) - - (1,110
HENTB A IR E (fit336)  Written back on disposals of
subsidiaries (note 36) (619) (1,196) (2,281) (1,958) - (6,054)
HERE[ Written back on disposals (1,404) (41,621) (11,304) (10,587) - (64,916)
R-ZE-FFE+=-A=1+—H At 31December 2010 709,654 2,497,963 212,398 199,387 4,468 3,623,870
REFE Net book value
R-ZE-ZFF+-F=+—H At31December 2010 1,228,031 1,877,929 190,278 117,881 1,401,052 4,815,171
RZZEENE+=A=F—H At 31 December 2009 1,155,202 1,754,621 159,133 104,815 1,087,483 4,261,254

0L0Z Moday jenuuy paliwi] Auedwo) yuswdinbl Jemod uigieH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-FTFt_A=1+—HLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

12. Y% - REREEE) 12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
PN The Company
B KB
BERE e
R Furniture, BHIE HEIR
EEEE Plant and fixtures and Motor Construction #sr
Buildings machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total

ARETT  ARETRT ARETT ARBTE ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

B Cost
RZZZNFE—F—A At 1 January 2009 206,790 9,884 23,882 6,701 727,071 974,328
NE Additions 536 - 572 1,538 123,347 125,993
TR Transfer upon completion 325,643 174,116 - - (499,759) -
HE Disposals - - - (1,423) - (1,423)
RZEZNF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2009 532,969 184,000 24,454 6,816 350,659 1,098,898
RZZE—ZF—F—H At 1 January 2010 532,969 184,000 24,454 6,816 350,659 1,098,898
NE Additions 9,696 2,156 4,744 1,023 91,396 109,015
HE Disposals (536) (6,922) = (498) = (7,956)
R=ZF-FF+=-H=1+—H At31December 2010 542,129 179,234 29,198 7,341 442,055 1,199,957
R HERRERSE Accumulated depreciation

and impairment loss
R-ETh&E—f—H At 1 January 2009 35,493 2,454 4713 4,086 - 46,746
REERRE Charge for the year 11,627 764 840 613 - 13,844
HE R Written back on disposals - - - (1,066) - (1,066)
RZZTAF+-_F=+—H At 31 December 2009 47,120 3,218 9,351 3,633 - 59,524
R=_ZE—ZFF—f—AH At 1 January 2010 47,120 3,218 5,553 3,633 - 59,524
KEFRRE Charge for the year 17,5634 25,085 540 724 - 43,883
HER# [ Wiritten back on disposals (692) (92) = (483) = (1,267)
R-Z-FF+-H=+—H At31December 2010 63,962 28,211 6,093 3,874 - 102,140
BRERE Net book value
R=ZF-FF+=-H=1+—H At31December 2010 478,167 151,023 23,105 3,467 442,055 1,097,817

RZZTAFFZA=1T—H At 31 December 2009 485,849 180,782 18,901 3,183 350,659 1,039,374
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

13. FEffLHEER 13. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

TEE The Group

AREFIT

RMB'000

2% Cost
R=ZZETNF—A—H At 1 January 2009 488,269
INE Additions 5,513
H & Disposals (3,247)
RZZZENFE+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2009 490,535
RZE—ZF—HF—H At 1 January 2010 490,535
NE Additions 39,270
NR-—E—ZFFE+_H=+—8H At 31 December 2010 529,805
sty Accumulated amortisation
RZETNF—HA—H At 1 January 2009 128,121
IR E S Amortisation for the year 10,707
H & B 3% o] Written back on disposals (487)
RZZZNF+_A=1+—H At 31 December 2009 138,341
RZE—LTF—-H—H At 1 January 2010 138,341
NS EEH Amortisation for the year 12,058
NR-E—ZFFE+-_HF=+—H At 31 December 2010 150,399
RREFE Net book value
R-E—ZFFE+_H=+—8H At 31 December 2010 379,406
R-_ZTZNFE+_A=+—8 At 31 December 2009 352,194

AREBENBEN T HEER AP EEARED
HEOFAN L ERE - BN LHHEER
BREREERFESTNOT

The Group's prepaid lease payments represent land use rights
held under medium-term lease in the PRC. They are analysed

for reporting purpose as follows:

2010 2009

ARET T ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB’000

mEE D Current portion 12,058 10,176
JEmENEB D Non-current portion 367,348 342,018
379,406 352,194
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BE_Z-FTFt_A=1+—HLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

13. EEffTBEER(E) 13. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued)
AT The Company
ARETIT
RMB'000
2% Cost
RZZEZNF—HF—H At 1 January 2009 38,809
INE Additions 4,982
R-ZBEZNE+-_A=+—8 " At 31 December 2009, 1 January 2010 and
—E2Z2F-A—-AK 31 December 2010
—E-TFE+=A=+—H SELIR
S Accumulated amortisation
RZZEZNF—H—H At 1 January 2009 3,262
REEEEGH Amortisation for the year 1,253
R-ZTBBNF+-H=+—H At 31 December 2009 4,515
RZZE—ZF—F—H At 1 January 2010 4,515
N Y Amortisation for the year 853
R-BE—ZF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2010 5,368
BREFE Net book value
R-E—ZFF+=-F=+—H At 31 December 2010 38,423
RZZEZNF+=A=+—H At 31 December 2009 39,276
RA BT T H3 &5R0AH BBE AR IR The Company’s prepaid lease payments represent land use
ERRRAVFE A B T I A o A T AR E K rights held under medium-term lease in the PRC. They are
BREREFERAFTESNAOT ¢ analysed for reporting purpose as follows:
2010 2009
ARBT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
mEEB D Current portion 854 1,252
FEmENEB D Non-current portion 37,569 38,024
38,423 39,276
R-ZE—ZTF+_F=+—8 #EEFEEEA As at 31 December 2010, the Group's prepaid lease payments
REBZT(ZZTTNF : AK¥S34,210,000 of approximately RMBNil (2009: RMB34,210,000) were
L) ZE TR EERERPIEELRE pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank borrowings. Details

BRITRVE 2 P - FFIEEKIEE30 © of which are set out in note 30.




B 7% 3R 3% BT & F (s

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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14. BREE 14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
rEE The Group
HRIE
Patents
AREETTT
RMB’000
A Cost
RZZZNF—H—H At 1 January 2009 218,300
INE Additions 6,681
REZZEENF+=A=+—8H At 31 December 2009 224,981
WZZE—ZF—F—H At 1 January 2010 224,981
INE Additions 8,378
NR-—ZE—ZFFE+_-_HF=+—H At 31 December 2010 233,359
Bt R R EEE Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss
N_ZEZEhF—HF—H At 1 January 2009 104,077
N Y Amortisation for the year 22,023
R-ZEZhAF+=-_A=+—H At 31 December 2009 126,100
R=E—FF—H—H At 1 January 2010 126,100
SR Amortisation for the year 12,993
NE E R EE B R Impairment loss recognised for the year 3,945
R-E—ZFFE+-_B=+—H At 31 December 2010 143,038
BREFE Net book value
R-E—ZFFE+-F=+—H At 31 December 2010 90,321
R-EZhE+=-_A=1+—H At 31 December 2009 98,881
AEEHHERHNGEEERERZE The amortisation charge for the year is included in
BER]- “administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
AEEREEERERERE-—BITIEAREE Impairment loss recognised during the year solely related to
R EFEAERE - EILE B2 BRI AR a patent which was no longer used in the production and as
EEEEL 2 3REE - a result, a full impairment loss was made against the cost of

such patent.
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15. EEBIEEE

RiFRMBRRKRER 2 ELEHAEEMRE
EZEARRFEAZEFHMT

HE-T-2F+-A=+-ALFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

15. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

movements during the year are as follows:

The components of deferred tax assets recognised in

the consolidated statement of financial position and the

rEE The Group
FEWRERRR
H At B LR
kEEZ
HEERE
Impairment
of trade
and other
receivables and HrtaE Hith At
inventories Provisions Others Total
ARET T AREF T AREF T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ELEREEEH Deferred tax arising from:
R=ZEZENF—A—H At 1 January 2009 106,094 21,378 6,365 133,837
RIEZEGOR),FA (Charged)/credited to
profit or loss (5,324) 9,197 (3,778) 95
RZZTAF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2009 100,770 30,575 2,587 133,932
R—ZE—ZFF—H—H At 1 January 2010 100,770 30,575 2,587 133,932
WA Credited to profit or loss 37,593 19,905 2,448 59,946
R=-ZB—-FF+=-H=+—H At 31 December 2010 138,363 50,480 5,035 193,878
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15. IEEBIEEE(E) 15. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (continued)
PN The Company
EtAs &ast
Provisions Total
ARKET T AREETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEREELER ! Deferred tax arising from:
RZZTTZNF—HA—H - At 1 January 2009, 31 December 2009 and
—EENFTA=T—HEK 1 January 2010
—ZT—ZTFE—H—H - -
RERFTA Credited to profit or loss 10,696 10,696
RZE—ZF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2010 10,696 10,696
RIEFIBE EHE B EIREFS Particulars about the offset of deferred tax assets and liabilities
rEE ARAE
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

ARBTR ARETIT AR¥®TR AR®TT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

— RIEFIBEE - Deferred tax assets 15,641 - - -
—RIEFIBBAEE — Deferred tax liabilities (15,641) - - -
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15. IEEBIEESE(E) 15. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (continued)
N-ZE—ZF+-_A=+—H  WRFEET At 31 December 2010, deferred tax assets were not
SR B AR T8 B R Bt R FN B R 1 = R recognised in relation to certain unused tax losses and other
RIELEFIEEE - AERZ A BFIEEIE deductible temporary differences. The unrecognised unused
FATHIFE R 2N ¢ tax losses and deductible temporary differences are analysed
as follows:
AEE NN
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

AR®TR ARBTIT ARBTR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

MIAEE Tax losses
H AR EREZR  Other deductible temporary
differences

i) RZE-—ZFTE+-_A=+—H K& (i)
Bz AR EREEES R AARE
1,679,096,0007L (=TT NF : AR
#1,318,742,0007T ) I K #E 7R /5 i 3T
MEBEEE  RESEERERREANE
REERD A A g FEE E A AN
FE B 22 2 /) B R ERFUA T ©

(i) FEHRBBEERZARAFRNGEEIA (ii)
HEBERRERTUA » IR ZF
——FE_T-RFHHEER

1,209,170 1,031,841 - =

369,926 286,901 - =

1,579,096 1,318,742 - =

At 31 December 2010, the Group’s deductible temporary
differences amounting to RMB1,579,096,000 (2009:
RMB1,318,742,000) have not been recognised as deferred
tax assets as it was determined by management that it
is not probable that future taxable profits will be available
for these deductible temporary differences to reverse in

the foreseeable future.

Tax losses in the PRC can be carried forward to set off
future assessable income for a maximum period of five

years which expires in the period from 2011 to 2015.

R-B—TF+-A=+—0 ' siARNEBt At 31 December 2010, there was no significant unrecognised
B R RHE A R 2 R E B FEE 2 B deferred tax liability (2009: Nil) for taxes that would be payable
FIAMS © AR S REE LR - ALEW on the unremitted earnings of the Group's subsidiaries and
RN TRIEBE - U ERBEARER associates as the Group has no liability to additional tax should

BEEHBEBE(ZZZTNF : &) - such amounts be remitted.
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. RBASZH#ER 16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
b /N | The Company
2010 2009
ARET T AREBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
A 3E E IR E (3R AN ) Unlisted investments in the PRC, at cost 2,657,269 2,413,428
AL EENGIE Q] Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,661,205 2,347,455
A ENGIER ] Amounts due to subsidiaries (1,564,418) (310,674)
WERBEERAREES - BARENXE The amounts due are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
R o repayable on demand.
FEWB AR ZFMAERFEN T B REHT Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to the
7E43 ° financial statements.
. REEATZH#ED 17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
REME P /NG|
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

ARBTR AREBTET AR®TR ARETE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

REFE EHIRE Unlisted investments in the PRC,
€i:%y) at cost 222,250 87,873 80,740 17,740
R U B R A Share of post-acquisition profits,
(FBERARE) net of dividend received 106,240 89,560 80,819 67,365
i NG E ] Amounts due from associates - 1,646 - =
328,490 179,079 161,559 85,105
WERBEERREES « BERTEER The amounts due are unsecured, non-interest bearing and

A o without terms of repayments.
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17. REHBATZ#EE(E) 17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
TREEBEARZFHE  HHRFELTR

The following list contains the particulars of associates, all of

A - which are unlisted corporate entities:
FERERLE
Proportion of ownership interest
NG rREZ
REBEH ERER i
Place of afEARE Group's HAARRE  WEARNE
CED: incorporation Particulars of effective Held by Heldby FELEEE
Name of company and operation registered capital interest  the Company subsidiaries  Principal activity
BRAER -REN -1 PRC USD6,000,000 41% 41% - Provision of maintenance,
PRRE(REE)ERAT HE 6,000,000% 7 installation and on-site
services to owners of
turbines, boilers and
electricity generators
RS - RERIVERE
HESEGKEANRE PRC RMB107,000,000 44.82% - 50%  Manufacture of electrical
BREELE dE  ARK107,000,0007 equipments
EEBUSE
BEERRRRARTE PRC RMB15,000,000 27.28% - 30%  Provision of quality control
BREERE MmE  AK#15,000,0007 services for boilers
manufacturing
RABEERMESRERE
REENRBERARERAR PRC RMB1,360,000 44.82% - 49%  Manufacture & sale of
e AR 1,360,007 mineral beverages
EERBERR AR
BEAYENRETRMFAR PRC RMB1,000,000 44.82% - 50%  Development of power
BRAH mE AK%1,000,0007 equipment technology
REENRER
RRETREMARERELAR PRC RMB2,000,000 44.82% - 50%  Provision of petrol station
mE AK%2,000,000 services
IhIARRTE
SEIRSZEKEHRE PRC RMB10,000,000 42.80% - 47.75%  Hydropower generation
BREFAR mE AKRH10,000,0007 KNEE
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17. REEATIZER(E) 17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
FERERLE
Proportion of ownership interest
NG x rEE2
K&, ERER M
Place of HmasEE Group's HAAFEE HEAAEE
NS incorporation Particulars of effective Held by Heldby FEL&73H
Name of company and operation registered capital interest  the Company subsidiaries  Principal activity
BREERENTRERAH PRC RMB2,000,000 33.50% - 3350%  Provision of power
mE AK%2,000,000 engineering
ENTIR
BB KT BRAE PRC RMB2,000,000 30% - 30%  Provision of travelling
mE AK%2,000,000 services
IR RS
BRAEEREENBERERAH PRC RMB300,000,000 41.12% 21% 24%  Depository and financial
e AR%300,000,0007 advisory services
ERRYBE AR
B N Rl 2 IS AR Z T ¢ Summary financial information on associates:
2010 2009
AR¥TR ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEE Total assets 2,054,292 712,129
e E Total liabilities (1,307,179) (289,174)
BEFE Net assets 747,113 422,955
NEEEERE ATIAEFEME  Group's share of net assets of associates 328,490 177,433
A Revenue 675,635 447,244
NE i F Profit for the year 66,563 88,226

REEREE ML ATIELSE Group's share of results of associates for the year 25,793 34,764
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

HHEMIRE 18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
FFIHE MR E MR Available-for-sale investments comprise:
REE NG|
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
ARBTT ARETT AR®TRT ARETET
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
JE LR E S Unlisted equity securities at cost
— B AR A less impairment 35,941 27,074 21,246 17,879

I F iR 1R B 2 48 B AE AR B M B SZ A 3F
T ARETHE EMiERES o EEER
HHR &W$ﬁﬁ’§1ﬁ{§m@ﬁﬁ5§ 7 J?
EAREEARBEMTHEAKN A2
ERBERRBE LRSS -

The unlisted equity investments represented investments
in unlisted equity securities issued by private entities
incorporated in the PRC. They are measured at cost less
impairment at the end of each reporting period because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so wide that the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be measured reliably.

TTE2RTHE 19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group
rEE
2010 2009
ARET ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
i HAINES %) Foreign currency forward contracts 104,276 =

EHINES MR AR EBEIIR - EAREE
TyER A 5 A4 FEEIZLE@EK REEE
BRI EREMEE -

RIERR - AREBEIUMI7TE(ZS
TNEF - B\) KRB BRBINES LT EE)
REHEHZENEREERAR - 3FE
B EBTETAZ AR BEESHAAR
#104,276,000;c(ZZEZE NF : ARBT
JT) E\Aim?r)\iéé L‘Aﬁfﬁ&?ﬁié%ﬁ
TEANXZREEASHEEETAAD
FREERITHEST ©

The foreign currency forward contracts are stated at fair value.
The fair value of forward contracts is determined using forward
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period with the
resulting value discounted back to present value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had 37 (2009:
Nil) outstanding foreign currency forward contracts to manage
its exchange rate exposures which did not meet the criteria
for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of non-hedging
currency derivatives amounting to RMB104,276,000 (2009:
RMBNil) were included in profit or loss during the year. The
above transactions involving derivative financial instruments
are with Bank of China of A1 credit rating by Moody's.
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20. B& 20. INVENTORIES
REE LN
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

AR®TR ARBTIT AR®TR ARBTET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

B hRERE Power equipment manufacturing
B Raw materials 3,002,956 4,383,398 710 747
RS Work in progress 9,189,075 9,020,256 901,360 594,004
K Finished goods 370,770 473,476 - =
12,562,801 13,877,130 902,070 594,751
YRR R Property development
HERRTYE Properties under development
for sale - 167,025 - -
BEEKAFEME Completed properties held
for sale - 186,005 - -
- 353,030 - -
12,562,801 14,230,160 902,070 594,751
B RPYEREEKFEWEDMNF All of the properties under development and completed

Eip N3 properties held for sale are located in the Mainland China.
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21. FEARR FEWRIR R REWR -

21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES/BILLS RECEIVABLE/OTHER

e RIEfERIE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
REM RATFE
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
AR¥TR AREEF T AR®T R AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
FEUYBR 7R Trade receivables 13,302,879 13,790,913 382,596 455,293
o REREE Less: allowance for doubtful

debts (2,180,049) (1,621,932) (42,413) (21,531)
11,122,830 12,168,981 340,183 433,762
e Bills receivable 980,496 600,844 6,350 1,500
12,103,326 12,769,825 346,533 435,262
At fE UK Other receivables 418,731 802,386 6,009 230,058
®E RIEM B Deposits and prepayments 4,057,974 4,049,672 87,645 162,158
HEETER Short-term entrustment loan 30,000 = - -
16,610,031 17,621,883 440,187 827,478

AEREB—RPBEBEBHRTAARR—H
ARMBARELEHEREZLEER - BERIR
FEH%E5.31% (MBRER THBEIEAHRTE
RENEBFFERE26%)5it EAER-Z
——FtLAt+MBEERE - EEETEREH
Z R FK B AR 2 G T RRBGRERIER -

RTEFPZEERSETR - —RIVIZMESR
BPZVREBEAME - /T HREREEK

P EERR AEEEHETER
{* RFHE o Bt AERTERIS I —F AR E
HERBFX °

The Group had a short-term entrustment loan to a fellow
subsidiary of the Company through a PRC stated-owned bank.
The loan bears interest at 5.31% per annum (or an effective
interest rate of 5.26% per annum after deduction of fees
payable to the PRC stated-owned bank) and is receivable on 14
July 2011. The entrustment loan is secured by a charge over

certain receivables of that fellow subsidiary.

The credit terms given to the customers vary and are generally
based on the financial strengths of individual customers.
In order to effectively manage the credit risks associated
with trade receivables, credit evaluations of customers are
performed periodically. The balances mentioned above are

expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within one

year.
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21. FEWARR TEMRIR H bR - 3R
ERFARIEE)

(a)

(b)

AR AT

RBEIR - YRR KRR (H
BRRARER) ZIREEAMTIAT

21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES/BILLS RECEIVABLE/OTHER
RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(continued)
(a) Ageing analysis

Trade receivables and bills receivable (net of allowance
for doubtful debts) with the following ageing analysis as

of the end of the reporting period:

AEH ENE|
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

ARBTR AREBTET AR®TR ARETE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

1ELA Within 1 year
1829 1 to 2 years
2E34F 2 to 3 years
3F Over 3 years
AR R BN R B RE

JE USRI I R AR IR B S 1R T 4R
RBHERARK  HEMASERRKE
%2 B A] R MW SERIRR SN - R ZIB
WU IR B 48 R B P B R
R K e B W R 4 (2 B R EE2(m) (i)

5,566,752 6,107,355 197,518 385,987
2,583,910 4,816,263 142,948 19,429
3,264,650 1,147,185 294 9,634
688,014 699,022 5,773 20,212
12,103,326 12,769,825 346,533 435,262

(b) Impairment of trade receivables and bills receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables and
bills receivable are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against trade receivables and bills receivable (see note
2(m)(i).
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21. FEMRBRTR FEUNERR Hib B - % 21. TRADE RECEIVABLES/BILLS RECEIVABLE/OTHER
SRBEHRIEE) RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)
(b) EWERREVREZEREE) (b) Impairment of trade receivables and bills receivable
(continued)

FRARKRERENES (REENRAF

The movement in allowance for doubtful debts during

BB )R ¢ the year, including both specific and collective loss
components, is as follows:
TEE RATFE
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
AR¥TR ARBT T AR¥T T ARBT T
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
n—H—H At 1 January 1,621,932 1,073,788 21,531 9,516
B ETIETER Impairment losses
recognised 561,395 549,063 20,882 12,015
] Ui (2] 2R B i 8 Uncollectible amounts
written off (3,278) (919) - -
N+=—B=+—H At 31 December 2,180,049 1,621,932 42,413 21,531

RZE—ZTF+-A=+—H &%

At 31 December 2010,

the Group's and the

B RARRAARY2,272,019,0007T
(ZZZNF - AR%2,896,639,000
7L) M ARME251,00070(Z 2T NEF ¢
AR ¥257,0007T ) #) FE U BR 5k B 1R E
BERIE R E AL IRR(E - [E7)3 T
TE /4t BRR (B 2 FE KRR 2N T 4 B 7
ez & FERE - MiREEE e
TEEAE A 2B R A T U E -
bt AREBRARRGEBEAARE
44,508,000 (=TT NF : AR
47,873,0007L) RARBZ L (ZEE
NE : ARBET D) B RIRIER T E 5
- AEBUERZEEBRTHEM
HAF R o

Company's trade receivables of RMB2,272,019,000
(2009: RMB2,896,639,000) and RMB251,000 (2009:
RMB257,000) respectively were individually determined
to be impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties
and management assessed that only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently,
specific allowances for doubtful debts of RMB44,508,000
(2009: RMB47,873,000) and RMBNil (2009: RMBNil)
respectively were recognised. The Group does not hold

any collateral over these balances.
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21. FEWGERTR B ER H b REUGRR - 1% 21. TRADE RECEIVABLES/BILLS RECEIVABLE/OTHER
S RFEFRIEE) RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)
(c) I FRE K EWER (c) Trade receivables that are not impaired

rEE N
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

AR®BTR ARBTET AR®TR ARETE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

1ELR Within 1 year
123%F Between 1 to 3 years
3FLE Over 3 years

BEARBI R ARE 2 UK TY R EZ
TRMEFAR - KEC HERERNX
ZHBIRRE LB E R G REE
ERBEEERR - EEEMARGER
MAER BRI AR mE - REE W
BRZEFEHRTE T ERR -

1,105,235 1,245,241 - =
395,683 308,441 - =
49,230 52,333 - =

1,650,148 1,606,015 - =

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers. Ongoing credit evaluation is
performed on the financial condition of trade receivables
and, where applicable, credit guarantee insurance cover is
purchased. The management believes that the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not

hold any collateral over these balances.
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22. BESFREY (R 22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) CUSTOMERS FOR

CONTRACT WORK

RRERARAEES R Contracts in progress at the end of the reporting period:
rEE
The Group
2010 2009
AR¥T R AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
25 A R A Contract costs incurred 15,103,923 10,909,986
TR AR iERR B 18 Recognised profits less recognised losses 565,201 175,949
15,669,124 11,085,935
B B BN T2 EFIE  Less: Progress billings (16,048,491) (10,648,573)
(379,367) 437,362
Hep Represented by:
SARBHEENEWREFZIE  Amounts due from customers included
in current assets 894,923 947,326
HARBEGENEMNZPKIE  Amounts due to customers included
in current liabilities (1,274,290) (509,964)
(379,367) 437,362

R-B—TFE+-_A=+—RAR_BTNE
+-A=+—08 BRIEFEEEARE

held by customers for contract works.

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, there were no retentions

R o
23. el (1) EARMEBAS 23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES
rEE The Group

ZEFAREER - TEHE - BRRENRE

repayable on demand.

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and



24,

25.

Bt 75 R R M RE (a0

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T-2F+-A=+-ALFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

X BitEs

24. TRADING SECURITIES

AEBERADF
The Group and the Company
2010 2009
AR®ET R ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000

EHERES  BAAEE Listed equity securities at fair value

— BRI — outside Hong Kong 1,188,000 =
EhERES 2 MIHEE Market value of listed equity securities 1,188,000 =

EHFRITER

R-ZT—FTF+-A=+—0 KEBEZE
TR ANREE249,294,000 (=T E AN,
F . AR%526,229,0007T) B AIEA L
ERITIE R 2R S - WA BRARITER
B RBRIE R o BB MEES0 ©

A5 B ESAIRTIF 2 FIE R 340
R -

25. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2010, the Group's bank deposits of
approximately RMB249,294,000 (2009: RMB526,229,000) were
pledged as collateral for the Group's bank borrowings and will
be released upon the settlement of relevant bank borrowings.

Details of which are set out in note 30.

The interest rates of the Group's pledged bank deposits are

disclosed in note 34(c)(i).




R EL T §

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z-FTFt_A=1+—HLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

26. SRITEXR HRERBEEZEEYD 26. BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
REE LN
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

AR®TR ARBTIT AR®TR ARBTET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

RITEBEE Cash at bank and in hand 8,091,814 9,286,037 967,925 929,068
3@ B AEIHA 7 $R777F 5 Bank deposits, matured within
3 months 3,333,960 1,326,099 - 50,000
B FSARR R & Cash and cash equivalents
ReERERZ in the statement of financial
BeMReEEY position and the statement of
cash flows 11,425,774 10,612,136 967,925 979,068
31E A AR E|ER 2 Bank deposits, matured over
SRITTERK 3 months 1,090,000 3,553,605 - -
RZE-—ZFFE+-A=+—H &#HAR As at 31 December 2010, a total of RMB12,172,936,000
#12,172,936,0007T( ZZZNGF - ARK (2009: RMB13,499,338,000) were denominated in Renminbi
13,499,338,0007T ) H A A REF R Bl Y and deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these
R1T - REAREE S INE R B 1R BB Renminbi denominated balances into foreign currencies is
TE A BTN 2 BIERVERR © subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control

promulgated by the PRC government.

R-E—ZTF+-_A=+—8 ' FIER " The weighted average effective interest rates on bank deposits
ReRBSEUMNMETHERTNER and cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2010 were

1.44% (ZZFZENF : 0.87%) ° 1.44% (2009: 0.87%).
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27. FEfHRRER H{bRERREER

27.

TRADE PAYABLES/OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED
CHARGES

AEME ENE|
The Group The Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

AR¥TR ARBTT AR®BTR ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

FERTRREK Trade payables 11,746,026 10,166,545 123,521 312,345

JANES Bills payable 1,505,108 600,844 - 6,240
HEifEM R EETER  Other payables and

accrued charges 1,294,181 2,572,286 173,923 226,369

14,545,315 13,339,675 297,444 544,954

RB|ERR - BNRRZRROMAT

Trade payables with the following ageing analysis as of the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

AEE PN

The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
ARBTFRT ARETT AR®BTR ARETET
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
1 AR Within 1 year 9,856,188 6,941,123 59,682 95,263
1229 1 to 2 years 1,199,575 2,877,157 43,477 208,001
25834 2 to 3 years 548,747 267,834 15,008 9,081
3TN E Over 3 years 141,516 80,431 5,354 =

11,746,026 10,166,545 123,521 312,345
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28. ElRE 28. DEPOSITS RECEIVED
AEE LN
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

AR®TR ARBTIT AR®TR ARBTET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

mEnEs o Current portion 11,681,047 15,216,864 1,758,845 2,239,895
IERENEL D Non-current portion 7,592,559 8,118,370 - =

19,273,606 23,335,234 1,758,845 2,239,895

EZe/REEFENIERE P K The amount represents the progress payments received
ZEERE BlRZEP  BAR from customers in respect of work in progress. Included in
7,692,669,000 T (ZZEZE & : ARK deposits received of approximately RMB7,592,559,000 (2009:
8,118,370,0007T ) AR E HAIXRE +=1EA RMB8,118,370,000) were the progress payments received in
FTHRES T Z7EEARIREWEZ E#EER respect of contract works to be commenced twelve months
15 - R AGEVBRARNIERBBE - from the end of the reporting period and were classified in the
MEKRIT S A —FARBE THEESR consolidated statement of financial position as non-current. The
TREEWBZIZS  HHEARDEE - B remaining balance represents deposits received for contract
ReleRERERESRIRETKRENE works to be commenced within one year and were classified
[E{E - as current liabilities. The deposits received will be used to set-

off the contract price upon the completion of contract works.
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29. RIFBRATIFRIE

29. ADVANCE FROM HOLDING COMPANY

rEH FIN|
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
i AR¥Tr ARETT AR%®TR ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
mENER S Current portion 20,478 20,478 - _
EREEL D Non-current portion (ii) 1,042,918 814,020 392,960 292,460
1,063,396 834,498 392,960 292,460
FiEE - Note:

(i)

(i)

RIFERABRIBEHEBRBTE  6HA
AR®20,478,000L (ZZEZTNF : AR
#20,478,0007T) ° BLFIE A &K B %
ZoR(ER -

AEBRIEBARDRELHBED
AEREBEZER  DRAARE
73,400,000 C(ZZZT L F : AR
442,450,000 7T ) & A R # 969,518,000
T(ZZEZTNF : AR® 371,570,000
TT) c BERERBA78% (—TTHF :
4.78%) °

RARRIZR AR FRBERBIET B2
B3 B AR392,960,000 (- EF
H4E : ARM292,460,0007T) © BEAF
REAT8% (ZTTNF  4.78%) °

HRFNRBERREOAFEAN » TEH
2REE - ARBERRIERB AR -

(i)

The balance of the advance from holding company is non-
interest bearing, amounting to RMB20,478,000 (2009:
RMB20,478,000). The amount is unsecured and repayable on
demand.

The balance of the advance from holding company of the
Group comprises of non-interest bearing and interest bearing
loans amounting to RMB73,400,000 (2009: RMB442,450,000)
and RMB969,518,000 (2009: RMB371,570,000) respectively
with effective interest rate of 4.78% (2009: 4.78%) per
annum.

The balance of the advance from holding company of the
Company comprises of interest bearing loans amounting to
RMB392,960,000 (2009: RMB292,460,000) with effective
interest rate of 4.78% (2009: 4.78%) per annum.

The amount will not be demanded for repayment in the
next five years from the end of the reporting period and,
accordingly, the amounts have been classified as non-current
liabilities.
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30. &= 30. BORROWINGS
rEE PN
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
AR®TR ARETT AR®TR ARETET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RITEXR Bank loans 1,678,699 3,703,735 - -
HiEMR Other loans 378,215 291,943 33,784 33,784
2,056,914 3,995,678 33,784 33,784
R Secured 1,678,699 3,708,535 - -
FEHEIR Unsecured 378,215 287,143 33,784 33,784
2,056,914 3,995,678 33,784 33,784
EFRERBERMOT The borrowings are repayable
as follows:
—FRHIFEK Within one year or on demand 507,005 1,288,579 - -
—FBREMERN After one year but within two
years 440,000 570,570 - -
MEBEKAFR After two years but within
five years 920,000 1,310,000 - -
HF%E After five years 189,909 826,529 33,784 33,784
2,056,914 3,995,678 33,784 33,784
B —FRSIRER Less: repayable within one year
BEZRBEE or on demand classified
under current liabilities (507,005) (1,288,579) - -
1,549,909 2,707,099 33,784 33,784
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30. f&ER(E) 30. BORROWINGS (continued)

EREBREE ) &8, A8EA - The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in

the following currencies:

rEE N
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

ARBTR ARETIT AR¥TR ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AR #E RMB 1,911,215 3,067,043 33,784 33,784
ETT usD 145,699 928,635 - -
2,056,914 3,995,678 33,784 33,784
HE_Z—ZF+_A=+—HIEFE & All of the Group's borrowings are carrying at rates ranging from
SEMEBROFENF3.51%E6.22%2 3.51% to 6.22% (2009: 3.51% to 6.72%) for the year ended
BE(ZZZNF : NF351%E6.72%) ° 31 December 2010.
R-ZT—FFE+-A=+—8  AEEIEH At 31 December 2010, the Group pledged certain assets with
ETEEERE—MBITRE CER & the following carrying amounts to secure the banking facilities
SEELRABENT : granted to the Group:
(i) HEMEAARYL227,0007(=F (i) investment properties of RMB4,227,000 (2009:
THE - AR#170,442,0007T) (2H RMB170,442,000) (note 11).
PEEE11) o
(i) WITFF A RE249,294,0007T (= (i) bank deposits of RMB249,294,000 (2009:
TETNF : AR¥B26,229,0007T) (2 RMB526,229,000) (note 25).
BRI =E25) o
(i) BRNIHEERABARBSIL(ZZTE (i) prepaid lease payments of RMBNil (2009:
L« ARM34,210,0007T ) (26K RMB34,210,000) (note 13).
F£13) °
R-BE—TFE+-_A=+—HAR_TBTNE At 31 December 2010 and 2009, none of the Group's bank
TZA=1+—H BEEBEAAWEHASE borrowings are guaranteed by HE.
[+
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31. BKERETE 31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
AEBERARRETLSRBREXEERE The Group is required to make contributions to a defined
BERRTEHABARBEZESHMER - K contribution retirement fund which is administered by the
EEIRBAPERB T EKRITER22% 8K Harbin Social Insurance Administration Bureau of the local
BRBEES  BIERHEATEMNS%H government. The Group is required to contribute 22% of
fif o the basic salary of its existing PRC staff, while employees

contribute 8% of their basic salary.

32. FEXBE 32. TAX PAYABLES
AEE AT
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

AR®TR ARBTIT AR®TR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

EF Value added tax 261,467 195,702 (72,988) (39,728)
DESH Enterprise income tax 408,567 298,577 60,281 33,183
EER Business tax 24,674 32,048 18,800 21,948
HbFiE Other taxes 120,376 65,986 9,727 2,118

R E Tax payables 815,084 592,313 15,820 17,521
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33. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

AEBREERE MY FVRERSE
BZHUBRHEN AR BEREFOIAZE
BREEHRK - AQBESERE D

(a)

Movements in components of equity

The Group

The reconciliation between the opening and closing

balances of each components of the Group's consolidated

equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes

FURERZ BEFBEHIAT : in equity on page 61 of the financial statements. Details
of the changes in the Company's individual components
of equity between the beginning and the end of the year
are set out below:

Zaa The Company

EE EE

EAfRE BHOLES

RA  JREOEE  Statutory Statutory  RERF
Share Share capital surplus  Retained w@st
capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETET
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
RZZTNF—F—Hz##%  Balance at 1 January 2009 1,376,806 1,980,295 709,849 393,955 421571 4,882,476
NEERFI R4 Yk st Profit and total comprehensive

income for the year - - - - 125,310 125,310

ERTEE Transfer to reserves - - - 12,531 (12,631) -

BRE Dividends - - = = (103,260)  (103,260)

RZZENE

TZA=T—RZER Balance at 31 December 2009 1,376,806 1,980,295 709,849 406,486 431,090 4,904,526
R-E—FF—F—Hz#&% Balance at 1 January 2010 1,376,806 1,980,295 709,849 406,486 431,090 4,904,526
AEE RN REA RGBT Profit and total comprehensive

income for the year - - - - 272,223 272,223

ER SR Transfer to reserves - - - 27,222 (27,222) -

RE Dividends - - - - (93,623) (93,623)

R-B-%F

TZA=t+-Hz&8H Balance at 31 December 2010 1,376,806 1,980,295 709,849 433,708 582,468 5,083,126

0L0Z Moday jenuuy paliwi] Auedwo) yuswdinbl Jemod uigieH
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33. BEX - HIGERERE(E) 33. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(b) BB (b) Dividends
(i) ZXEEENERAGREGFEAR (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
B Company attributable to the year.
2010 2009
AR®T R AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

MEHIRB RS R 2 A  Final dividend proposed after the end of
FREBBRAREK.147T the reporting period of RMBO0.14
(ZZEZTNE : FREEER per ordinary share (2009: RMB0.068 per
AR¥0.0687T) ' I =iEfE ordinary share), including applicable tax

7R 192,753 93,623
WG REEZNORAR SN RE The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
RA®WAERRBEE - has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the

reporting period.

(i) FRHERRSTZ E—HBFE (ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
ERARRRRMDFHFEAZRE Company attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year.

2010 2009
AR¥T R ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000

FRHAE MR 2 E—BE Final dividend in respect of the previous
EE 7 RHIE AFIREEAL  financial year, approved and paid during the
ARB0.068T(—ZEZT N4 :  year, of RMB0.068 per ordinary share (2009:
BRI BIRARKE0.0757T) RMBO0.075 per ordinary share) 93,623 103,260
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33. Ix& - RERREGE)

(c)

(d)

33. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

[} &S (¢) Share capital
ROEE 2010 S nE4E! 2009
Number of ARETT Number of ARETTT
shares RMB’000 shares RMB'000
B« BEBTR Registered, issued and
BR fully paid:
BlEEAREREE State owned equity
AR interest shares of
RMB1 each 701,235,000 701,235 701,235,000 701,235
HERBREE H shares of
ARKEIT RMB1 each 675,571,000 675,571 675,571,000 675,571
R—A—BRK At 1 January and 31
+=—B=+—H December 1,376,806,000 1,376,806 1,376,806,000 1,376,806

PR AR S S A Y B TE N RIA R 39 rp B 3%
AMEINEEERE AR RRROR
HARRSN - BEEARMHREE tb1E
@ EARR e

EXER
AEEEAEENEZEER  RER
AEBEABRHERRENRESN - B4R

RENERL X AXHHEERE
fF - FREANBREE -

ARBRBEEEROED TR
ARBBLIEHRE - AEHABE
AARE AR ETABABRE
ERORS - ARFEREEARE
HM - RE_F—FET-A=1—
AR-FFAFT-A=+—HItE
FE ARBLFRERLER B
SR °

(d)

Except for the currency in which dividends are paid and
restrictions as to whether the shareholders can be PRC
investors or foreign investors, state owned equity interest
shares and H shares rank pari passu in all respects with

each other.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management
is to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to

support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes during the years ended 31 December 2010 and
2009.
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33. Ix& - RERREGE)

(d)

BEXREE(E)

AEBEREABBLXRCFEBRIA
RERFFEB M) EEEERE
Moo REBENBRSERFRENER
BELEX - FEBEEFERITRE
ffEsR - BNREREMMENFIEA
IR BERERREEEY -
BERRNEABBLELRNT ¢

BE_Z-FTFt_A=1+—HLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

33. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Capital management (continued)

periods were as follows:

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. The
Group’s policy is to maintain a stable gearing ratio. Net
debt includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
bills and other payables, accruals, less cash and cash

equivalents. The gearing ratios as at the end of reporting

2010 2009
AR®T R AREETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BER Total debts

EiEA R ER R Amounts due to customers for contract work 1,274,290 509,964
FERTERRX Trade payables 11,746,026 10,166,545
HibfEeM R EsTE R Other payables and accrued charges 2,799,289 3,173,130
(S 2 Deposits received 19,273,606 23,335,234
ARIEEIGIEVNGIE e Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 24,418 51,757
RIZRE A RIFRIE Advance from holding company 1,063,396 834,498
(=54 Borrowings 2,056,914 3,995,678
38,237,939 42,066,806

o RITER - HeER Less: Bank deposits, cash and

REZFEY cash equivalents

SRR HIERITER Restricted bank deposits - (7,006)
EHEFBRITER Pledged bank deposits (249,294) (526,229)
SRITIE K Bank deposits (1,090,000) (3,553,595)
BERRESZEY Cash and cash equivalents (11,425,774) (10,612,136)
,,,,, (12,765,068) (14,698,960
RET Net debt 25,472,871 27,367,840
4BE R Equity 9,637,783 8,639,026
BN R E S Capital and net debt 35,110,654 36,006,866
BARBENLE Gearing ratio 73% 76%
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34. HBEAREERAAEE
NEBEHKEE R BEKBIRTELMNE
B R#ES  FERREERE  BEEIAE
$28 5 H D E MR E R E R o

AEBMREH BRI ANEERAERZE
[\ OB 75 L SRR R B PG T e

(a)

FERR

FERBREEFAERTIARSHT
REEBITAKNEEN S BURSE B AL
MBBARZAR  AHRERTIERS :

- HEUBRRRMAIIZEERE
EREE: &

HIFESSFIREC K ARERHE

REAREBIKASMBHRERMIISHA
HERRATMEEZFEERR A%
EEEEER R HAEAEEEER
B EEH#EREMBEERFHOK
th MAERETHREEBBES
AN - AREEREESRE B RGET
B EBEERNR B ERMIERHMEE
BH A B & 58 - LAERF S AT e Bl
FORMEH RARERE  BLUt - AR
AEERR  ARENEERREAX

R o

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risk

arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group

is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity

investments in other entities.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to

meet its contractual obligation, and arises principally from:

- the carrying amount of the respective financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position; and

— the amount of contingent liabilities as disclosed in
note 38.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated financial statements, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow up actions are taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
and non-trade debt at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is

significantly reduced.

0L0Z Moday jenuuy paliwi] Auedwo) yuswdinbl Jemod uigieH
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34. HBERERRAAEEE)

(a)

(b)

FERRE)

Re MRTEROFERRERFRAR
FZIRIT - ARREZRE  AEE
ZRERBOTFRZEERRER -

REEAZZEERREEZTREP
BRI - MIEXEP EBM
EZTESBERTE  WEAEER
BRI EFPHRAZER  —RFSRN
SERBREERRBEEZEEPZ2ER
RI|EHR - AEEE—ERENE
EREEEFRER  HEKEREES
14%(ZZTZNF : 16%)RER—E
B

ETFREAFAEZERRNER
T RANEERRAKE BRI
FANBZEREECREAE(RENTES
BITE) WHIREMBERE - BRIt
3BT IRBEH M RRIN  AEEL
BERHEHEMSEREERR ZMBEE
e RMEHR  BAANEEZEN
BRERZ RN EERRIHTE8HE -

ERAAEE LK B W ER KT AE S
BRER 2 E— S 2RSSR
521 -

REE S E R
AEEZBRREMERERDES
FE ULRRENABRELN  BR

RG> ML B R AR
REACESHEE  UENEHRR
RHZRBETHRE -

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Cash at banks and bank deposits are placed with banks
and financial institutions with good credit ratings. The
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit

risk on the cash at banks and bank deposits is low.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At the end of reporting
period, the Group has a certain concentration of credit risk
as 14% (2009: 16%) of the total trade receivables was

due from a single customer.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
into account of any collateral held is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset, including
derivative financial instruments, in the consolidated
statement of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowance. The maximum exposure to credit
risk in respect of the financial guarantees given by the
Group at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in
note 38.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are

set out in note 21.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and readily realisable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial

institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short

and longer term.
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34. HBERERRAAEEE)

(b)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

REBELERS(E) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
TRINTAEEFTELECRBE The following tables show the remaining contractual
RMERRZBTEORNEER - Tb maturities at the end of reporting period of the Group's
BEAHFFRBERE(BEFERS non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
AR R (a0 5% 2 RIRE BIR 2 7 contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
K& 7 M B ) RAREE ] pe g & payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
SKERZ T HEED ¢ based on rates current at the end of reporting period) and
the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:
rEE The Group
—E-TE 2010
BINRERESR
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
-ENE WEUL
- AENR RENUR
HEER More than More than
REE Within Tyearbut 2 years but BENE
Carrying @t 1 year or less than less than More than
amount Total on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEAREMH Amounts due to customers for
contract work 1,274,290 1,274,290 1,274,290 - - -
FEfTHRSN Trade payables 11,746,026 11,746,026 11,746,026 - - -
HEffErZ R EstER  Other payables and accrued
charges 2,799,289 2,799,289 2,799,289 - - -
FERFEZNBARZE  Amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries 24,418 24,418 24,418 - - -
RERARFE Advance from holding company 1,063,396 1,341,454 66,821 46,343 139,029 1,089,261
B3 Borrowings 2,056,914 2,189,087 571,294 483,422 944,462 189,909
18,964,333 19,374,564 16,482,138 529,765 1,083,491 1,279,170

DL ZBBER . Financial guarantee issued:
S5ERS%(F3E38) Maximum amount guaranteed
(note 38)

5,000 5,000 - - -
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34. MBEAREERRAREEE) 34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
(b) WBESRER(E) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
rEE The Group
—ZETNF 2009
BATORMRR S
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—ENE REM £
—R MEAR AELA
HEEK More than More than
EHE Within Tyearbut 2 years but AFENE
Carrying 8=t 1 year or less than less than More than
amount Total on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years

ARETT ~ ARBTR  AREBTRE  ARMTR  ARETT  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

BEARENT Amounts due to customers for

contract work 509,964 509,964 509,964 - - -
JEfTHRSN Trade payables 10,166,545 10,166,545 10,166,545 - - -
Hit M7 Rt ERA  Other payables and accrued

charges 3,173,130 3,173,130 3,173,130 - - -
FENFZMERRZIE  Amounts due to fellow

subsidiaries 51,757 51,757 51,757 - - -
RIZRR A RIF0R Advance from holding company 834,498 941,064 38,239 17,761 53,283 831,781
B3 Borrowings 3,995,678 4,301,076 1,371,206 616,861 1,434,549 878,460

18,731,672 19,143,636 16,310,841 634,622 1,487,832 1,710,241

BIEH ZBIBER . Financial quarantee issued:
SEEREE(NE38) Maximum amount guaranteed
(note 38) - 5,000 5,000 - - -
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34. HBERERRAAEEE) 34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
(b) REELEAKGE) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
AN The Company
—E—ZF 2010
EANARRR LAY
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

—EpE RENL
-ER REMUR TENR
HEER More than More than

REE Within Tyearbut 2 years but RENE
Carrying @i 1 year or less than less than More than
amount Total  on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years

ARBTR  AREBTR  AR%TR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

JERTHRSN Trade payables 123,521 123,521 123,521 - - -
Other payables and accrued

HfEAFHREBA  charges 173,923 173,923 173,923 - - -

ERMBARZE Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,564,418 1,564,418 1,564,418 - - -

YR ONIENE] Advance from holding company 392,960 505,658 18,783 18,783 56,349 411,743

EEA Borrowings 33,784 33,784 - - - 33,784

2,288,606 2,401,304 1,880,645 18,783 56,349 445,527
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34. MBEREERAABEE) 34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(b) REELER(E) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
P Y- The Company
—ETNF 2009
BATHABRRSRL
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

—FHE WL L

LA RFLR

—FRHEEK More than More than
EHE Within Tyearbut 2 years but AFNE
Carrying 8=t 1 year or less than less than More than
amount Total on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
ARETTL ARETTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
JERTHRSN Trade payables 312,345 312,345 312,345 - - -

Hit MRt BR  Other payables and accrued
charges 232,609 232,609 232,609 - - -
ERMBARZE Amounts due to subsidiaries 310,674 310,674 310,674 - - -
RIBRARIFIR Advance from holding company 292,460 376,340 13,980 13,980 41,940 306,440
&5 Borrowings 33,784 33,784 - - - 33,784
1,181,872 1,265,752 869,608 13,980 41,940 340,224
(c) RIEER (c) Interest rate risk
(i) FrE# 2 FIEEE (i) Exposure to interest rate risk

REBRARB ZMERABRER
KAER R RBITER R

The Group and the Company’s interest rate risk

arises primarily from borrowings, cash at banks and

EMBITERAR-_E—ZTF+=
R=+—B®FMENF0.36%
E22% 2B (ZEThFE+=
A=+—H :036%%=1.71%) °
REE KRR A2 &K F =
FE30R HEFE ©

bank deposits. The annual interest rates for cash
at banks and bank deposits ranging from 0.36% to
2.25% as at 31 December 2010 (at 31 December
2009: 0.36% to 1.71%). The interest rates of the
Group and the Company's borrowings are disclosed
in note 30.



B 7% 3R 3% BT & F (s

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE-2-FFT-A=t—ALEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

34. HBERERRAAEEE)

(c)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

FEERE(E) (c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i) FrEYzZFEERE (&) (i) Exposure to interest rate risk (continued)
BESEANERNBETERRER Bank deposits and borrowings issued at variable
RAEBRARNTERRERE rates expose the Group and the Company to cash
FI=RR - wEEFR =GR < flow interest rate risk, and borrowings issued at fixed
ANEBE R AR B AT AR BER rates expose the Group and the Company to fair
K[E P o ANE B I 1T A value interest rate risk. The Group and the Company
SRR B A B IR B R R R o does not carry out any hedging activities to manage

its interest rate exposure.

(i) #BEZH (ii) Sensitivity analysis
BARBERETERAETE HIR The Group does not anticipate that there would be
BAEE  WAEENETEF any significant impact on its interest-bearing assets
RPgBeYtEEEERTIME resulting from the changes in interest rates as the

o interest rates of bank deposits are not expected to
change significantly.
AEE The Group

4 B &% 50.6% M B H A
BEHERFITE  KEBFATA
i A 8 2 Bl A0, A K A R
55,401,000 ( =2 Z L 4 : 120
/A AR #54,895,0007T) °

ERBURE DR - RENR
EHRANEXDRKES - YEER
REHFTERNREPRAEE T
HENSAEEAZAABET
XEEHNERTIA e is
B BT R S M ER RIS R o
AR ERRAE BT LI
TEMETAMAZRERERN
KERME - A5 B R ADR
MREE  NRZENEEFHE
FEENEXBZEZEMET - &
DM HIRE_TTEAFHARAZE
AT -

If interest rates had been 0.5% higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group's
profit before tax for the year would increase/
decrease by approximately RMB55,401,000 (2009:
increase/decrease RMB54,895,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit before
tax that would arise assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at
the end of the reporting period. In respect of the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period, the impact
on the Group's profit before tax is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed

on the same basis for 2009.
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34. HBERERRAAEEE)

(d)

B ERE

AR & SR AINE - BT
BRARY 2 SNEX 506 AE B B A
RET([ARRT)) S EERE
BOMEZ S BB o MNEX SR
mrERBARBIHBES - ZE
KRR T mIE T EREE B
E78) -

SNENR(BRERMELPE) AR
TR B IMNE (K BUR AN & B LA
BE 2 BN SR BUTHEE T8 B
ARBITLHHETT ©

AEBZETRITEFN  BHEKER
ARE 5 ENBRFKAINESHE - B
EBE S IME R &M A RMINES K
TR D B o EHIMES M T E
RREHEF 7%

(i) FrE#HZEEmERE

THRHAINREERRA K BRI
BAEREE 2 HEESINE
BHEZEEREERABHA
RzE¥RR -

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(d)

Currency risk

Renminbi (“RMB") is not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. All foreign exchange transactions involving
RMB must take place through the People’s Bank of China
("PBOC") or other financial institutions authorised to buy
and sell foreign exchange. The exchange rate adopted for
foreign exchange transactions are the rates of exchange
quoted by the PBOC that would be subject to a managed

float against an unspecified basket of currencies.

Foreign currency payments, including the remittance of
earnings outside the PRC, are subject to the availability of
foreign currency (which depends on the foreign currency
denominated earnings of the Group) or must be arranged
through the PBOC with government approval.

Certain cash at bank balances, trade receivables and
trade payables of the Group are denominated in foreign
currencies. The management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and hedges certain exposure using foreign
currency forward contracts. The foreign currency forward

contracts do not qualify for hedging accounting.

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’'s exposure at
the end of reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in

a currency other than the functional currency of the

entity to which they relate.
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34. MBEREERAABEE) 34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(d) &EwWmk(E)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i) FrE# 2 S EpE(1E) (i) Exposure to currency risk (continued)
2010 2009
AR¥T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TEE The Group
INEsEHEZ BB E ¢ Financial assets denominated in foreign
currencies:
FEUBR X Trade receivables 2,254,057 2,816,687
FITEENES Bank balances and cash 353,393 723,339
2,607,450 3,540,026
THIINESTHE 2 The financial assets were denominated in
SREE : the following foreign currencies:
BT EUR 37,224 45,776
=TT uUsb 2,564,421 3,474,748
BT HKD 5,621 17,345
EHAfth Others 184 2,157
2,607,450 3,540,026
SNEHEZ SR A& Financial liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies:
JERFBRFR Trade payables 3,506 -
RITER Borrowings 145,699 928,635
149,205 928,635
THINEFEZ The financial liabilities were denominated in
@A : the following foreign currency:
ETT usD 149,205 928,635
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34. MBEREERAABEE) 34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)
(d) E¥ERER(E) (d) Currency risk (continued)
(i) FrE# 2 S EpE(1E) (i) Exposure to currency risk (continued)
2010 2009
AR®T R AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARAE] The Company
SNEE 2 & RIEAE ¢ Financial assets denominated in
foreign currencies:
U BRFX Trade receivables 322 322
RITREFERRE Bank balances and cash 5,686 17,495
6,008 17,817
THSNEAEZ The financial assets were denominated in
SREE the following foreign currencies:
ETT uUsb 387 489
BIT HKD 5,621 17,328
6,008 17,817
SNEHE 2 S RBE :  Financial liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies:
e BRER Trade payables 3,506 -
THINEEE 2 The financial liabilities were denominated in
SRMEESHINAT the following foreign currency:
ETT usD 3,506 =
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(d) E¥EBEE)
(i) SRE S

BE_Z-FTFt_A=1+—HLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

T 5 5 R B 2 B AT R
RIEMERYE A2 EXSE
(AEEERUEBAZEAR
b ) 2 2 BB Y (DL AR
fAREETE) -

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's profit before tax that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end of reporting
period had changed at that date, assuming all other

risk variables remained constant.

ExrEH 2010 2009

(R 4) HERB AT LR AT

Increase/ R 28 A 2 B

(decrease) Effect on Effect on

in foreign profit before profit before

exchange rate taxation taxation

ARBT T ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

BT EUR 5% 1,861 2,289
(5%) (1,861) (2,289)

ETT usD 5% 120,761 127,306
(5%) (120,761) (127,306)

BT HKD 5% 281 867
(5%) (281) (867)

ERMIIRZ AT ERRERYE A
KEETSCEEZENEER
AE UREBERRCERRE
BARBAHZ5) 2 BEERT AT
A2 BIR B AR -

Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the Group's entities’ profit before
tax measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange rate ruling
at the end of reporting period for presentation

purposes.
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34. MBEAREERRAREEE) 34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
(d) E¥ERER(E) (d) Currency risk (continued)
(i) SREDH(E) (ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)
BURRE M7 TR R TE R &£ ) fE A The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
REGASERFERRFTAIL in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
HEINERBAOSHTE - %5 measure those financial instruments held by the
WA —ZEZNEFE 2R —HAEHE Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
17 ° risk at the end of reporting period. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2009.

(e) FEREERRMR (e) Equity price risk

REBRSHEARIUEFZE=RE The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
B EREREREE R o from equity investments classified as trading securities.

AEBZ EMBRENRLEEBELFRFFN The Group's listed investments are listed on the Shanghai
BEET BEIHERSUEESZ Stock Exchange. Decisions to buy or sell trading securities
REDIRIEE B B (A B A E IR are based on daily monitoring of the performance of
REMITEIRZHLEE ZRIR UK individual securities compared to that of the Index and
REBZRBESCHEMIEL ° other industry indicators, as well as the Group's liquidity

needs.
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BE_Z-FTFt_A=1+—HLEE
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34. MBEREERAABEE) 34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)
(e) EZEEERE) (e) Equity price risk (continued)

R=F-TFT-A=+—8 B&
MBS T (TH)5% (=%
FNF 5%) 0 MABLMERRE
R B2 BT R R

At 31 December 2010, it is estimated that an increase/
(decrease) of 5% (2009: 5%) in the relevant stock market
index with all other variables held constant, would have

increased/decreased the Group’s profit before tax as

LU YIS follows:
2010 2009
HBRBLAT HERTLAD
Rz w2 B
Effect on Effect on
profit profit
before tax before tax
ARBT T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R EERRE Change in the
BECEE: relevant equity
price risk variable:
RS MFHES Trading securities
EF Increase 5% 59,400 5% -
T Decrease (5%) (59,400) (5%) =

SR E AT P BT AR SR I B B A O
MK EERZANKEE  /REREKM
B EHRREPERBEEES -
VYEEAREFNAEARERAERE
BUH A 5 B 45 R T R AR 2 (B AR A
BZEBMTHE - TMERAEEERK
B2 AR EEBRERLEEBRTE
HAAEREREE Z ERBE BRI
e MAAHMEBEEDNEFITE -
ZENIRB _ETNFHERZELE
#EAT -

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group's profit before tax that would arise assuming that
the changes in the stock market index had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period. It is also assumed that the fair values of the Group's
equity investments would change in accordance with the
historical correlation with the relevant stock market index or
the relevant risk variables, and that all other variables remain
constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
20089.
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34. HBEARERRAAEEE)

M =

(i)

BE
BAREBEAKRZZHBT A

TREJNRBERRETEY
BRELE7TRIESBMTA
BEREIMAEZ=BEAAEEE
R EARBEZERTARE
B -BERIAZAREBEZRS
REHZAABEFEMSEE
BrREBRBABENE &
FEMSFEMT:

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(f) Fair value

(i)

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of

financial instruments measured at fair value at the

end of reporting period across the three levels of the

fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7 “Financial

Instruments: Disclosure” with the fair value of each

financial instrument categorized in its entirety based

on the lowest level of input that is significant to that

fair value measurement. The levels are defined as

follows:

F—F(maR)  FEHERED Level 1: (highest level): fair values measured
AR T A 23k using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
B(RAR)GFEZARN markets for identical financial instruments
A

FER - FEREERMSHAE S Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices
BTAZHRENMBE in active markets for similar financial
T A BRI E o E instruments, or using valuation techniques
ERBE ARG EIEE in which all significant inputs are directly
TRZEERTTEZ A or indirectly based on observable market
RnEE data

F= (&ER) : EREMRME Level 3: (lowest level): fair values measured
g ABBHIERED using valuation techniques in which
RSB ET 2 GE any significant input is not based on

Biftst B2 2R BE

observable market data
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34. HBEARERRAAEEE) 34,

H 2rREEGE)
(i) BAAEEARZEMTA(E)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)
(f) Fair value (continued)

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value

(continued)
rEE The Group
R=E-ZF+=-H=+—8H
At 31 December 2010
EF— E-R E= #Et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR®T T AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Assets
PTHESBTIA Derivative financial
instruments
—=HIINEA 4 - forward exchange
contracts - 104,276 - 104,276
R 55 Trading securities 1,188,000 - - 1,188,000
1,188,000 104,276 - 1,292,276

AEEBR-_ZEZENFT+ZA
=t—RBREERIABEARK

The Group had no significant financial instruments

that were carried at fair value on 31 December 2009.

ZERTA -
b N/NE| The Company
RZZE—TF+_A=+—H
At 31 December 2010
F— FE F=H 5T
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AREBTFT ARBT T ARBTT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BE Assets
T SEES Trading securities 1,188,000 - - 1,188,000




EOHEYMS R (EEE

BoLoC

R EL T §

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE-2-FFT-A=t—ALEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

34. HBEARERRAAEEE)

(f)

(g)

DABEE)

(i)

(ii)

BAABEARZEMTR(E)

AREAR-_ZEZENLF+_-A
=+t—RWEAERAABEA
RZEmITA -

FR S MEE-_FNHNTAZ
R B REE -

HUAZEBEUANA KRBT A
&

REBIABK A R AARRZ
ERMIAZEREEE _T—F
F+-A=+t—HAR-ZETAF
T A=t —BHZAARBELE
BEAER-

[\%
N
S

DABEMS

TXHARAEEEBRTAZAR(E
BENERTEMBRR °

(i)

(ii)

EF
RAREDREER 2 TS RET
B M EMERERRZ B o

PTETA
EHINER DA BETIRAR
EHERAZESRER - HHE
ERREREMETE -

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(f)

(9)

Fair value (continued)

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value

(continued)

The Company (continued)

The Company had no significant financial instruments

that were carried at fair value on 31 December 2009.

During the year, there were no significant transfers

between instruments in Level 1 and Level 2.

(ii) Fair values of financial instruments carried at

other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost or

amortised cost are not materially different from their

fair values as at 31 December 2010 and 2009.

Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and

assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial

instruments.

(i) Securities

Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the

end of the reporting period without any deduction for

transaction costs.

(ii) Derivatives

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts
is determined using forward exchange rates at the

end of the reporting period with the resulting value

discounted back to present value.
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34. HBEARERRAAEEE)

35.

(g) DAREEME(E)
(iii) FIEEFREE

RRERAKRREREZHE
NELUERTARSZRANS
MEREREE -

liv) ERMHZHBER

BEELZHBRROAAEETD
2ERBEURB R DT RAE
IR E &R EE (K
FUARSEHERN ZBERR
R) - RFESEZHLBRNIEHRER
1B T BUR A P B R ) 2
B f 3 M FiE HE FEAR 1B T IRRA
FTER 2 il &t ) 2= 2 R RO ) 3 22
BETHEERTATRERE
FHEH A SEAE 2 1B RIR)

W RRR B 2 B 2 B S E R

RZZ—ZF—F  AEESFE—FE
B ia BB A A R A R ([ Tm g A
A ERBEERBAEREERAA([E
R A] ) (P AR B K S I 7E R B AR R A
A TWmBEERRERKRESE
BEHAR)FEERBEZTE N TREA
718.37% & B R 7]2.26% & A 7 25 H) IR
B RE» A A AR 154,800,0007T &
AR #58,880,0007T ° RUEEAT + ANEEH
AAlFE AWK DA REH# D F62.53%
K87.37% MR A i o IUREE T ERI% A A
RE#ABNRANERE  FERERD
2 Bl A R # 203,136,000 7T & A R
78,426,0007T °

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)
(g) Estimation of fair values (continued)

(iii) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

The fair value is estimated as the present value of

future cash flows, discounted at current market

interest rates for similar financial instruments.

(iv) Financial guarantees

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is
determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders
when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged,

had the guarantee not been available, where reliable

estimates of such information can be made.

35. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES

In January 2010, the Group completed the acquisition of a
further 8.37% and 2.26% equity interest in M & SRR
BRAT (MW AT") and BRBERBEREELR ("8
#/A\7F]"), companies established in the PRC to engage i
manufacturing of steam turbines and manufacturing of steam
turbine generator sets and hydro turbine generator sets in the
PRC, respectively, for a consideration of RMB154,800,000 and
RMB58,880,000 from the non-controlling shareholders of /5
/N 7] and EH# /A 7], respectively. Prior to the acquisition, the
Group had 62.53% and 87.37% equity interest in /T A &
and B2 F] respectively. Due to the acquisition of additional

interest in /A% A &E and T#AF], the non-controlling
interests decreased by RMB203,136,000 and RMB78,426,000,

respectively.
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RZT—FTFN\A @ AEELEEFENR
MEREHESERNERAA([BEH
ENDREWBAGESH35% KA ER - £
REA AR%156,750,0007T ° M4 T I E &
EEB AR AFRE - WERBEEEE
ERERMEREER - A HEEE RS
49 AR #150,349,0007T °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T—TF+_A=+—BIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

arose from this disposal.

In August 2010, the Group disposed of its entire 35% equity
interest in MMEAARBEMEEXRNHERLA (“FMEME") and
its subsidiaries for a total consideration of RMB156,750,000.
EEHbE and its subsidiaries were established in the PRC and
engaged in property development and property leasing in the
PRC. A gain on disposal of approximately RMB150,349,000

Details of the net assets disposed of in respect of FEEHIE
and its subsidiaries are summarised below:

ARET T
RMB’000
BEHEFEE Net assets disposed of
i\ =NC I Interests in associates 158
LB Investment properties 236,328
YIZE - B Rk Property, plant and equipment 4,254
FE Inventories 355,454
JEULER X Trade receivables 14,474
Hipelisr « 14 RIafoE Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 22,202
REMREEREY Cash and cash equivalents 102,294
FERTBR X Trade payables (228,213)
HEMEN R RETER Other payables and accrued charges (184,863)
Biire Deposits received (65,665)
B Borrowings (227,099)
eI E Tax payables (19,581)
9,743
IS fE Non-controlling interests (3,342)
6,401
oS B A RS Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 150,349
156,750
BREINAR : Total consideration satisfied by:
BUYER € Cash received 156,750
HEEERSMAFEE - Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
BYERSNRE Cash consideration received 156,750
BEHERITEENRRE Bank balances and cash disposed of (102,294)
HENBARIEERE MNREEE Net cash inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of
YIm AR the disposal of subsidiaries 54,456
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BEAXRiE

AEBETTANTRS  MREXZINBRE
MRS AR A B HRERETIE A B R
SERK °

il RZZBE-—ZFAA-_+XAE  XAF
—RMBRBE-EBBLE=TRAT
W - ARBEAEREROES) A
RAFA9% OB A - BRES/A
E< #160,000,0007T ° ¥ A B R AR
(BB ERARIZETENE/EL
7% - WBR - ZARBEEENA
BRRERECES)ERATF -

(il RZZTE—ZTFNLA=+/,"H ' xRF
— XM BARE BB LB =]
Wk URY—KWEBRR - BARRK
BEEAREOIH) BRAR - RIEZ
Wk - AARIZH B A AL ES %
Az - R {E R ARE186,000,000
5T o

BEXHEEEN RZE—ZF+-8
=+—H ' AEERLGRE M IEHRE P UGS
M - BB RBRAEE T AR 2 B A EE
B ARB 758,051,000 (ZETNE © A
R#414,039,0007T) °

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group has entered into the following transactions, which
have not been completed at the end of the reporting period
nor at the date these consolidated financial statements were
authorised for issuance.

(i) On 26 September 2010, a subsidiary of the Company
entered into an agreement with an independent third party
to acquire 49% equity interest of GE Energy (Shenyang)
Co., Ltd at a total consideration of RMB160,000,000. GE
Energy (Shenyang) Co., Ltd is principally engaged in the
wind power business in the PRC. After the acquisition,
the company will change its name as GE & HE Wind
Power (Shenyang) Co., Ltd.

(i) On 26 September 2010, a subsidiary of the Company
entered into an agreement with an independent third
party to form a new subsidiary, namely Harbin Electric and
General Electric Wind Power (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. According
to the agreement, the contribution of 51% equity interest
of the new subsidiary amounting to RMB186,000,000.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, the
Group has capital commitments in respect of the acquisition
for property, plant and equipment contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial statements amounting to
RMB758,051,000 (2009: RMB414,039,000).

gREE 38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
REME
The Group
2010 2009
AR¥TR AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
WEB AR AINSE=T Guarantee given to bank and financial institution in
B IURHER respect of general banking facilities granted to

external parties 5,000 5,000

0L0z Moday jenuuy paliwi] Auedwo) yuswdinbl Jemod uigieH




EOHEYMS R (EEE

BoLoC

R EL T §

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE_ZTTFt-_A=1—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

39. EXFEARZS

REBERTIL NI E AR

(a)

R5

39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into the following material related party

transactions:

A& R (a) Financing arrangement
HEEFIE
e BARS 5 7A0E A BRR 5 (XH) /A
Amounts due from Amounts due to Related interest
related parties related parties (expenses)/income
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
ARBTRT ARETT AR%Trn ARETT ARETR ARET:
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RERABFHIE Advance from holding
(FiiE39(al(i)) company (note 39(a)(i)) - - 1,042,918 814,020 (37,626) (16,413)
RHETER Short-term entrustment loan
(FizE39(al i) (note 39(al(ii) 30,000 - - - 748 -
REZHBARFE Cash and cash equivalent
HERELZEM  deposit with a fellow
(Pt E39(a)(iii)) subsidiary (note 39(al(iii)) 759,381 - - - 543 -
BdaE - Notes:
() RERAFTRBELEHKBETETE (i) The balance of the advance from holding company

(ii)

(iii)

N zgm BB AR
7340000071:(— ST NF A
R # 442,450,000 7T ) & A B ¥
969,518,000 L( =TT NEF : AR
#371,5670,0007T) - EBRF X A&
478% (ZZEZNF 1 4.78%) ° Iit
REREETEERE - RIS HARE
W+=@ARN  TEHERBE
FRIE °

FRSERRETRANBARER
PAERBER DA ZEFLER ° %
BEFXARABERBERAAZ
ETREKIESER  FHXG
531% @ ER_ZE——FLtA+M
BHEE - ZBRRFIMAREBENF
NZ BB S - ﬁﬁﬁ?%ﬁ
AABEHNARAERAR=F
FLRA+TRBEZAE -

B B & R R AR 1A IR BB A= B R A Y
BRAR(RIFRITHBEHRE) AR
AEEBERRZHEMREEE
Y UERRESEDERE XA
MRERD  ZEXZTRAEHE
RERZFBELBBRS - G
BRGHBERARTDAHRR/ -
—REFT_AtMAZAL

(ii)

(iii)

comprises of non-interest bearing and interest
bearing loans amounting to RMB73,400,000 (2009:
RMB442,450,000) and RMB969,518,000 (2009:
RMB371,570,000) respectively with effective interest
rate of 4.78% (2009: 4.78%) per annum and have
no fixed repayment term. The amount will not be
demanded for repayment in the next twelve months of

the end of the reporting period.

The amount represents an entrustment loan granted
to a fellow subsidiary, Kunming Generator. The loan is
secured by a charge over certain receivables of Kunming
Generator, interest bearing at 5.31% per annum and

repayable on 14 July 2011.

This transaction was also

continuing connected transactions of the Group during
the year and details of the entrustment loan have been
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 16

July 2010.

The amount represents cash and cash equivalents deposit
with a fellow subsidiary which is a non-bank financial
institution within the HE Group, as well as an associate of
the Group, to facilitate handling of the corporate funding
and related finance activities of the HE Group. These
transactions were also continuing connected transactions
of the Group during the year and the details of the financial
services have been set out in the announcement of the

Company dated 14 December 2010.
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39. EXFAEEARS(E) 39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) BEEXRS (b) Trading transactions
REEEERS SR Amount of trading transactions during the year
= HE
—E-EF —ETNF
+=ZA=+—8B +=-—A=+—H
IEFE IEFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2010 31/12/2009
ARET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEEM Sales of goods
—RZRMB AR — Fellow subsidiaries 36,278 29,281
FREEE M Purchases of goods
—RZRME LA - Fellow subsidiaries 202,964 125,426
AR 75 & WA Service fee income
—ZERATA — Holding company - 30
—RIZRKE AR — Fellow subsidiaries 7,823 9,682
i Service fee expenses
—RZRME LA — Fellow subsidiaries 54,126 52,348
ZERGMAAREBRNFERN 2 FHE M These transactions were also continuing connected
RS B SFBEEHNARE transactions of the Group during the year and the details of the
BA-—Z—ZF+-_A=+=-HZ transactions have been set out in the announcement of the
NG Company dated 22 December 2010.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

39. EXFAEEARS(E) 39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) BEEXRZ(E) (b) Trading transactions (continued)
TIEBERGEE ZEHNFR MK The following balances arising from trading transactions
#EE were outstanding at the end of the year:
U FRIE EARIE
Amounts due from Amounts due to
—E2-EF ZETNF —E-EF ZETNF

+=A=+-8B t=ZA=t-A t=A=+—-8B +t=A=+—H
31/12/2010  31/12/2009  31/12/2010  31/12/2009
ARBT ARBTTT ARBT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

RIERR A EFRIA Advance from holding
(Mﬁzsg(b)(n) company (note 39(b)
(i) - - 20,478 20,478
U EES =N Amounts due from
FRIE(MT3E39(b) (i)  fellow subsidiaries
(note 39(b)(ii)) 112,920 76,908 - -
ANIEE =N Amounts due to fellow
B (MiEE39(b)(i))  subsidiaries

(note 39(b)(ii) - - 24,418 51,757

PiEE - Notes:
N ) (i)  The amount is non-interest bearing, unsecured and
(i) EZTJ’\IEF%ﬁE' AR R R — repayable within one year. Details of terms and
FELANEE - RESKRIERA R conditions of the loan from the ultimate holding

company are disclosed in note 29.

E 2GR R A F B R M 29

HEE -
(i) ZAEREEE  RENERE (i) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
BlEE - are repayable on demand.
£l
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39. EXEEtAERS(E)

(c)

(d)

FTEEE ASHM

TEREBABZHM(BREMERSHE

ZXNARBEEREEFE)NAT ¢

39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

Key management personnel compensation

Compensation for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company's directors and supervisors

as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

2010 2009

AR¥TR AREEFTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

TEEHMEHAE TS Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 1,606 1,497
RIKEFIET 2= Retirement benefit scheme contributions 80 70
1,686 1,567

FMEEt AIEIRA (2R
6(b)) °

HEMTHEARELEZRS &F

AEEB A2 BENRERESTEK
FHEAsEFNEER(TEALE]E
EHREMAES - o AEER
FRBTEBFEHNEEREN—
o o RERBEEEARE EXHKE
MRRMBARETRZIN  AEH
NEEMBECEARFER - ESF
REZEEALEERAREETE
BRHEE LEEIE=T7

AEERERMERERNRSHIE
HEERBEEMBRER  UEES
HHREREBLE -

(d)

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note
6(b)).

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled
entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities directly or indirectly owned
or controlled by the PRC government (“state-controlled
entities”). In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger
group of companies under HE, which is controlled by the
PRC government. Apart from the transactions with HE
and fellow subsidiaries disclosed above, the Group also
conducts business with other state-controlled entities.
The directors consider those state-controlled entities are
independent third parties so far as the Group's business

transactions with them are concerned.

In establishing its pricing strategies and approval process
for transactions with other state-controlled entities, the

Group does not differentiate whether the counter-party is

a state-controlled entity or not.
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39. EXFtAERS(E)

(d)

ELE B
(&)

AEEERBEERRIVZEARS
BRHEERRE YREAESEZE
% o

BEL¥ZRE &7

o - AEEAERE A EEBhEET
BERTMEBEEE TRXHKE
K BRRBITZER - ERMEML—
RIRTTRE - ERZFRITRZHINE
g EFRRERETORAKE -

40. HEYEREE

(a)

MREERBEREEAR([EHRA
Al (ARQRIE2EHEHBAR)
HEREEREEAR([REEER
A ) (RRa&RET AR RBHRES
BR(EH)BREEAR(IEHE
#)(BEEEQREE2EHGHEBA
ARZTE——F=A+—BEZETH
RAMERAEREEARE
250,000,0007T - EEFAE#EZHER
BNADK N B BREEL - &% -
BN FIEFH EHEHS5.64% M4
EARSGHBHRARGAR T ——
FZA+ARAREZAL -

2 =
X &g,

RRAEFERWERRBERIRE
RS - FBEE R E33b) AR

39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled

entities in the PRC (continued)

The Group has entered into various transactions, including
sales and purchases, and maintained trade balances with

state-controlled entities.

In addition, the Group has entered into various
transactions, including deposits placements, borrowings
and other general banking facilities, with certain banks
and financial institutions which are state-controlled
entities in its ordinary course of business. In view of
the nature of those banking transactions, the directors
are of the opinion that separate disclosure would not be

meaningful.

40. NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(a)

On 11 March 2011, BMBREEHBEREEAF (“Harbin
Generator”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an agreement with Harbin Electric
Corporation (“HE"), the ultimate parent company of the
Company, and M REE#IR(EZE)EREEA T (“Kunming
Generator”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of HE, to
have capital contribution of RMB250,000,000 to Kunming
Generator. Kunming Generator is principally engaged
in the business of manufacturing of small-scale hydro
power equipment. After the capital contribution, Harbin
Generator holds an equity interest of 55.64% in Kunming
Generator. Details of this transaction were set out in the
announcement as issued by the Company on 15 March
2011.

After the end of the reporting period, the directors of the

Company proposed a final dividend. Further details are

disclosed in note 33(b).
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41. FASEEE M5 RFER

AR mES A IR 2 et RAE - &
MEELRREBRE - BREBHARES
BIERTHEAERLR ZEMHMEL - AF
BER B BARR T RBR - IR
FEM et EL BEHCERERA
Rl AggHEERBRAIRAEENEXR
FEZARBRDEZAEIBENREN
HEEEEHHERH -

(a) BNHITIERIELER IR

AEEBARMTEERABH - RE
BN ARG S E RN REREA
EHHE - AEXGRAEZRRE
EBBERNBERBPELETE - HE
MERIHEEBAELRE BINRIIE
B AUEZERTEFELARE
E 2 HAR 2 FR ST SR A TR A

M E B R AE T s B R H
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41.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that may have a significant
effect on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities mainly
include those related to manufacturing activities of main power

equipment.

(a) Current taxation and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to Enterprise Income Tax in the
PRC. Judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of payment
of the related taxation. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in

the periods in which such determination is made.

Deferred taxation relating to certain temporary deductible
differences and tax losses is recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary deductible
differences or tax losses can be utilized. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate,

such differences will impact the recognition of deferred

taxation in the periods in which such estimate is changed.
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41.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Write-down of inventories

Management reviews the net realisable values and aging
of inventories and makes allowance for obsolete and
slow moving inventory items identified with reference to
existing market environment, the sales performance in
previous years and estimated net realisable value, i.e. the
estimated selling price, less estimated costs of selling. A
specific allowance for inventories is made if the estimated
net realisable value of the inventories is lower than its

carrying value.

Construction contracts

As explained in policy notes 2(o) and 2(w)(iii), revenue
and profit recognition on an uncompleted project is
dependent on estimating the total outcome of the
construction contract, as well as the work done to date.
Based on the Group's recent experience and the nature
of the construction activity undertaken by the Group, the
Group makes estimates of the point at which it considers
the work is sufficiently advanced such that the costs to
complete and revenue can be reliably estimated. As a
result, until this point is reached the amounts due from/
(to) customers for contract work as disclosed in note 22
will not include profit which the Group may eventually
realise from the work done to date. In addition, actual
outcomes in terms of total cost or revenue may be higher
or lower than estimated at the end of the reporting period,

which would affect the revenue and profit recognised in

future years as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to
date.
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41.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d)

Impairment of other property, plant and equipment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment may not be recoverable,
the asset may be considered “impaired”, and an
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy for impairment of property, plant and
equipment as described in note 2(m)(ii). The carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
periodically in order to assess whether the recoverable
amounts have declined below the carrying amounts.
These assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When such a
decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
greater of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in
use. In determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement relating to
the level of selling price and the amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections
of selling price and the amount of operating costs.
Changes in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the carrying amount of the assets and could

result in additional impairment charge or reversal of

impairment in future periods.
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41.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(e)

(f)

(g)

Impairment for trade and other receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for trade and
other receivables resulting from the inability of the
debtors to make the required payments. The Group
bases the estimates on the ageing of the trade and other
receivables balance, debtors’ credit-worthiness, and
historical write-off experience. If the financial conditions
of the debtors were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would

be higher than estimated.

Derivative financial instruments

In determining the fair value of the derivative financial
instruments, considerable judgement is required to
interpret market data used in the valuation techniques.
The use of different market assumptions and/or
estimation methodologies may have a material effect on

the estimated fair value amounts.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis by taking into account the residual
value. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives
periodically to determine the related depreciation
charges for its items of property, plant and equipment.
The estimation is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of items of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions with
consideration of expected technology renovation.
Depreciation charges may be adjusted if there are

significant changes in prior assumptions and estimation.
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42. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

ERMENREHRZIET - HEAURR STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
BBEDE NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2010

HEZSVBHRETZEBE - FE S Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
NECEMZEREE T —ZFF+—-4 the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and
=+ —BIEFERRER B WERZFNG interpretations and one new standard which are not yet
MERANEMN 2 1BE] - RER —IBHEL - effective for the year ended 31 December 2010 and which
HErhaEr gL AREBERZ T &E - have not been adopted in these financial statements. These

include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

RTIEHREE
FmMNETHEEN
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

BB SRS ER(EE]) HKFRSs (Amendments), “/mprovements to
[ ZE—FFEBHBFHE HKFRSs 2010"
BRIz HKE |

EBYMBHRELEBF15R(EF) A HKFRS 1 (Amendment), " First-time Adoption of
TR B BB iR & 2 Bl — B R & Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards —
BIREH G A L2 BB EHE2E  Limited Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7

RI|E 755 # R 5 | Disclosures of First-time Adoptors"
BB IR E R FE 75 (B3] [ 417 HKFRS 7 (Amendments), “Financial Instruments:
TA:REEEHEE] Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets”

BRI EER|FEIS[HFETA ] HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”

EB S ERIE 1258 (85T [ B FHE - HKAS 12 (Amendments), “Deferred tax: Recovery
11565 & 2 | of Underlying Assets"

BB ERFE 2458 (K45ET)[ A + HKAS 24 (Revised), " Related Party Disclosures”*
BEE |

BERERTERIEI29 (BT ) 7z HKAS 32 (Amendments), “Classification of

SHE Rights Issues"

5 (BB EREZRELZED) HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 (Amendments), “ Prepayments
—REBE145R (B [ REES of a Minimum Funding Requirement"
TR ]

B (ERMBREREZES) HK(IFRIC) — Int 19, “Extinguishing Financial
—Z2EFI19RREATAEZ Liabilities with Equity Instruments”

HBREZEX]

—EEELA-ARK
—=—%—H—H
(aiEA)

1 July 2010 and

1 January 2011

as appropriate
—E—TF+A—H

1 July 2010

—T——%+tH—H
1 July 2011
L
1 January 2013
—F——-%—A—H
1 January 2012
—E——%—H—H
1 January 2011
—E-THF_HA—H
1 February 2010
—=——%—A—H
1 January 2011

—ZT-TF+H—H
1 July 2010
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42. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2010 (continued)

* Except for paragraphs 25 to 27 of HKAS 24 (Revised)
which have been early adopted in these financial

statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in November
2009) introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (as revised in December 2010) adds requirements

for financial liabilities and for derecognition.

o HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that
are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to be subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end

of subsequent accounting periods.
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42. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2010 (continued)

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change
relates to financial liabilities that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Specifically, under HKFRS
9, for financial liabilities that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in
other comprehensive income, unless the presentation
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously,
under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the
fair value of the financial liability designated as at fair
value through profit or loss was presented in profit or
loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 that will be adopted in
the Group's consolidated financial statements for the annual

period beginning 1 January 2013 and that the application of

the new Standard will have a significant impact on amounts

reported in respect of the Groups’ financial assets and financial

liabilities. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable

estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been

completed.
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Particulars

42.

43.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2010 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standard and
new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group's results of

operations and financial position.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY

The following list contains only the particulars of the
Company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2010 which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group. All of these subsidiaries are
incorporated and operating in the PRC.

NABEEMER
HHEEELA

Percentage of nominal
value of registered

MEAREHE of registered capital held by the TEEH
Name of subsidiary share capital Company Principal activities
ARETR ¢ LiE
RMB’000  Directly Indirectly
% %
RREREREREERA 746,853 90.94 - KERE
Manufacture of boilers
RREEREEREE AR 709,237 89.63 - EERURRERRENKRREIRE
Manufacture of steam turbines generator sets and
hydro turbine generator sets
RREEUTIREREARA 136,000 100 - REUREIERS

Provision of engineering services for power stations
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

NARAEMER

AEEELA

Percentage of nominal
value of registered

HEAREHE of registered capital held by the TEIH
Name of subsidiary share capital Company Principal activities
NS ¢ Gk
RMB’000  Directly Indirectly
% %
RRAE=FERAEBR A 76,116 81.39 - F¥ AE HELCREBACRENESESEMER
REEEAG - BERN  TEEEM EXE - THER
B IERS
Development, production and sale of plasma-enhanced
and electrochemical surface ceramicised light alloy
materials, building aluminum templates and boards,
industrial special nature materials, electrophoresis
paints and electrolyte, relevant chemical products.
RERDNRRE ZRHARAR 27,000 55.55 4445  EH
Trading
RREABEEEREELA 859,723 70.90 - EETWAEHE
Manufacture of steam turbines
REEERREELRIIBERAR® 80,000 100 - EERPM
Manufacture of valves
REEERERRTIRAEF L 50,000 60 - WRRABKHEERERN
AR AR Research and development of power equipment
engineerisation technology
MREIBFK BB R TIERM 10,000 = 100  WREREKHEERXER
HERLERRE* Research and development of hydropower generation
equipment engineerisation technology
RREREREASEREERA" 70,000 - 96.86 AEIRZME

Manufacture of engineering equipment
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43. AATEEMBATFEL(E) 43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

ARFEEMER
AREELH
SMEAREE  Percentage of nominal
Particulars value of registered

WEAREMRE of registered capital held by the TEEH
Name of subsidiary share capital Company Principal activities
NS ¢ Gk
RMB’000  Directly Indirectly
% %
RETEBREIEARAR 60,000 - 100 AREwREIERS
Provision of engineering service to turbines

E%lﬁﬁﬂﬁ%%?% 30,000 100 - RETRERR

BREFAR Provision of engineering service

KELE (R28) BUER 171,624 100 - HEEAEREARAE  RERRRAHE

BARAA* Manufacture and assembly of large-scale thermal

power, nuclear power and gas turbine

RREERERERER 87,207 100 - HEERPURERERRREIREH

BREFAR* Manufacture of medium-to-heavy-duty AC/DC motors

and nuclear power main pump motors.

*  BREMERA *  Limited liability company
> RHERAAE **  Joint stock limited company
REEWE -—RWERRABITEMNEEE None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during

% o the year.
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General Meeting

The 2009 Annual General Meeting of the Company was held in
the meeting-room on the 17 Floor, Block B, No.39 Sandadongli
Road, Xiangfang District, Harbin, Heilongjiang Province, the
People’s Republic of China, at 9:00 a.m. on 3 June, 2010
(Friday). All of the proposed resolutions set out in the Notice
of Annual General Meeting dated 9 April, 2010 were passed at
the meeting.

The 2010 Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company was
held in the meeting-room on the 17 Floor, Block B, No0.39
Sandadongli Road, Xiangfang District, Harbin, Heilongjiang
Province, the People's Republic of China, at 10:00 a.m. on 3
June, 2010 (Friday). All of the proposed resolutions set out in
the Notice of Extraordinary General Meeting dated 19 April,
2010 weren't passed at the meeting.

On 5 February, 2010, the sixth session Board of the Company
convened its third meeting to engage Mr. Wu Weizhang as

general manager of the Company.

On 5 February, 2010, the sixth session Board of the Company
convened its third meeting to approve the establishment of
HEC Modern Manufacturing and Services Corporation, so as to
consolidate service businesses like power station maintenance,

reconstruction, and supply of equipment.

On 9 April, 2010, the sixth session Board of the Company
convened its fourth meeting to approve the establishment of

HE Financial Corporation.

On 9 June, 2010, the sixth session Board of the Company
convened its fifth meeting to engage Mr. Qu Zhe as deputy

general manager of the Company.

On 14 September, 2010, the sixth session Board of the
Company convened its meeting to approve the establishment
of wing power joint venture by Harbin Electrical Machinery
Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, and GE
Corporation.
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10.

On 6 August, 2010, the sixth session Board of the Company
convened its sixth meeting to approve the establishment of
Jiangbei scientific research base by the Company.

On 26 October, 2010, the sixth session Board of the Company
convened its meeting to approve the capital increase of QHD
Heavy Equipment Company, a subsidiary of the Company.

On 14 December, 2010, the sixth session Board of the
Company convened its seventh meeting to approve the
investment in Kunming Electrical Machinery Factory by Harbin
Electrical Machinery Company Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company.

Material Contracts

(1) On 25 March, 2010, the Company and CPIC signed a
manufacturing contract of two 1250MW conventional
island steam turbine units and four ancillary moisture
separator reheaters for the Phase Il of Haiyang project in
Shandong.

(2) On 28 June, 2010, the Company and CPIC signed a
manufacturing contract of four sets of two 1250MW
steam generators for the Pengze project in Jiangxi.

(3) On 11th August, 2010, the Company and CNNC signed
a manufacturing contract of two 1250MW conventional
island turbine units and two sets of steam generator for
the Phase Il of Sanmen project in Zhejiang.

(4) On 17 August, 2010, the Company and Essar Group of
India signed a supply and service project contract of six
600MW sub-critical BTG (one for the Phase Il of Kaide,
one for the Phase Il of Manhan, two for the Phase | of
Neptune, and two for the Phase Il of Neptune).

(56) On 28-29 August, 2010, Boiler Corporation, Turbine
Corporation and Electric Machinery Corporation and
Lanco of India signed a supply contract of sixteen sets
of 660MW super critical thermal power units for eight
projects (two for Anpara, two for Amarkantak, two for
Babandh in India).
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(10)

(11)

(12)

On 30 August, 2010, the Company and CMEC signed a
supply contract of two 300MW sub-critical thermal power

units for the Phase Il of Puttalam in Sri Lanka.

On 30 October, 2010, the Company and Shan Dong Runh
Power Plant Engineering Technology Co. Ltd. signed
a manufacturing contract of two 660MW super critical

thermal power units for Madras in India.

On 1 November, 2010, the Company and CPl Power
Engineering Co. Ltd. signed a manufacturing contract
of two 600MW super critical thermal power units for

Iskenderun in Turkey.

On 4 November, 2010, the Company and Datang Yantan
Hydropower Co. Ltd. signed a supply contract of two
300MW water turbines for the expansion project of

Yantan Hydropower Station.

In November, 2010, the Company and Datang Guanyinyan
Hydropower Development Co. Ltd. signed a supply
contract of two 600MW francis water turbines for

Guanyinyan.

On 12th November, 2010, the Company and DIU of
Sudan signed an electric machinery turn-key contract of

six 60MW hydropower project for Kajbar in Sudan.

On 6 December, 2010, the Company and Guangxi
Fangyuan signed a manufacturing contract of two 350MW

W thermal power units for Guangxi Luzhai.

Save for disclosed above, the Company does not have any other

discloseable matters which are not disclosed.
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REGISTERED NAME OF THE COMPANY

RERESIRERNERAF

ENGLISH NAME OF THE COMPANY

Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited

REGISTERED ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY

Block 3

Nangang District High Technology Production Base

Harbin

Heilongjiang Province

People’'s Republic of China
Registration No0.2301001003796

OFFICE ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY

Block B, 39 Sandadongli Road
Xiangfang District

Harbin

Heilongjiang Province

People’'s Republic of China
Postcode: 150040

Tel: 86-451-82135717 or 82135727
Fax: 86-451-82135700

Website: www.chpec.com

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

20th Floor, Alexandra House
18 Chater Road
Central

Hong Kong

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

Gong Jing-kun

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Wu Wei-zhang
Ma Sui
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Information on the Company (continued)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ma Sui

AUDITORS

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

34/F The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

Crowe Horwath China CPAs Co., Ltd.

4/F, Tower 2, No. 16 XiSihuanZhonglLu
Haidian District

Beijing PRC

100039

LEGAL ADVISORS

as to PRC Law

HAIWEN & PARTNERS

Room 1016, Beijing Silver Tower
No.2, Dongsanhuan North Road
Chaoyang District

Beijing

PRC

as to Hong Kong Law
Richard Butler

20th Floor

Alexandra House
16-20 Chater Road
Central

Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION

H Shares

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code: 1133
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22nd Floor West

110 Barclay Street

New York, NY 10286 USA

RAERMR

P.O. Box 11258
Church Street Station
New York, NY 10286-1258
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EaE © 86-451-821357175482135727

{#E : 86-451-82135700

DEPOSITARY

The Bank of New York
American Depositary Receipts
22nd Floor West

110 Barclay Street

New York, NY 10286 USA

INVESTOR RELATIONS

P.O. Box 11258
Church Street Station
New York, NY 10286-1258

SHARE REGISTER AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY

Available at Secretary Office of the Board of Directors

Block B, 39 Sandadongli Road
Xiangfang District

Harbin

PRC

SHAREHOLDERS RECEPTION TIME

On 8th, 18th, and 28th (the following day in case a holiday)
From: 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. and

From: 2:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m.

Tel: 86-451-82135717 or 82135727

Fax: 86-451-82135700



BENXH

Documents Available for Inspection

1. ARBZE—FFEREER - © 1. The original copy of the 2010 Annual Report of the Company.
2. ARRAREEZZMIEMKRIEAR © © 2. The original copy of the Company's audited financial statements.
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ZEBEERRED NZBERODERRB(ARF])
EER201MF5A13R (EHR) EFNRERE
ARENMBEZETERREMENE =K1K
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LiESEE
1. BHEWHELREZ2010F12A31HLFE
MEFERES

2. BHYIUEATBE2010F128318ILFE
MEREREE

3. B|HRIHEATI20105E1 A1 B E20105F12
A 318 BRI EZR B A EA RS

4. SMIRFEAF010FFEREFRAREK

0.14TT(SBEERIEK) ©

FHIEIE

b REAFEFSARZEEMALTERES
ERHERFBESES  HEMEARRF
T—RERA G TR -

6. REAFEFTSREANBERRMEER
REARIESEEETHEMS -

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of
Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited (the “Company”) for the
year of 2010 will be held at 17th Floor Meeting Room, Block B, 39
Sandadongli Road, Xiangfang District, Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,
the People’s Republic of China on Friday, 13th May, 2011 at 9:00

a.m. for the following purposes:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To consider and approve the Report of the Directors of the

Company for the year ended 31 December, 2010;

2. To consider and approve the Report of the Supervisory
Committee of the Company for the year ended 31 December,
2010;

3. To consider and approve the audited accounts and the auditor’s
report of the Company for the period from 1 January, 2010 to
31 December, 2010;

4. To declare the 2010 dividend of RMBO0.14 per share (including
applicable tax).

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to appoint
any person to fill in a casual vacancy in the Board of Directors
or as an additional director, his term of office shall expire at the

conclusion of the next general meeting of the Company.

6. To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to
determine the appointment of auditors and authorize the Board

of Directors of the Company to fix their remuneration.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

RAERER(ARIELRFHE) : #HKARE
12)E IR AR M E R X & - A
REBRMBRATF - HXHHE : HARBIN
POWER EQUIPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
(MEERIHPEC]) &%

(RRIERYE —FI Aalxlih & : h
BEERBRMAR AR XA : HARBIN
ELECTRIC COMPANY LIMITED] ©
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7. To make amendments to the Articles of Association of the

Company (Change of Company Name): “The registered name
of the Company is WMERES) SR ERMHDERAF in Chinese and
HARBIN POWER EQUIPMENT COMPANY LIMITED (short name
“HPEC") in English.” in clause 2 of the Articles of Association

be amended to:

“The registered name of the Company is PGEEE R AR
728 in Chinese and HARBIN ELECTRIC COMPANY LIMITED in
English.”

. To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company, in

compliance with applicable laws and regulations and in
opportunities they considered proper, to place the new shares
at once or various times with a total par value of no more than
twenty percent (20%) of the Company's listed H shares’ or
A shares’ total par value on this resolution approval day. The
authorization will be valid from the resolution approval day, its
duration will be 12 months or expire until the Annual General
Meeting of the Company approves the special decision to
withdraw or modify this resolution. If the above resolution of
placing the new shares is approved and carried out, to authorize
the Board of Directors of the Company to make necessary
revision on the clause 15 and clause 16 in the Articles of
Association of the Company, so as to reflect the alterations of
the Company’s share capital structure and registered capital,

which results from the new shares placing.

By order of the Board
Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited
Ma Sui

Company Secretary

Harbin, China, 18 March, 2011
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Registered Office of the Company:

Block 3, Nangang High Technology Production Base

Harbin, Heilongjiang Province

People’'s Republic of China

Office Address of the Company:
Block B, No 39 Sandadongli Road, Xiangfang District

Harbin, Heilongjiang Province

People’'s Republic of China

Notes:

1.

For the purpose of determining the list of shareholders entitled to
attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting and the receive
of the proposed dividend of the year of 2010 to be declared at
that meeting, the Company shall temporarily suspend changes to
the register of shareholders from 13th April, 2011 to 12th May,
2011 (both days inclusive). Shareholders whose names appear on
the register at the time of the suspension of registration shall be
entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting and shall
be entitled to receive of the proposed dividend of the year of 2010
(if declared at that General Meeting). Person who purchased shares
of the Company during the period of suspension of registration
shall not be entitled to attend the Annual General Meeting nor to
the dividend of the year of 2010. In order to qualify for the final
dividend for 2010, all transfers documents, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company's
Registrar in Hong Kong, namely, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m., 12th April
2011.

Shareholders intending to attend the Annual General Meeting shall
give written notice of the same to the Company, which shall be
lodged at the office address of the Company before 5:00 p.m. on
15 April 2011.

A Shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more persons (whether or not
a shareholder of the Company) as his proxy to attend and vote on
behalf of him.

To be valid, the form of proxy, together with a duly notarized
power of attorney or other document of authority, if any, under
which the form is signed must be deposited at the office address
of the Company not less than 24 hours before the time appointed
for holding the Annual General Meeting.
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HARBIN POWER EQUIPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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